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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VORIAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

March 8. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House|
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division For Behavohar Health, to
exercise renewal options to existing sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide
public guardianship services by increasing the price limitation by $2,679,403.50 from $6,642,847.90 to
an amount not to exceed $9,322,151.40 and by extending the completion dates from June 30, 2019 to
June 30, 2020, effective July 1, 2019 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. 2%
Federal Funds. 98% General Funds.

The agreements were originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 29,
2016 (Item #21) and subsequently amended on September 27, 2017 (Item #18) and June 20, 2018 (Item
#30).

Vendor Location

Current

Modified

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Modified

Amount

Office of Public

Guardian
Concord, NH $4,873 ,724.70 $1,979,921.50 $6,853,646.20

Tri-County Community
Action Program

Berlin, NH $1,769,123.20 $699,482.00 $2,468,605.20

Total $6,642,847.90 $2,679,403.50 $9,322,251.40

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2020, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets.

See attachment for fiscal details
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EXPLANATION

These agreements are sole source because Revised Statues Annotated (RSA) 547-B
establishes the Public Guardianship and Protection Program for guardianship services to be
provided per RSA 135-C:60 and 171-A:10. RSA 547-B;6 and requires the Department to
contract with one or more organizations that the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated
as a public guardianship and protection program. The Office of Public Guardian and Tri-County
Community Action Program are the only organizations the New Hampshire Supreme Court has
designated as public guardianship and protection programs.

The Vendors provide guardianship services, statewide, for up to 1,077 individuals with
mental illness or developmental disabilities as well as to incapacitated adults who are abused,
neglected or exploited leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their inability to
provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs. These
services are needed to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard incapacitated persons
who are in state institutions as well as in community mental health and developmental service
programs, statewide. The emphasis in providing such services will be to ensure that the
quardianships are maintained and limited in accordance with the standards embodied in RSA
464-A.

These agreements also provide mentoring and training services. Mentoring services are
provided to family members who are willing to serve as guardian but who require a period of
support. Providing this support will remove the need for a public guardian in these cases and
will save the State from paying the cost of a permanent public guardianship.

Additionally, approval of these agreements allows the vendors to provide protection
services, on a statewide basis. These agreements also carry out the requirements of RSA 135-
C;60, RSA 171-A:10, II and RSA 161-F:52. The Contractors agree to seek reimbursement from
other payer sources, such as social security, when providing protection services.

The attached Contracts include language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions,
Item 3, that reserves the right to renew each contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of contracted services and
Governor and Executive Council approval. The Department continues to be satisfied with the
services provided by the vendors. The Department exercised a one (1) year renewal option
previously, and the attached amendments exercise the final one (1) year of renewal available
for these contracts.

Should Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department will
be in violation of legislative mandates. Also, there may continue to be a waiting list for individuals
to receive public guardianship services. Additionally, should the request not be approved, the
financial ability of the vendors to continue providing services may be compromised, which may
greatly impact services to vulnerable individuals.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 2% Federal Funds from the Administration of Families, Department of
Health and Human Services, Social Services Block Grant, CFDA #93.667, FAIN#
1901NHSOSR75, and 98% General Funds.
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In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deixirtmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join cominunilies and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and indeiyendence.



Financial Detail

05-95.92-920010-7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS:BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF. DIV OF

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. LEGAL-GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Offlco of Public Guardian

State Fiscal Year Cla^^ Title Class Account Current Amount Increase/fDocrease) Revised Amount

2017

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $1,050,915.00 $0.00 $1,050,915.00

Subfofaf $1,050,915.00 $0.00 $1,050,915.00

Trl-Countv Community Action Program

$^te Fiscal Year Clas? Title Class Account Current Amount Increase/f Decrease) Revised Amount

2017

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $421,607.50 $0.00 $421,607.50

Subtotal U21.607.50 $0.00 S42f.607.50

05-95-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS:BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF.

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Office of Public Guardian

State Fiscal Year Cla^s Title Class Account Current Amount 1 nc rease/f Dec rease) Revised Amount

2018

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $1,642,888.20 $0.00 $1,642,888.20

2019

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $1,879,921.50 $0.00 $1,879,921.50

2020

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $0.00 $1,879,921.50 $1,879,921.50

Subtotal $3,522,809.70 $1,879,921.50 $5,402,731.20

Trl-Countv Community Action Program

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Amount Increase/fDecrease) Revised Amount

2018

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $648,033.70 $0.00 $648,033.70

2019

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $699,482.00 $0.00 $699,482.00

2020

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $0.00 $699,482.00 $699,482.00

Subtotal $1,347,515.70 $699,482.00 $2,046,997.70

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS:ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES.
GRANTS TO LOCALS. SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Office of Public Guardian

^^te Fjscal Year Class Tltl^ Class Account Current Amount 1 nc rease/f Doc rease) Revised Amount

2017

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500734 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2016

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500734 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2019

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500734 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2020

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500734 $0.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00

Subtotal $300,000.00 SfOO.OOO.OO $400,000.00

Grand Total $6,642,847.90 $2,679,403,50 $9,322,251.40

Page 1 of 1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Heaith and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Guardianship Services Contract

This 3"^ Amendment to the Guardianship Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3")
dated this 28*^ day of February, 2019, is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Office of Public
Guardian (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business
at 2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400, Concord, NH, 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29. 2016 (Item #21), as amended on September 27, 2017 (Item #18) and June 20, 2018 (Item
#30), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in
the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$6,853,646.20.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements, dated 04042018, in its entirety and
replace with Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements, v5. dated 10/09/18.

Office of Public Guardian Amendmenl#3
SS-2017-BBH-02.GUARD-01 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date ' ' Name:

Title:

Office of Public Guardian

Date ffe«..p&sr Jbe;^

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

state of M/.tjUfflrnprLVj^Countv of on 3 llA before the undersigned officer,
personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

ILA^

Signa
SEAL

EV.MOhfTYNOTARY

PiXiK/Jif NOTARY PieUC-NEW HAMPSMra

dSrName an

Commission Expires: 10 \z\u

Office of Public Guardian

SS-2017.BBH-O2-GUARD-OI

Amendment #3

Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFiCE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Dat^ '

/I

Titie:

i hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFiCE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Office of Public Guardian

SS-2017-8BH-02-GUARD-01

Amendment #3

Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements

Page 1 of 9 Date ^ "



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract^ Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5. Last update 10/09/18 E)diibtt K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements i'W "
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a.virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All sen/ers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS information

Security Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless othenwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5. Last update 10/09/10 Extiibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://wvyw.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until sucti time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS information

Security Requirements
Page 8 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

V5. Last update 10/09n 6 ExhibitK Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements a.lfl •
Page 9 of 9 Date



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that OFFICE OF PUBLIC

GUARDIAN is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 14, 1983. 1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTice have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concemed.

Business ID; 30453

Certificate Number: 0004444731

%

u.

A

5^

d)

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 15th day of March A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



QuickStart https;//quickstart.SOS.nh.gov/online/Businesslnquire/BusinessInfor.

Business Information

Business Details

Business Name; OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

Domestic Nonprofit
Business Type:

Business Creation

Corporation

07/14/1983

07/14/1983

Date:

Date of Formation in

Jurisdiction:

Principal Office 2 Pilisbury St. Suite 400,

Address: Concord, NH, 03301, USA

Citizenship / State of
Domestic/New Hampshire

Incorporation:

Duration: Perpetual

Business Email: NONE

Notification Email: NONE

Business ID: 30453

Business Status: Good Standing

Name in State of

Incorporation:
Not Available

Mailing Address: NONE

2015
Last Nonprofit

Report Year:

Next Report

Yearf

Phone#: NONE

Fiscal Year End
NONE

Date:

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code NAICS Subcode

No records to view.

4/2/2019, 6:02 PM



QuickSlart https://quickstarl.sos.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/BusinessInfor.

NH Department of State, 107 North Main St. Room 204, Concord, NH 03301 -- Contact Us (/online

/Home/ContactUS)

Version 2.1 ® 2014 PCC Technology Group. LLC, All Rights Resen/ed.

(/online/Home/)^^ Back to Home (/online)

of 4 4/2/2019, 6:02 PM



QuickSiart https;//quickstart.SOS.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/Businesslnfor.

Principals Information

Name/Title

Susan Fox / President

Roger Jobin / Treasurer

Michael Fuerst / Secretary

Name/Title

Charles Bauer / Director

Nina Gardner / Director

< Previous 1 I 2

Business Address

56 Old Suncook Rd, Suite 2, Concord, 03301, USA

54 School St, Concord, 03301, USA

PC Box 1485, Claremont, 03743, USA

Business Address

214 N Main Street, Concord, 03301, USA

976 New Hampton Rd, Sanbornton, 03269, USA

Next > I Page 1 of 2, records 1 to 5 of 8 Go to Page

Registered Agent Information

Name; Not Available

Registered Office Not Available

Address:

Registered Mailing Not Available

Address:

Trade Name Information

Business Name Business ID Business Status

ELDERNET (/online/BusinessInquire'
/TradeNameInformation?businessID=45417)

216908
Expired

Linda's Furry Friends (/online/BusinessInquire
/TradeNameInformation?businessID=534037)

709234
Active

Trade Name Owned By

Name Title Address

3 of4 4/2/2019, 6:02 PM



QuickStart https;//quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/Businesslnquire/Businesslnfor.

Trademark Information

Trademark
Trademark Name Business Address Mailing Address

Number

No records to view.

Filing History Address History View All Other Addresses Name History Shares

Businesses Linked to Registered Agent Return to Search Back

4 of 4 ■ 4/2/2019,6:02 PM



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Name of the el^ed Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)
, do hereby certify that;

1. lama duly elected Officer of C>^ ypbtlc- 6>OCUrii\cL^
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on

RESOLVED: That the

2»lKli7
(Date)

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the /^*^^av of 20_/3.
(Date Amendment Signed)

4.

^(hyime oflC
is the duly elected

ontract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

fficer)lecteignature o

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of. jJ^JUad^ccALk--

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this I ̂  day of 2oi£l,

By P- Ko\fJ</"
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

A y

(Notary Public/Justic ace

•ssssssszszzss-

OfnCM.SEM.

JOANNE V.MONTYNOTMY

RHCTOT-nxnARy PUBUC. NEW HAtiPSHRE

Mv CoRvn. Enirn Od 3.2023

\ ■

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

kl-r

July 1. 2005



/KCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

3/20/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OP INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

THE ROWLEY AGENCY INC.

45 Constitution Avenue

P.O. Box 511

Concord NH 03302-0511

liAMEt''' RAChel Giunta

So ..,,: (603)224-2562
^RE89: rqiuntagrowleyagency.com

INSURER(8) AFFOROINO COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A Liberty Mutual Ins Co (Peerless)

INSURED

The Office of the Public Guardian, LLC

2 Pillabury Street

Suite 400

Concord NH 03301

INSURER B Eastern Alliance Insurance Grouo

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIPICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSR

ilB.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POUCY EFF POUCY EXP
TYPE OP INSURANCE ryrPiiTrrsi POUCY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIM$4M0€ H

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER:

PRO-
JECTPOUCY

OTHER:

828(20)59462402

(MM/DO/YYYYl

2/S/2019

(MM/DD/YYYYI

2/S/2020

EACH 0<X:URRENCE

SAMASET&REhTTED
PREMISES (Eb occufr»nc4)

MEO EXP (Any o«n pifion)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

l6r*d/no(KNimMl

1,000,000

1,000,000

15,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY
COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
(Ei xxideni)

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (P«r p«r*on)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
N(3N-OWNED
AUTOS

BONLY INJURY (Ptr icCKtanl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Pw tedacfti)

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAlMS4i(ADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1,000,000

1,000,000

RETENTION S 10.000 U8O(20)59482402 2/9/2019 2/5/2020

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTtVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUOE07

(MandatOTY In NH)
II yaa, daatfba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS t>elcw

B

3A Stata: HK

txaludad: Mika Puarat,

Ray Sowar ( Rooar Jobin

01-0000124e«9*00

^ER

STATVT6
OTH.

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

2/5/2019 6/30/2019 E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 500,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 500,000

0ESCRIPT10N OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD101, Additional Ramarfca Schadula, may ba attaehad If moia apaca la raquirad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH, DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Rachel Giunta/RG

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (201401)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



OPG Mission Statement

The OPG Articles of Agreement and By-Laws articulate the following objectives and mission:

This corporation Is created for the following reasons:

A. The provision of guardianship, co-guardianshIp and conservatorship services for Individuals

found to be legally incapacitated pursuant to N.H. RSA 464-A and other applicable statutes.

8. To be designated as the Public Guardianship and Protection Program pursuant to N.H. RSA

547-B.

C. The provision of protective services, other than guardianship services that are consistent

with the Intent of N.H. RSA 464-A. Such protective services may Include, but not be limited

to, power of attorney, client representative, or services as a representative or protective

payee.

D. The provision of guardianship and other fiduciary services to minors.

E. The provision of private fiduciary services.

The mission statement expresses OPG's already well established philosophy as follows:

"It Is the goal of this corporation to protect the legal and human rights and civil liberties of all Individuals

It serves by exercising the highest ethical standards in decision making on behalf of others and by

ensuring that the Individual dignity of Its clients Is respected."
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;Vachon Clukay CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
C  jfTiA XT\7 "DC^ Chestnut Street • Manchester, New Hampshire 03104

V^O{S4.i AJN Y L v-i (603) 622-7070 • rax; (603) 622-1452 • www.vachonclukay.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Office of Public Guardian, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (a
non-profit entity) which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and
the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the
changes in its net assets and Its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

We were not engaged to audit the statements of financial position of the agency funds of the
Office of Public Guardian, Inc. Those funds, which are more fully described in Note 7 to the financial
statements, were approximately $67,498,879 at June 30, 2018 and $27,480,477 at June 30, 2017, as
represented by management.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 14,2018



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCUL POSITION

See notes to financial statements

3

June 30,2018 and 2017

ASSETS

?Ql? 2017

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash $ 344,160 $ 461,955

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible

receivables of $20,000 each year 235,587 150,569

Contracts receivable 170,885 113,591
Prepaid expenses 19,212 23.410

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 969,844 749,525

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Condominium Unit 1,181,782 1,094,479

Office furniture and equipment 137,186 118,792
Computer equipment 151,830 97,934

1,470,798 1,311,225
Less accumulated depreciation 499,034 437,200

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET 971,764 874,025

OTHER ASSETS:

Restricted cash 11,889 10,361

Investments-restricted 131,556 127,736
Software, net of accumulated amortization of $143,183 in 2018 and $142,398 in 2017 342 929

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS - NET 143,787 139,026

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,085,395 $ 1,762,576

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $ 36,937 $ 27,862

Accrued liabilities:

Accrued payroll 96,639 77,841

Accrued vacation 195,685 152,825
Other 36,674 31,877

Current portion of long-term liabilities 21,775 20,744

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 387,710 311,149

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

Mortgage notes payable, less current portion of $20,347 in 2018 and $19,392 in 2017 513,868 534,029

Notes payable, less current portion of $1,428 in 2018 and $1,332 in 2017 36,078 37,725

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 549,946 571,754

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 1,003,291 741,576

Temporarily restricted 44,448 38,097

Permanently restricted 100,000 100,000

TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,147,739 879,673

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,085.395 $ 1.762.576



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended June 30. 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

CHANCES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

REVENUES:

Fees and grants from governmental agencies S  1,810,228 $  1,279.315
Other fees 2,178,761 2,044,578
Interest and dividend income 173 171

Other Income 1,614 -

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES 3,990,776 3,324.064

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS: • •

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 3,990,776 3,324,064

EXPENSES:

Salaries, wages and temporary labor 2,583,212 2;239,000
Employee benefits 400,685 358,200
Payroll taxes 198,629 172,194
Travel 78,783 70,626
Depreciation 61,835 53,409
Interest expense 32,806 28,731
Office expense 46,203 52,643
Condominium fees 40,639 40,845
Telephone 47,613 41,916
Other 33,268 23,677

Computer support and maintenance 33,141 30,934
Professional fees 26,705 17,097
Postage 23,599 23,873
Repairs and maintenance 11,379 11,262

Bad debt 27,580 32,462
Web site design - 7,800
Expendable software 41,339 4,850
Staff development 14,043 10,922

General insurance 13,879 13,385
Journals and publications 5,664 4,429

Utilities 5,822 5,619

Printing 1,650 1,640
Amortization 587 876

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,729,061 3,246.390

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 261,715 77,674

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

Realized and unrealized gains on investments 3,937 8,206

Interest and dividend income 2,414 2,147

INCREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 6,351 10,353

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 268.066 88,027

NET ASSETS, July 1 879.673 791,646

NET ASSETS, June 30 $  1,147,739 $  879.673

See notes tofinancial statements
4



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDUN, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from clients and third party payers $2,066,163 $ 1,985,915
Cash received from governmental agencies 1,754,548 1,213,729
Interest income from operations 173 171

Cash paid to employees (2,521,554) (2,201,364)
Cash paid to suppliers (1,037,777) (934,658)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 261,553 63,793

Cash Plows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (159,572) (23,661)
Cash paid for investments (83,396) (27,000)
Realized gains on investments 2.131 11,561
Cash received from dividends 2,414 2,136
Proceeds from sale of investments 81,380 15,819

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (157,043) (21.145)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Payments on mortgages and notes (20.777) (19.809)

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities (20,777) (19,809)

Net Increase in Cash 83,733 22,839
Cash, Beginning of Year 472,316 449,477

Cash, End of Year $  556,049 $ 472,316

Reconciliation oflncrease in Net Assets to Net

Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Increase in net assets S  268,066 $  88,027

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 61,835 53,409
Amortization 587 876

Realized gains on sales of investments (2,131) (11,561)
Unrealized gains on investments (1,806) 3,355

Investment related income (2,414) (2,147)
Bad debts 27,580 32,462

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (112,598) (58,663)

Contracts receivable (57,294) (65,586)
Prepaid expenses 4,198 (1,062)

Accounts payable 9,075 (12,674)
Accrued liabilities 66,455 37,357

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $  261,553 $  63,793

Supplemental Data:

Interest paid $  32,806 $  28,731

See notes tofinancial statements

5



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Entity and Purpose

The Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (the "Entity") was incorporated as a non-profit organization on July
14, 1983. The Entity was established to provide guardianship, co-guardianship and conservatorship
services for individuals found to be legally incapacitated pursuant to New Hampshire State lew (RSA
464-A) and other applicable statutes. Protective services other than guardianship may include, but are
not limited to, power of attorney, client representative, or services as a representative or protective payee.

The accounting policies of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit organizations, except as indicated
hereafter. The following Is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis ofPresentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entitles included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of
net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted.

Contributions

Contributions received by the Entity are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues from program services are recorded when earned. Other miscellaneous revenues are recorded
upon receipt.

Pervasiveness ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Significant estimates include depreciation expense and the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Recognition of Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in unrestricted
net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other
time and donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net
assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Property attd Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements and to charge operations currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of
related assets. The provision for depreciation is determined by the straight-line method at rates intended
to depreciate or amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useftil lives as follows:

Years

Equipment 2 -10
Furniture 5-10

Buildings 40

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017, the Entity reserved $20,000 as an allowance for uncollectible receivables. Management estimated
these allowances by evaluating the probability of collection on a per account basis.

Accrued Vacation

Full time employees accrue Paid Time Off (PTO) during their first year of employment at a rate of 9.38
hours per completed month of service. After the first year of service employees are credited with 150 to
262.5 hours of PTO for that year on January 1st, based on each employee's years of service. Employees
may carry over 37.5 to 150 hours of unused PTO into each calendar year based on their years of service.
Any accrued, but unused PTO is payable to the employee upon separation from employment and has
been recorded as a liability at year end.

Income Taxes

The Entity has received a determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies
for tax-«xempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code for its exempt function
income. In addition, the Entity is not subject to stote income taxes.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an interpretation on Income Taxes which
fundamentally changed the way that the Entity-is required to treat its uncertain tax positions for financial
accounting purposes. It prescribes rules regarding how the Entity should recognize, measure and disclose
in its financial statements tax positions that were taken or will be taken on the Entity's tax return that are
reflected in measuring current or deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Differences between tax
positions taken in a tax return and amounts recognized in the financial statements will generally result in
an increase in a liability for Income taxes payable, or a reduction in a deferred tax asset, or an increase in
a deferred tax liability. The Entity docs not have any unrecognized tax benefits and determined the
impact of this interpretation was not material to the financial statements.



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of reporting cash flows, the Entity considers all highly liquid investments with an initial
maturity of 90 days or less as cash equivalents. The Entity's cash balances exceed amounts insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Cash per the bank statements at June 30, 2018 include
cash of approximately $59,981 which is not covered by depository insurance. The Entity does not expect
to experience any losses from these accounts.

Investments

The Board of Directors of the Entity has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds
Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. Because of this
interpretation, the Entity classifies the original value of the gift as permanently restricted net assets. The
remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as temporarily restricted net
assets until approved for expenditure when it is reclassified to unrestricted net assets. The Entity
appropriates amounts for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by
SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, the Entity considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) duration and
preservation of the endowment funds; (2) the purposes of the Entity and the endowment fund; (3) general
economic conditions; (4) effect of inflation and deflation; (5) the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (6) other resources of the Entity; and (7) the investment policy of the
Entity.

The Entity has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of income of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of those endowment assets over the long-term. Endowment assets include
those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Entity must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified
periods. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in
a manner that is intended to achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as
well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable levels of risk. The
Entity expects its endowment assets, over time, to produce an average return of approximately 10%
annually. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, the Entity relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation and current yield. The Entity targets a
diversified asset allocation which includes equity and debt securities. This is intended to result in a
consistent inflation-protection rate of retum that has enough liquidity to make an annual distribution of
approximately $5,000, while growing the fund, if possible.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor or SPMIFA requires the Entity to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration.

The following tabulation summarizes the relationship between carrying values and market values of
investment assets for the years ending June 30, 2018 and 2017:



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Fair Value Measurements

For the Year Ended June 30.2018

Temporarily

Restricted

Endowment net assets, as

of July 1,2017
Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees

Net appreciation

Appropriation of endowment

assets for expenditure

Endowment net assets, as

ofJune30,2018 $  44.448

Permanently

Restricted

$  38,097 $ 100,000

2,414

3,937

100,000

Total

$  138,097

2,414

3.937

S  144,448

For the Year Ended June 30.2017

Endowment net assets, as

of July 1,2016
Investment return:

Investment income

Net appreciation (depreciation)

Appropriation of endowment
assets for expenditure

Endowment net assets, as

ofJune30,2017

Temporarily Permanently
ResQ-icted Restricted

1,212

8,207

Total

$  28,678 $ 100,000 $ 128,678

1,212

8,207

$  38,097 $ 100.000 $ 138,097

The Entity has adopted the FASB Accounting Standards Codification standard, Fair Value
Measurements, which establishes a firework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the fair Value Measurements are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 • Inputs to the valuation include:

•  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation or other means.
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If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used
need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs at the closing
price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Bond and Equity Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value ("NAV") of shares held by the Entity at
year end.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.

The Entity's investments, comprised of mutual funds, were reported at fair value by Level 1 inputs in the
amounts of $131,556 and $127,736 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

The Entity's investments as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 are stated at fair value. Shares of the separate
investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices, which represent the net value of shares held by
the Entity at year-end.

Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded on the

accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, investments have a market value of $131,556 and $127,736, cost basis of

$127,631 and $125,617, realized gains of $2,131 and $11,561, unrealized gains and (losses) of $1,806
and ($3,355), investment returns of $2,413 and $2,147, and endowment expenditures of $1,004 and $934
for investment advisory services, respectively.

NOTE 2-ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Entity's primary source of support are fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire and
were $1,755,789 and $1,278,395 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The grant
agreements have been renewed for the next fiscal year. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms
of the contract and is received on a cost reimbursement basis. Other support originates as charges for
private services, fees from regional non-profit agencies, interest, and other income. The contract has been
renewed for the fiscal year ended September 30,2018.

10
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NOTE 3--DONOR-DESIGNATED ENDOWMENTS

As of June 30,2018 and 2017, the Entity held $100,000 in permanently restricted funds for each year.

NOTE 4-LONG-TERM DEB

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, mortgage notes payable consists of the following:

$584,000 mortgage note payable with bank, secured by
property, payable in monthly installments of interest

and principal reduction of $3,774, through October 2035,
with interest at 4.75% per annum through November 2025.

Subsequent Interest will be 2.25% plus the Ten Year Federal
Home Loan Bank Index Rate.

$41,000 note payable with bank, secured by all assets, payable
in monthly installments of interest and principal of $1,589
through October 2035, with interest at 4.75% per annum
through November 2025. Subsequent interest will be 2.25%

plus the Ten Year Home Loan Bank Index Rate.

Less current portion

Debt service requirements are as follows:

2018

37.507

571,721

21,775

549,946

2017

$  534,214 $ 553,421

39.077

592,498

20,744

571,754

Y£a£

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Amount

$  21,775

22,831

23,940

25,102

26,321

NOTE 5-RETIREMENT PLAN

The Entity has a tax deferred annuity plan under Section 403(b) of the Intemal Revenue Code for all full-
time employees. An employee becomes eligible to participate at the commencement of employment and
is vested when an initial contribution is made. Employer contributions are made on each participant's
behalf at 5% of gross wages each year. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Entity
contributed $85,448 and $61,585, respectively, to the plan.

11
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NOTE 6-FUNCnONAL EXPENSES

The Organization generally reports on the natural classification of expenses. Functional expense
allocations are based on the estimated allocation to direct programming costs to specific programs and
supporting services (Management and General Expenses). The summary of functional expenses is
reported as follows based on direct and allocated costs for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Functional Expenses

2018 2017

Program expenses $ 2,280,140 $ 1,986,625

Management and General Expenses 1,448,921 1,259,765

$  3,729,061 $ 3,246,390

NOTE 7-AGENCY FUNDS

The Entity maintains guardian accounts on behalf of the wards of the State of New Hampshire. These
funds amounted to approximately $67,498,879 and $27,480,477 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. The assets and related obligations have not been reflected on the Statements of Financial
Position at June 30,2018 and 2017.

NOTE 8~CONTINGENT LIABILITY

The Organization and current and former employees and other parties are defendants in an action brought
forward by plaintiffs alleging wrongful death of an elderly individual in hospice care. The Company has
filed a substantive motion to dismiss all of the Plaintiffs claims. The Company denies any and all
liability. A hearing has been scheduled on the Motion to Dismiss all of the Plaintiffs claims.

NOTE 9-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 14, 2018, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

12



Office of Public Guardian - Board of Directors 2019

Roger Jobin - President

Northwestern Mutual

Financial Network

Manchester, NH

Michael Fuerst, Esq. - Vice President / Secretary

Buckley & Zopf
Claremont, NH

Raymond Bower - Treasurer

Administrator

Riverside Rest Home

Alexander de Nesnera, M.D.

Concord, NH

Nina Gardner

Sanbornton, NH

Judith Jones

Butenhof & Bomster, PC

Manchester, NH

Michael Palmlerl

Havenwood Heritage Heights

Concord, NH

Eugene Van Loan, Esq.

Wadleigh, Starr & Peters

Manchester, NH

Robert A. Wells, Esq.

McLane, Graf, Raulerson & Middleton

Manchester, NH



UNDA MALLON, ESQUIRE
Office of Public Guardian

2PillsburySt., Suite 400
Conconj NH 03301

(603) 224-8041
lmallon@opgnh.org

EDUCAnON: Franklin Pierce Law Center Concord, New Hampshire
Juris Doctor, 1982
Admission to New Hampshire Bar, 1982

Trinity CoHeoe. Hartford, Connecticut
B.A., American Studies, 1977

PROFESSIONAL

EXPERIENCE: OFHCE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

Concord, New Hampshire

Executive Director, 1998-Present
Deputy Director, 1985-1998
Public Guardian, 1984-1985

• Responsible for directing a non-profit organization certified by
the NH Supreme Court to provide public guardianship
throughout the State of NH to qualified indigent citizens
receiving services through the Department of Health and
Human Services and Department of Corrections

• Responsible for overseeing the provision of private
guardianship and other fiduciary services to Individuals
statewide

• Provide supervision, consultation and training to twenty-six
staff members Including attorneys, medical professionals and
social workers

• Develop organizational policies and procedures
• Provide education, training and other consultative services on

a state, regional and national basis



NEW ENGLAND NON-PROFrT

HOUSING CORPORATION

Concord, New Hampshire
Staff Attorney, 1982-1984

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

iNsnrunoNAL law project

Concord, New Hampshire
Law Clerk, 1981-1982

Statewide program concerned with matters affecting the
rights of Institutionalized and disabled persons In the areas
of mental health, developmental disabilities, juvenile and
prison law.

Focus on pursuing remedies which enabled these Individuals
to live in the least restrictive, most Integrated community
setting possible.

CERTIFICATIONS: Center for Guardianship Certification
• Certified Master Guardian
• Certified Proctor for CGC exams

MEMBERSHIPS: National Guardianship Association
• Ethics Committee; Rrst Responder
• Nominating Committee

New Hampshire Bar Association
• Elder Law, Estate Planning and Probate Section

Probate Court Task Force on Professionai Guardians

Long Term Care Ombudsman Advisory Committee

Incapacitated Aduit Fatality Review Committee

Foundation for Healthy Communities
• Healthcare Decisions Coalition



ANDREA L. SISSON, CPA

Office of Public Guardian

2 Plllsbury St, Suite 400
Concord, NH 03301

(603) 224-8041

SUMMARY:

•  i 8 years of experience with local CPA fums working with a wide range of clients
including small service businesses, non-profit organizations and multi-million dollar
manufacturing companies.

• Co-founded and managed local payroll service bureau.
•  Proficient in various types of tax return preparation, all areas of accounting, bookkeeping

and payroll.
• Designed and implemented customized bookkeeping systems for clients.
• Hired, trained and supervised staff at various levels.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Office of Public Guardian Concord, New Hampshire
Business Manager 10/2007-Present
• Responsible for all financial aspects of the organization including daily

accounting work, preparation of financial statements, preparation of payroll for 27
person staff, creation of budgets

• Responsible for supervision of all administrative staff and oversight of all
administrative functions of the entity

• Assist in the development of organizational policies and procedures as a member
of the management team

Peter C. Brankman and Company, P.C. Concord, New Hampshire
Senior Staff Accountant/Manager 10/2004 -10/2007
• Managed individual tax portion of practice (400-500 returns); controlled work

flow, supervised staff, prepared returns in a fast-paced deadline driven
environment.

• Designed and implemented paperless individual tax processing system.
• Perform compilations, reviews and audits of various for profit and non-profit

client financial statements.

• Designed and implemented bookkeeping systems for clients.
• Trained and supervised staff on all types of engagements.



D'Agnese, Robinson and Company/Stephen C. Robinson and Company, /McLarney
and Company (Same firm various owners) Concord, New Hampshire
StafT Accountant/Senior Staff Accountant/Manager 9/1989 - 6/2004
• Assisted and advised clients with various accounting and management functions.
•  Installed and set up accounting software packages; train client personnel.
• Managed all bookkeeping clients.
• Designed and implemented accounting and internal control procedures.
• Managed work flow through busy tax seasons
• Hired, trained and supervised staff.

EDUCATION:

• BS in Accounting, Bentley College May 1989



PROFESSIONAL

EXPERIENCE:

2/08 to present

8/04 to 2/08

10/01 to 8/04

CYNTHIA ANN FLANAGAN

Office of Public Guardian
2 PUlsbury Street, Suite 400

Concord, NH 03301
(603)224^041

OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

2 PUlsbury Street, Suite 400, Concord, NH 03301
Director of Estate Services

Responsible for overseeing the daily operations of a 6 person
estate department which manages the finances of OPG clients; this
includes serving in the capacity of guardian of the estate, Social Security
Representative Payee, and Trustee to include Special Needs Trusts.
Duties include: Supervises 5 full time staff, participates in intake review,
assigns new cases, monitors all court submissions ̂ m the Estate
Department including inventories, accountings and petitions, coordinates
annual review of ward's investment assets, maintains knowledge of
current public benefit rules and keeps abreast of changes as they arise,
maintains caseload which results in continued interactions with wards,
guardians and multiple benefit agencies.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER OF GREATER MANCHESTER

CSS, 1555 Elm Street, Manchester, NH 03101
Client Benefit Specialist/Practice Assistant
Assesses and assists clients without benefits in applying for appropriate
financial/medical assistance. Liaison to both the Manchester District

Office and the Medicaid Disability Determination Unit. Assists clients in
completing Medicaid applications and redeterminations. Well versed in all
aspects of Medicaid including the In/Out program. Complete working
knowledge of Medicare Part D, able to assist clients in enrollment
Completes fee assessments according to the agency's policy for clients
who are over income or denied benefits. Monitors client accounts
receivable and initiates collections. Supervises two full time employees.

Business Office, 401 Cypress Street, Manchester, NH 03103
Billing Specialist
Performs the following tasks in relation to client billing: Supports the
front desk with all billing related issues, collects client copay^fees,
balances cash drawer, obtains third party verification/authorizations and
sets client self-pay fees (according to Center policy). Sends out claims,
posts payments and works denials for assigned third party payor.
Monitors aging of this fund source and takes action on past due claims
(seeks payment, write-off, etc.). Provides customer service to clients with
questions regarding their bill.



8/94 to 10/01 Gemini Program, 9 Blodget Street, Manchester, NH 03104
Adminstrative Secretary
Performs a wide range of administrative and clerical duties to support
the administration and clinical services of the The Gemini Program and
The Center's Substance Abuse Services. Tasks include but are not

limited to: Meeting coordination, taking and transcribing meeting
minutes, quality assurance (including participation on two QI Teams),
calculation of resident rents, spreadsheets, committee membership, staff
scheduling, development of policies and procedures and purchasing.

Emergency Services, 401 Cypress Street, Manchester, NH 03103
Secretary
Provided secretarial support to a busy emergency services department
including word processing, transcription, customer service, maintaining
clinical records, scheduling appointments and all other clerical tasks.

EDUCATION:

Attended, New Hampshire College, Manchester, NH
Attended, UNH Manchester, Manchester, NH



Mary K. Michaud

EDUCATION Master of Social Work. 1990

State University of New York at Albany, Albany, NY

NH LICSW, 1996 (currently on Inactive status)

B.A. Psvchologv. 1986

St. Anselm College, Manchester, NH

PROFESSIONAL

EXPERIENCE

Office of Public Guardian. 1998-present

Concofd, NH

Director of Guardianship Services. Julv 2017-Dresent

•  Provide oversight and management of guardian department, directly

supervising 18 professional guardians, Including 2 team leaders.

•  Serve as a member of the management team, participating In

organizational decisions.

•  Responsible for making caseload assignments to ensure manageable

caseload size and composition.

•  In,conjunction with Executive Director and Associate Director, responsible

for hiring new guardians. Provide orientation and training for new

guardians and oversee ongoing training for all guardians.

•  Serve as primary guardian for several individuals.

Guardian Supervisor. 2014-2017

•  Provide direct supervision, consultation and performance oversight for

professional guardian staff.

•  Provide orientation and training for new guardians.

•  Serve as primary guardian for several Individuals.

Staff Guardian. 1998-Dresent

•  Provide advocacy and Informed decision making for Individuals

deemed Incapacitated by the NH Probate Court due to Intellectual

disability, mental Illness, traumatic brain Injury and/or dementia.

•  Collaborate with families, medical providers, nursing homes, area

agencies, community mental health centers, state psychiatric hospital,

and other Inpatlent, residential and outpatient providers to ensure

best possible outcomes for Individuals In least restrictive settings.



Genesis Behavioral Health (fka Genesis-The Counseling Group). 1996-1998

Laconia, NH

Case Management Coordinator. 1997-1998

•  Provided administrative and clinical oversight of Community

Support Program clinical case management and independent

living services for Individuals with serious and persistent mental

illness.

Clinical Case Manager. 1996-1997

Provided primary therapy and case management services for

adults with serious and persistent mental illness.

Performed Emergency Services clinical evaluations

Gateway Center for Human Development. Brunswick. GA. 1995-1996

Interim Program ManaRer

•  Managed psychosocial day treatment program for adults with

mental illness during agency search for permanent manager.

Rensselaer County Department of Mental Health. 1990-1995

Troy, NY

Intensive Case Manager. 1991-1995

•  Provided outreach and support for adults with serious and

persistent mental illness at risk for homelessness,

incarceration or recurring psychiatric hospitalization.

Mental Health Social Worker. 1990-1991

•  Responsible for primary therapy and case management

services for adults with mental illness.



609 Ashley Drive E-Mail: trscyc@culber8oniegalservlce8.com
Pembroke. NH 03275 Phone: 603-229-7446

Tracy M. Culberson, Esq.

Experience 2015 - Current Office of Public Guardian
Staff Attorney I National Certified Guardian

• Provide legal counsel as necessary to assist In the provision of guardianship
services to Incapacitated clients throughout New Hampshire.

• Provide guardianship services to Incapacitated adults

2011 - Current Culberson Legal Services of New Hampshire. PLLC

Owner I Solo Practitioner

■ Legal services to Include probate litigation, elder law and estate planning, and
Nursing Home Abuse Litigation

2006-2011 Office of the New Hampshire Attorney General, Concord NH

Assistant Attorney General

• Head of the Elder Abuse and Financial Exploitation Unit

« Prosecuted cases of homicide, abuse, neglect and financial expbltatlon of
elderly and Incapacitated adults In Superior, District and Probate Courts
throughout the State of New Hampshire. Notable prosecutions include:

" Trained medical professionals, first responders, judges, court personnel,
emergency service providers, and adult protection workers in identi^ng signs
and symptoms of elder abuse, neglect, self-neglect and exploitation, mandatory
reporting. Investigation techniques and evidence preservation.

■ Drafted artd filed State's response to defendant's appeal to Supreme Court

• Chairman of the Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee.

2005-2006 Office of the Hlllsborough County Attomey, Manchester NH

Assistant County Attorney

■ Represented the State and Hlllsborough County In JuvenOe. District and
Superior Courts.

■ Prosecution ofmisdemeanor and feiony-level crimes.

■ Preservation of felony cases to the grand Jury for Indictment.

Co-Director of Communities Against Senior Exploitation (CASE) Partnership.

1992-2005 Goffstown Police Department, Goffstown NH

PoRce OfRcer I Prosecutor

• Certified New Hampshire Police Officer

•  Instructed and trained police officers in the areas of juvenile law. crtminal and
motor vehicle law enforcement arrd adjudication, search and seizure, use of
force, constitutional law, and the laws of arrest

• Drafted, reviewed, and executed search arte arrest warrants.

• Training and experience In the investigation of felonies and serious
misdemeanors to include homicide, sexual assault, child neglect and abuse,
robbery, burglary, arson, fraud, internet crimes and ffnandai exploitation.



2005'2007 Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH

AcQunct Faculty

•  Instructor within the Department of Criminal Justice.

Specific Instruction in courses to Include "Criminal Adjudication", The
Constitution and the Criminal Justice Protooor and "Domestic Vbience and

Juvenile Justice".

2005-Current New Hampshire Police Standards and Training Council, Concord NH

Guest Lecturer

"  Instnjctor for in-seivioe training of police officers attending 'Basic Police
Prosecutor" Course.

• Lectured on topics to Include The Rules of Evidence", 'Case Preparation and
Analysis" and "Elder Abuse and Financial Exploitation Investigation".

■ Facilitator of mock DWI trials.

Education

2004 Massachusetts School of Law

■ Juris Doctor Degree

North Andover, MA

Certifications and

Professional

Organization

Memberships

1992 Saint Anselm College Goffstown.NH

•  Bachelor of Arts Degree

■ Completion of requirements for Criminal Justice in 1992

Completion of requirements for English In 1998

2008'Current - Chair of Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee

2006'CurTent - Co-Chairperson of t^w Enforcement Sub-Committee of the Eider
Abuse Advisory Council

2006-Current - Panel Member of Long-Term Care Safety Net Committee

2004 - Member of the Massachusetts Bar Association BA-159542

2004 - Member of the New Hampshire Bar Association BA-16430

2005 - Justice of the Peace - New Hampshire

"  1992-CertifiedN6wHampshlrePolloe Officer

Continuing Legal

Education
Trial Advocacy I - National District Attorney's Association: Trial Advocacy II -
National District Attome/s Association: Prosecuting Cases of Bder Abuse -
National District Attome/s Association: Advanced Cross Examination: Nuts and
Bolts of Criminal Law; Access to Public Records: New Hampshire Bar
Association Practical SklUs Course: Communities Against Senior Exploitation
(CASE) Partnership: NH Attorney Generafs Child Abuse and Domestic Violence
Conference.



other

■  Board of Directors: Honor Flight New England

*  Board of Directors for Suncook Youth Soccer

•  Conversational French; Percussionist



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

Key Personnel List
July 1,2019-June 30, 2020

•  .iV
^ I \ •/ , ' ' . - ■ •  " % Paid From Amount.Paid

S'amc ■ '  r '' Job Title ' ' Salary This Contract ' From This Contrac

Linda Mallon. JD, NMG Executive Director $  121,059.41 44.19% $  53,496.15

Andrea Sisson, CPA Director of Finance $  83,284.14 44.19% $  36,803.26

Cindy Flanaaan, NCO Director of Fiduciary Services $  84,071.93 44.19% $  37.151.39

Mary Michaud. MSW, NMG Director of Guardianship Services $  88,646.67 44.19% $  39,172.96

Tracy Culberson, Esq. NCO General Counsel $  95,099.66 44.19% $  42,024.54



JcfTrcy A. Meyers
Comtnbsioner

Katja S- Pox
Director

JUNOB'18 PM 1^51 DOS

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

BVREAV OF MEI^L HEALTH SERVICES

105 PLEASAI^ STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5000 l-800-852<3345 Ext 5000

Fax: 603-27I-50S8 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

w>vw.dhhs.nh.gov

55 ✓

May 10. 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral
Health, Bureau of Mental Health Services, to amend sole source agreements with the
vendors, listed below, to provide public guardianship services by Increasing the price limitation
by $2,679,403,50, from $3,963,444.40 to an amount not to exceed $6,642,847.90 and
extending the completion date from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019, effective upon Governor
and Executive Council approval. The agreements were originally approved by the Governor
and Executive Council on June 29, 2016 (Item #21) and subsequently amended on
September 27, 2017 (Item #18). 2%Federal Funds, 98% General Funds.

Vendor Location

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

/Vnount

Office of Public Guardian Concord, NH $2,893,803.20 $1,979,921.50 $4,873,724.70

Tri-County Community
Action Program Berlin, NH $1,069,641.20 $699,482.00 $1,769,123.20

Grand Total $3,963,444.40 $2,679,403.50 $6,642,847.90

Funds are available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 with the authority to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval

,^pm the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.
See attachment for financial details.

EXPLANATION

These agreements are sole source because Revised Statues Annotated (RSA) 547-B
establishes the Public Guardianship and Protection Program for guardianship services to be
provided per RSA 135-C:60 and 171-A:10. RSA 547-B.6. and requires^he^Department to
contract with one or more organizations that the New Hampshire Supreme Court has
designated as a public guardianship and protection program. The Office of Public Guardian



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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and Tri-County Community Action Program are the only organizations the New Hampshire
Supreme Couit has designated as public guardianship and protection programs.

The Vendors provide guardianship services, statewide, for up to 1,077 individuals with
mental illness or developmental disabilities as well as to incapacitated adults who are abused,
neglected or exploited leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their inability to
provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs.
These services are needed to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard
incapacitated persons who are in state institutions as well as in community mental health and
developmental service programs, statewide. The emphasis in providing such services will be
to ensure that the guardianships are maintained and limited in accordance with the standards
embodied in RSA 464-A.

These agreements also provide mentoring and training services. Mentoring services
are provided to family members who are willing to serve as guardian but who.require a period
of support. Providing this support will remove the need for a public guardian in these cases
and will save the^State from paying the cost of a pemnanent public guardianship.

Additionally, approval of these agreements allows the vendors to provide protection
services, ori a statewide basis, These agreements also carry out the requirements of RSA
135-C:60, RSA 171-A:10, II and RSA 161-F:52. The Contractors agree to seek
reimbursement from other payer sources, such as social security, when providing protection
sen/ices.

The attached Contracts include language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions, Item 3, that reserves the right to renew each contract for up to two (2) additional
years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of contracted
services and Governor and Executive Council approval. The Department continues to be
satisfied with the services provided by the vendors. The attached amendments exercise one
(1) year of renewal available for these contracts, leaving one (1) remaining year of renewal.

Should Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department will
be in violation of legislative mandates. Also, there may continue to be a waiting list for
individuals to receive public guardianship services. Additionally, should the request not be
approved, the financial ability of the vendors to continue providing services may be
compromised, which may greatly impact services to vulnerable individuals.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of funds: 2% Federal Funds from the Administration of Families, Department of
Health and Human Sen/ices, Social Services Block Grant, CFDA #93.667, Federal Award
Identification Number 1601NHSOSR75, and 98% General Funds.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program. ^

Respectfully submitted,

Katja S. Fox

Director

Approved by:\ v I ^
Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providirig opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.

n
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OS-d5^2*920010-7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEFT OF. HHS:BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, OIV OF
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Office of Public Guardian

S»ato Fiscal Year Class Tltlo Class Account Current Amount IncreasB/fDecreasel Revised Amount

2017

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $1,050,915.00 $0.00 $1,050,915.00

Subtotal S1.0S0.915.00 SO.OO S1.050.91S.00

Tri-Countv Corrununitv Action Proflram

State Recal Year Class jitfR Class Account Current Amount Increase/I Decreaeei Revised Amount

2017

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $421,607.50 $0.00 $421,607.50

Subfofaf $421,607.50 $0.00 $421,607.50

OS.85.92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHSlBEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF, DIV OF
BEHAVIORAL H^LTH. LEGAL-GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Office of Public Guardian -

gtato Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Currant Amount IncraaseyrDacreasel Revised Amount

2018

Contrads for Program
Services

102-500731 SI .642.888.20 SO.OO $1,642,688.20

2019

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $0.00 $1,879,921.50 $1,879,921.50

Subtotal $1,842,668.20 $1,679,921.50 S3.52Z609.70

Tri-Countv Communltv Action Program

State Rscal Year Clfss fllle Class Account Currant Amount Incraase/fDecreasei Revised Amount

2018

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $648,033.70 $0.00 $648,033.70

2019

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $0.00 $699,462.00 $699,482.00

Subtofaf S648.033.70 S699.482.00 $1,347,515.70

05-9S-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS:ELDERLY • ADULT SERVICES.

GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT ^

Office of Public Guardian

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Amount Increase/IDecroase) Rovlsod Amount

2017

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500734 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2018

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500734 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2019

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500734 SO.OO $100,000.00 $100,000.00

Subtotal $200,000.00 sioo.ooaoo $300,000.00

Grand Total $3,983,444.40 $Z679.403.SO $6,642,847.90
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the

.  Guardianship Services Contract

This 2"*^ Amendment to the Guardianship Services Contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2")
dated this 1*' day of May, 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State". Or "Department") and Office of Public
Guardian (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business
at 2 Plllsbury Street, Suite 400, Concord, NH. 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2016 (Item #21), and subsequently amended on September 27, 2017 (Item #18), the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the payment schedules and
terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the State
may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the
parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the terms of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 Gehbfal Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2019.

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.8 Price Limitation to read:

$4,873,724.70-

3. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3, Scope of Work Applicable to All Guardianship
Services, Subsection 3.19 as follows:

3.19 The Contractor agrees that If the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage, or disposition of data on behalf of DHHS including substance use
disorder (SLID) data created by a Part 2 provider, the Contractor shall maintain the data
subject to the requirements stated in 45 CFR Part 2.

4. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Sectiori 6, Scope of Services - Technical Assistance,
Subsection 6.4 as follows:

6.4 The Contractor shall provide technical assistance for up to ten (10) private guardians per
year.

5. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Subsection 3.1, and replace
with the following:

3.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the person
services or over the estate services to persons served under this Agreement shall be

OfTice of Public Guardian
Amendment #2

SS-2017-BMHS-02-GUARO-01 Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

$6.82 per ward, per day. for up to 755 clients whose guardianship sen/Ices are requested
by the Department's Bureaus of Mental Health Services and Developmental Services.

3.1.1 The Department will reimburse the Contractor at $6.82 per ward per day when the
Contractor provides guardianship over the person.

3.1.2 The Department will reimburse the Contractor at $6.82 per ward per day when the
Contractor provides guardianship over the estate.

3.1.3 In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the person and the
estate of a ward, the Department will reimburse the contractor for each service in
accordance with 3.1.1 and 3.1.2 above.

5. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Subsections 3.2 and 3.3, and
replace with the following:

3.2. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance for up to ten (10) private guardians per
year as specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6, Scope of Services -
Technical Assistance, Subsection 6.4, at no cost to the Department.

3.3 The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training to area agency, mental health
and elderly and adult agency staff and probate court personnel shall be $60.00, not to
exceed the amount of $500.00 per State Fiscal Year.

7. Delete Exhibit B. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Subsection 4.2, and replace
with the following:

4.2. The Contractor may be compensated for time spent traveling and appearing in the Circuit
Court-Probate Division preceding appointment.

4.2.1. The Contractor will be reimbursed at an hourly rate of $60.00, to be billed using
a six (6) minute unit by submitting a monthly invoice that details the actual time
spent

4.2.2, The maximum biliabie amount for each case preceding appointment shall be
$300.00 per case.

8. Delete Exhibit K (dated 032917) and replace with Exhibit K (dated 04042018).

Remainder of, the page left intentionally blank.

Office of Public Guardian
Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Date Katja S. Fox

Director

Office of Public Guardian

Date Nam^^
Title: RzesiCSeNir

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of XiAoJ/JMpslv'hCrCountv of on before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Identified directly dbove, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the
capacl^ indicated above.

MARY K. RAULSTON, Nota^ PubOc
I

Slgnatur^of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
My Commission Expires^

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

Office of Public Guardian

Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Name;

itie:Title
hDate

1 hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Offlce of PubUc Ouardlan

Amendment #2
SS-2017-BMHS-02-GUARD-01 Page 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. V^th regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business assodate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurarice Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incidenf means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 ExhlljilK ContractorlniHals '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Infomiation' (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's ider\tity, such as their name, sodal security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blometric records, etc.,
atone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

10. "Protected Health information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor )must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V4. Last update 04.04.2016 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by iaw, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the tenns of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Sen/Ice. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and >vhen sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as SecOre File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will-be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

UPS
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New Hampshire Departmeht of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vuinerabllity of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. if the Contractor will maintain any Confidential information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NiST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy ail hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless othen/vise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecycie, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destmction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security Rareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be subcontracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security

'  expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s}. Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Assodate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Sun/ey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be' completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundan'es of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any. security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

OB
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

1Z Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in a!) other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a ieve) and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical ̂safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doltArendor/index.htrn
for the Department of Informafa'on Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of Its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is fumished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PF! are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvpted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. in ail other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and.
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party appiication.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
lime that the Contractor leams of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agen'c/s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to detennine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Infocmation

Security Requirements cr iC
Page B of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, If so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

■ DHHSlnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfricer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSlnformationSecurityOfnce@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurltyOfnce@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Ofncer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Innate
OHHS Irtformation

Security Requirements f iC 1^.
Page9of9 Oate_ZllfiJ?



JefTrey A. Meyers
Connlssiotier

Katjt S. Fos
Direetor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

BVREA V OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.5000 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5000

Fax: 603-271-5058 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.SOV

August 23. 2017

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
Bureau of Mental Health Services, to enter into Amendments to sole source Agreements with the two
Vendors, listed below, to increase the per ward, per day rate and number of clients for whom public
guardianship services may be provided, by increasing the price limitation by $818,300.40, from
$3,145,045 to an amount not to exceed $3,963,444.40. effective October 1, 2017 or upon the date of
Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, with no change to the end date of June
30, 2018. 6.4%Federal Funds, 93.6®/& General Funds.

Summary of Contract Amounts by Vendor;

Vendor Location

Current

Budget
Amount

Increase /

(Decrease) Revised Amount

Office of Public Guardian Concord. NH $2,301,830 $591,973.20 $2,893,803.20

Tri-County Community
Action Program Berlin, NH $843,215 $226,426.20 $1,069,641.20

Grand Total $3,145,045 $818,399.40 $3,963,444.40

t:S^
V

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2018 with the authority to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified, without approval from
Governor and Executive Council.

See attachment for financial details.

EXPLANATION

These Agreements are sole source because Revised Statues Annotated (RSA) 547-B
establishes the Public Guardianship and Protection Program for guardianship services to be provided
as required by RSA 135-C:60 and 171-A:10. RSA ̂ 7-B:6 requires the Department to contract with
one or more organizations that the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as a public
guardianship and protection program. The Office of Public Guardian and Tri-County Community Action
Program are the only organizations the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as public
guardianship and protection programs.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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Approval of these Amendments will allow the Contractors to continue to provide public
guardianship services to existing wards, while also increasing the capacity to provide the same
services to more wards. In the past year, there has been a waiting list for services provided under this
contract and by increasing the amount of wards to be served the current waiting Ijst can be eliminated.
Over the last several years, the costs to the Contractors for providing public guardianship services
have increased, however the contract amounts have remained the same. In an effort to alleviate the
financial strain on the Contractors, the Legislature approved a rate increase for State Fiscal Year 2016.
This increase in funding will enable the Contractors to continue to be financially viable and continue to
be able to provide services.

The Contractors provide guardianship services statewide for up to 1072 persons with mental
illness or developmental disabilities and to Incapacitated adults who are abused, neglected or exploited
leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their inability to provide for their own food, shelter,
health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs. These services are needed to meet the State's
statutory obligations to safeguard Incapacitated persons who are in state institutions as well as in
community mental health and developmental service programs statewide. The emphasis in providing
such services will be to ensure that the guardianships are maintained and limited in accordance with
the standards embodied in RSA 464-A.

These Agreements also provide mentoring and training services. Mentoring services are
provided to family members who are willing to serve as guardian but who require a period of support.
Providing this support will obviate the need for a public guardian in these cases and will save the State
from paying the cost of a permanent public guardianship.

Additionally, approval of these Agreements will allow the Contractors to provide protection
services, on a statewide basis. These Agreements .also carry out the requirements of RSA 135-C:60,
RSA 171-A:10. II and RSA 161-F:52. The Contractors agree to seek reimbursement from other payer
sources, such as social security, when providing protection services.

The attached Contracts Include language that reserves the right to renew each contract for up
to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department will be In
violation of the legislative mandate. Also, there may continue to be a waiting list for individuals to
receive public guardianship services. Additionally, should the request not be approved, the financial
ability of the Contractors to continue to be able to provide the services may be compromised, which
may greatly impact services to vulnerable individuals.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 6.4% Federal Funds from the Administration of Families, Department of
Health and Human Services, Social Services Block Grant. CFDA #93.667, Federal Award Identification
Number 1601NHSOSR75, and 93.6% General Funds. /



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
artd the Honorable Council "

Page 3 0/3 ,

In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:
sffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner .

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities fordHzens to achieve health and independence.



Financial Detail

0545-92»S20010>7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHStBEHAVlORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV
OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. LECAL-GUAROIANSNIP SVCS

Office ol Public Guertflan
■

S^te Fiscal Year Class JKfe Class Account Budoat Amount
IncreRse/IDecreaset Raviaed Budoet

2017

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $1,050,915.00 50.00
$1,050,915.00

Sub-total $1,050,915.00 $0.00 S1.050.915.00

Trt-Coonly Community Action Program

Slnte Fiscal Year Class JItle Class Account Budoet Amount
Increase/IDeereasel

Amount

Revised Budoet

Amount

2017

Contracts for Program
Services

102-800731 $421,607.50 $0.00
$421,607.50

\ Sub-total $421,607.50 $0.00 $421,607.50

05-9$-92-92l)010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHSiBEKAVIORAL HEALTH DtV OF. DIV
OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Office of Public Oudfdlan

Increase/! Decreasel
/

Revised Budoet

Amount Amount

2018

Contracts for Program

Services
102-50073r $1,050,915.00 $591,973.20

$1,642,688.20

Sub-total $1,050,915.00 $591,973.20 $1,642,888.20

Trt-Countv Communiiv Action Proflram

increaae/IDeeroase) Revised Budoet

Amount Amount

2018

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $421,607.50 $226,426.20

$648,033.70

Sub-total $421,607.50 $226,426.20 $648,033.70

05-96-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHStELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES.

GRANTS TO LOCALS. SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Office ol Public Guardian

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Budoet Amount
Incraase/fOeereaset

Amount

Revised Budoet

Amount

2017

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500734 5100.000.00 50.00
$100,000.00

2018

Contracts tar Program
Services

102-500734 $100,000.00 $0.00
$100Jp0.0Q

Sub-total $200,000.00 $0.00 $200,000.00

Grand Total $3,145,045.00 $818,399.40 $3,963,444.40

Page lof 1



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

- 27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/ doit

Denis Gould

Commissioner

August31,2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner v
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into amendments to sole source agreements with the Office
of Public Guardian and Tri-County Community Action Program, as described below and referenced as
DoIT No. 2018-080.

The purpose of this amendment is to provide increased capacity for guardianship services v
statewide for persons with mental illness or developmental disabilities and to
incapacitated adults. These agreements also provide mentoring and training services.

The amount of these amendments is $818,300.40, increasing the price limitation from
$3,145,045 to an amount not to exceed $3,963,444.40, effective October I, 2017 or uptm
the date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, with no change
to the end date of June 30,2018.

A copy of this leaer should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

S.\nccrcly

Denis Gouiet

DG/mh

DoIT #2018-080

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow'



New Hampshtre Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment 01 to the

Guardianship Servicos Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Guardianship Services Contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment 1') dated this
16^ day of August. 2017. is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Sen/Ices (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Departmenr) and Office of Public Guardian (hereinafter referred
to as 'Ihe Contractor"}, a non^pront corporation with a place of business at 2 Pillsbury Street. Suite 400, Concord.
NH. 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Courtcil on June
29, 2016 (item 021). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specifled in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specifted; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the payment schedules and terms and
conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Agreement may be amended only by written
Instrument executed by ttie,parties thereto and approved by the Governor and Executive Council;

WHEREAS, the perties agree to increase the per ward, per day rate and the number of clients whose
guardianship sendees are requested by the Department's Bureaus of Mental Health Services and Developmental
Services and increase the price limr^tion.

NOW THEREFORE. In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained in the
.Contract and set forth herein, the perties hereto agree as follows:

1. Add to General Provisions. Form P-37. Block 1.6 Account Number the fcdiowing:
05-95-92-920010-41140000-102-500731 »

2. Amend General Provi»orts. Form P-37. Block 1.8 Price Limitation to read: $2,893,803.20

3. Delete In its entirety Exhibit 8, Section 3.1 through 3.1.2 and replace with the following:

3.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the person services or
over the estate services to persons served under this Agreement shall be $6.81 per ward, per
day, for up to 740 clients whose guardianship services are requested by the Department's
Bureaus of Mental Health Services and Developmental Services.

3.1.1. The Department will reimburse the Contractor at $8.81 per ward per day when the
Contractor provides guardianship over the person.

3.1.2. The Department wiU reimbur^ the Contractor at $6.81 per ward per day when the
Contractor provides guardianship over the estate.

4. Add Exhibit K

Remainder of the page left intentionally blank.

once of Public Guardian

Amendment #1

S8'2017-6MHS-02-GUAKCM)1 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date KaQa S. Fox
Director

Office of Public Guardian

Date
-Bjjq.

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of _ a/A . County of \ on before the undersigned officer.
personally appeared the person identirred directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name Is
signed atMve, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity Indicate above.

Signature of No^ Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

t\/ly Commission Expires:

MARY K. RAULSTON. Notary PublicMy Commisaton Expires j^j

Office of Public Guardion

SS-2017-eMHS-02^UAR&01
AntendmcntPI

Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

nd

Name

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Gover
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: : (date of meeting)

Executive Council of the State

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

TItJe:

Ofnce of Pubfic Guardian

SS-2017-8MHS-02-GUAR(M) 1

Amendment #1

PaQ6 3of3



NewHampshIre Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Conftdentiai Information; tn addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
RFP, the Department's Confidential Information includes any and ad information owned or manned by the
State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of perfonning contracted services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition Is governed by state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Personal Heallh Information (PHI), Personally Idenftfiable Infonnation (Pll), Federal Tax Infomiation (FTl).
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential
information.

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department contidential infomiation collected;
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectations include:

2.1. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential Information tiiroughout the
biformation lifecycle. where applicabie, (from creation, transformation, use, storage and secure
destruction) regardless of tiie media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.2. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that collect transmit or
store Department confidential information where applicable.

2.3. Encrypt at a minimum, any Department confidential data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops. USB
drives, as well as when transmitted over public networks like the Internet using current Industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2.4. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect potential security events that can
Impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.5. Provide security awareness and education for its'employees, contractors and sub-contractors in support
of protecting Department confidential information

2.6. Maintain a documented breach notrficatiori and incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security inddent, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the

State of New Hampshire network.

2.6.1.'Breach' shaD have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations. 'Computer Security (nddent' shall have the same meaning 'Computer
Security Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications will be sent to the followrng email addresses:

2.6.1.1. DHHSChleflnforTnationOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

2.6.1.2. OHHSlnfbfmationSecuritvOfRce@dhhs.nh.aov

2.7. If the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on Hs systems (or Its sub-contractor systems), the
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or contract
termination; and will obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
vendor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations.
When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be rendered

^  unrecoverable via a secure wipe program In accordance Industry-accepted standards for secure

ExtAH K - DKHS InformsUon Security Requirements Contractor IniUab

CUrDHH&032917 Page 1 of 2 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the mediajfor example, degaussing). The vendor will
document and certify in writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the
Department upon request The.wrttten certificalion will include all details necessary to demonstrate data
has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and professional standards for

retention requirements wtU be jointly evaluated by the State and vendor prior to destruction.

2.6. If the vendor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for
State of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an internal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements.

3. The vendor will worti with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New htampshire and
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department systemfs). Agreements wlQ
be completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-c<^ractors prior to system access being
authorized. '

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103, the vendor will
work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any chariges in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an alternate time
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey t}e completed when the scope of the engagement between the Depar^ent and the vendor changes.
The vendor will not store..knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unless prior express written consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member within the Department.

ExTiibir K - DHHS Information Seairlty Requiremcnta Conlraclor IrdQals

CU/DHHSra32917 Page 2 of 2 Date



Jeffrey A. Meyers
CooniBaiotMr

Kaija S. Poi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH O.VOI
iOi-nutW I40M52-3345 EU. 94U

Fes: 6(I.V3T14431 TDD Accns: I-XOO-735.29M MWH.dhhi.nh.gov

C^j

June 3. 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. NH 03301

Sole ScurcL

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Behavioral Health. Bureau
of Mental Health Services, to enter into' sole source Agreements v/ilh two Vendors, listed below, to
provide public guardianship sendees, in an amount not to exceed $3,145,045, effective July 1. 2016
through June 30, 2018, upon approval by Governor and Executive Council. 6.4%Federal, 93.6%
General.

Summary of Contract Amounts by Vendor:

Vendor Location Amount

Office of Public Guardian Concord. NH $2,301,830

Tri-County Community Action
Program Berlin. NH $843,215

Grand Total $3,145,045

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2017 and ariticipated to be available in 2018. upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with authority to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and iustih^, without
approval from Governor and Executive Council.

See attachment for financial details.
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EXPLANATION

These Agreements are sole source because Revise Statues Annotated (RSA) 547-B
establishes the Public Guardianship and Protection Program for guardianship services to be provided
as required by RSA 135-C and 171-A RSA 547-6:6 requires the Department to contract with one or
more organizations that the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as a public guardianship
and protection program. The Office of Public Guardian and Tri-County Community Action Program are
the or^y organizations the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as public guardianship and
protection programs.

Approval of these Agreements will allow the Contractors to provide for guardianship services
statewide for up to 1057 persons with mental illness or developmental disabilities, and to incapacitated
adults who are abused, neglected or exploited, leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their
inability to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs.
These sen/ices are needed to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard incapacitated persons
who are in state institutions as well as (n- community mental health and developmental sen/ice
programs statewide. The emphasis in providing such services will be to ensure that the guardianships
are maintained and limited In accordance with the standards embodied in RSA 464 A.

These Agreements also provide mentoring and training services. Mentoring services are
provided to family members who are willing to serve as guardian but wHo require a period of support
Providing (his support will obviate the need for a public guardian In these cases and will thereby save
the State from paying the cost of a permanent public guardianship.

Additionally, approval of these Agreements will allow the Contractors to provide protection
services, on a statewide basis. These Agreements also carry out the requirements of RSA 135 C: 60.
•RSA 171 A: 10, II and RSA 161-F:52. The Contractors agree to seek reimbursement for other payer
sources such as soda! security when providing protection services.

The attached Contracts Include language that reserves the n'ght to renew each contract for up to
(wo (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, the Department
would be out of compliance with the requirements of RSA 135-C: 60, RSA 17,1-A: 10. It, and RSA 161-
F:52 and persons with mental illness, developmental disabilities and incapacitated adults who are
abused, neglected or exploited, leaving thenn at risk of substantial harm b^ause of their inability to
provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of funds: 6.4% Federal Funds from the Administration of Families, Department of
Health and Human Services, Social Services Block Grant, CFDA #93.667, Federal Award Identification
Number 1601NHSOSR75. and 93.6% General Funds.



Her Excellency, Margaret Wood Hassan
and Her Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted

-i-><
Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by;
yA eyers

iissioner

TTw OepartrnQftt ot Heatlh and Human SarvKas' Mission is to/oh communiVos and lamilies
In providing opportunHios for citizens to ecTtieve health and independence.



! Flnjncijl Detail

05-65-92-920010-7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS;BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH DIVOF. DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUARDIANSHIPSVCS

Office of Public Guardian

Slaw Flacal Year Class Tide Class Account Budoet Amount

2017

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $1,050,915.00

2018

Contracts forProgram
Services

102-500731 $1,050,915.00

Sub-total $2,101,630.00

Trl-Countv Community Action Prooram

State Fiscal Year Class Titlo Class Account Budoet Amount

2017

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $421,607.50

2016

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $421,607.50

Sub-total $643,215.00

05-95^8^61010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS:ELOERLY - ADULT
SERVICES. GRANTS TO LOCALS. SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Sta^^ Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Budoet Amoun^

2017

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500734 $100,000.00

2018

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500734 $100,000.00

Sub-total $200,000.00

Grand Total $3,145,045.00

Page 1 ol1



Subject: Public Guardianship Services fSS-2017-BMHS-02-GUARD-0h
FORM NUMBER (venion 5/8/15)

Notice: I'his Bgreemeni and all ofitsdttachmenia shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council Tor approvul. Any inrormatlon thai is private, conHdentlal or proprietary must
be clearly idcntined to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The Slate orNcw Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as Tollows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I Stale Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

12 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03J01-3857

1.3 Contraclor Name

Of^ce ofPubllc Guardian

1.4 Contraclor Address

2 Pillsbury Street^ Suite 400
Concord, NH. 03301

1.3 Contractor Phone

Number

603- 224-8041

1.6 Account Number

03.95-92-9200I0.7002.I02-

500731; 05-95^8-4ai010-
9255-102-500734

1.7 Completion Dale

June 30, 2018

1.8 Price Limitation

$2,301,830.

1.9 ContractingOnicerforSlaieAgency
Eric B. BorHn, Director

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 wledgement: Slate of /Jj4- .County of fAfvyt rW ACK ̂

On ^ before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified In block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. 11, and acknowledged (hoi s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12. '

1.13.1 .Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Gpice

rSaalj 0
1.13.2 Name and Title ofNoiary or Justice of the Peace MARY K. RAULSTON, Notary Puth

My Commission Expires July 13.20i c

1.(4 State Agency Signature

Date:

1.15 Name and Title cfState Agency Signatory

rtnCr^/ojapplicable)1.16 Approval by IhcN.H. Deportment of Administration, Division of Personner^/
I

Bv: Director, On:

1.17 Approval bi^lhe Attorney Gcncrol (Form, Substance and Execution) ///applicable)

By: / Vfllh
1.18 Approval by the Governor and Cxccu;

By:

lU
TYcCouncir \. 1, \

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State orNevr Hampshire, acting
through the agency identifted in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor idenliflcd in block IJ ("Contruclor") to perform,
and the Contraptor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described In the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Scfviccsl.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision ofthisAgrccmcmio the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
ExecuUvc Council of the Slate ofNew Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations oflhe parties
hercundcr, shall b^me cfTecltve on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement a.s indicated In
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, In which case
the Agreement shall become clTcciivc on the date the
Agreement is ̂ gned by the State Agency as shown In block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 Iflhe Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Enfeclivc Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not'
become elfectlve, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contrucior must complete si! Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of e reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the Slate shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, Ifever.and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other aeeount
to the Account identided in block 1.6 in (he event funds in that

Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contioct price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc idenliHed and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which Is Incorporated herein by reference. •
5.2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7*c or any other provision of taw.
5.4 Nocwiihstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwilhsiartding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of ell payments authorized, or actually
mude hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set fonh in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shuil comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. Thi.s may include the requirement (o titillze auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with commtinicalion
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contraclor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
.handicap, sc.xual orientation, or national origin and will take
afllrmutive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 I f this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Stales, the Contractor shall comply with ail the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department ofLabor (41
C.P.R. Part 60), tind with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate of New Hampshire or the United Stales issue tu
implement these regulations, 'lite Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for (he purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulaUons and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shull at Its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized In writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of si.x <6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not pamil any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom It is engaged In a combined cITon to
perform the Services ic hire, any person who Is a Stale
employee or ofdcial, who Is materially involved in the
procurement, adminisualion or performance of this
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Agrcctnenu This provision shall survive icrmtnulion of ihis
Agreement.
7.3 'llic Contracting oniccr specified in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shell he the Siolc^s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the inlerpretallon of this Agreement,
(he Contracting Officer's decision shall be tinnl for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hercunder
("Cvcni of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfoctorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder; und/or
8-1.3 failure to perform uny other covmant, term or condition
of this Agreemcnu
8.2 Upon the occurrcnec of uny Event of Default, the Stale
may take any one, or more, or ull, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a UTiiicn notice specifying the Rveni
ofUcfauli and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence ofa greater or lesser spcciUcaiion of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event orDclbull is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement. cITcclivc iut>
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor & written notice specifying the Event
of DefauU and suspending ut) payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contruci price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor diuing the
period from the date of such notice until such time us the Suile
deicmtines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Dcfuult

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 SCI off against any other obligations the Siulc may owe to
the Cunlroctor any damages the Stale suffers by reason of uny
Event of Ocfault; and/ur
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue nny ofiLs
remedies el law or in equity, or both.

9. data/access/confidentiality/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
mromtationund things developed or obtatned during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
tiles, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reprodueiions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
ail whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Siute or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shod be the property of the Slate, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for ony reason.
9.3 Cunridentlality ofdaiu shall be governed by N.il. USA
chapier 9 i-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of (he State.
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10. TERMINATION, in the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reiLSon other than the completion of the
Servlce.% the Contmetor shall deliver to the Contracting
OlVicer, not later than fidccn (I j) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of icrminallon. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies ofthe Termination
Report shall be identical to those ofany Final Report
deserihcd in the attached EXHIDlT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent eontraelor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any ofiis
oHleers, employees, agents or members shall have uuihofily to
hind the Stole or receive any bencnis, workers' compensation
or other cinolumenis provided by the State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer uny
interest in.ihis Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent ofthe State. None of the Services shall be

subeoniracted by the Contractor without the prior wiillen
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION, "{'heContractor shall defend,

indemnify and hold harmless (he Slate, ilsofncers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suD'cicd by the
State, its olTiecrs and employees, arxl any and all eluims.
liuhilicics or penalties asserted against the State, its ofliecrs
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, orising out of (or which may be
claimed to ̂ ise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contnincd shall be deemed to con.sliiutc a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the .State, which Immunity is hereby
reserved to the Slate, 'fhis covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

,14. insurance,
14.1 fhe Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
muiflUin in force, ond shall require any subcunlracior or
a.viignec to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liabilily insuranccuguinst all
claims ofbodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of less than $) .OOO.OOOper occurrence artd 52.000.000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
pr\)perty subject to subpurugroph 9.2 herein. In an amount not
leas than 8094 ofthe whole replacement value of the property,
14.2'Che policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be ott policy forms and cndortiements approved (or use in Ibe
State ofNcw Vlampshirc by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and Issued by insurers licensed in the Slate of New
Ilampshiru.

®  "N P I
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U.3 The Contractor shaU furnish to the Contracting OfTiccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certincaie(s)
of Insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cenificatefs) of
Insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtincate(s) of
insurartcc and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificolefs) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring Ute insurer to
provide the Contracting Omccr Identincd in block t.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION,

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
cenlHcs and warrants thai the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of NJ4. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensalion
/S.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28t-A. Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer idcnlincd in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner describ^ in N.H. RSA chapter 281'A and any
applicable renewal(5) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein ̂  reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State ofNew Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this AgreemenL

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Oefaoil shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Defaull, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Slate to enforce each and ail of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Defaull
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mall, postage prepaid, In a United
States Post DBlce addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

IB. AMENDMENT.This Agreement may be amended,
waived ordischarged only by an instrument In writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Cbuncil of the State ofNew Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws ofthe State ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit ofthe parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not Intend (o
benefit any third parties and (his Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout (he Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words conuined
therein shall in noway be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the Interpretation, construction or meaning ofthe
provisions of (his Agre^eni.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are Incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any slate or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in lull force and
elTcct. .

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may '
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Ouardlanship Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure

meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten <10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the e)(tent future legislative action by the New

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith. -

2. Definitions
2.1. Contractor means the public guardianship and protection program appointed by

the Court to serve as guardian of the person and/dr estate

2.2. Ward means the person for whom guardian of the person and/or estate has been
appointed by the Circuit Court - Probate Division

3. Scope of Work Applicable to all Guardianship Services
3.1. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protectlor) services to

safeguard the liberty and well-being of persons who because of functional
limitations, have suffered, are suffering, or are Dkely to suffer substantial harm
due to an inability to provide for persor^al needs for food, clothing, shelter, health
care, safety or an Inability to manage their properly or financial affairs.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection services to
persons at risk of harm to the person, estate or both the person and estate whom

. the State of New Hampshire has a responsibility to safeguard pursuant to RSA
135-0:60. RSA 161-F:52. and RSA 171.A:10. II.

3.3. The Contractor will provide public guardianship services to persons in Section 3.2
statewide In accordance with Revised Statues Annotated 464-A and 547-B that
indude appoinlments as guardian, co guardian, conservator, or temporary
guardian of the person and/or estate of a ward.

3.4. The Contractor will provide protection services to persons in Section 3.2
statewide that Include those actions that are necessary to carry out the duties as
duly designated representative or protective payee. cllentTepresentalive. attorney
in fact. Of other similar agent, as prescribed by applicable law, rule, or agreement.

3.5. The Contractor agrees to provide services to any person under this Agreement
only upon receiving prior approval of the Slate through the Department's Office of
Client and Legal Services or the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services Adult
Protective Services Administrator or designee of the Department.

SS-2017-BMHS-O2-GUARCWI1 ExhIMA Contractor Iniiials
Offica of r>ubDc Cuaro'on ^ r?,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

Exhibit A

3.6. The Contractor agrees to provide services to all persons approved lor services In
accordance with Section 3.8.

3.7. The Contractor shall refer the client to the New Hampshire Disabilities Rights
Center, Inc., the New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney when the

Contractor Is referred a client from the Department's Office of Client and Legal
Services that the Contractor believes guardianship and protectlon.sennces to be

inappropriate, so that an administrative appeal or other appropriate legal action
can be taken on behalf of the clleht.

3.8. The Contractor agrees to direct to the Department's Office of Client and Legal
Services any referrals of persons made to the Contractor for guardianship and
protection services from, but not limited to, the Glencliff Home for the Elderly,
New Hampshire Hospital, and community agencies in the mental health system.

, developmental services system, and the aduK and elderly system.

3.9. The Contractor agrees that they will not be reimbursed by the Department for
services In this Agreement In the event the Contractor provides guardianship and
protection services to persons who have not been screened and approved by the
Department's Office of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of Elderly & Adult
Services.

3.9.1. In instances not within the control of the Contractor where guardianship
appointments were made without approval granted from the Department's
Office of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of Elderly & Adult Senrices,
the Contractor may receive relrnbursement for guardianship services
when the Contractor can provide documentation satisfactory to the
Department that such circumstances occurred and the Contractor made
reasonable efforts to decline such appointments.

3.9.2. The Contractor shall include documentation of reasonable efforts made to

decline such appointments with its monthly Invoices. If the
documentation provided by the Contractor is satisfactory to the
Department, the Department may make payments to the Contractor for
appointments made without approval as long as the wards appointed to
the Contractor are persons for whom the State has responsibility to
safeguard pursuant to RSA 135 C: 60, RSA 171 A;10. II and RSA 161-
F:52.

3.10. The Contractor .shall provide guardianship and protection services to persons
under this Agreement, in accordance with the "Standards of Practice' and "A
Model Code of Ethics for Guardians" developed by the National Guardianship
Association.

3.10.1. Notwithstanding the ethics and standards for guardians cited in Section
3.10, for monthly visits, the Contractor shall at least make quarterly face
to face visits with the ward or more frequent visits as required in

SS-20l7-eMHS.02-6UARO-01 Exhibit A , Cofltractor ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

Exhibit A

individual circumstances, in. accordance with Contractor's accepted

practice.

3.10.2. The Contractor shall attempt to have a video conference with the ward

In the instance the ward la out of the State of New Hampshire for an
extended period of time and it would not be feasible for the Contractor
to see the ward face to face on the basis outline in Section 3.10.1

above.

3.10.3. The Contractor shall make at least telephone contact with the vrard

should the technology for a video conference not be available.

3.10.4. The Contractor.may suspend face to face visits as required In Section
3.10.1 when the ward may be aggressive to the point of physical harm
to the Contractor. The Contractor shall suspend visits until an
alternative plan can be developed for the guardian to meet wiih the
ward while maintaining personal safety.

3.11. In any action brought in Circuit Court-Probate Division to limit or othenivise
reduce the scope of a guardianship over a person served under this
Agreement, the State agrees to appear with the Contractor where the State
agrees that II Is necessary to present the State's position on the action
proposed.

3.12. The Contractor agrees that no "direct services" shall be provided to persons
under this Agreement. Direct services include psychotherapyi case
management, transportation, financial aid, or other social services available
through state or other governmental or nonprofit agencies. <

3.13. The Contractor agrees to work closely with the Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services Adult Protection Social Workers for a period of months, to be
determined by the level of need following a referral, to support the client's
trar«ltion from protection services provided by the State to guardianship
services provided by the Contractor. The Contractor agrees that the
Department's Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services. Adult Protection Service
Social Workers retains the case management function of the clients during the
transition period. .

3.14. The Contractor has responsibilities as an Independent decision-maker acting in
a fiduciary capacity with respect to the persons to be served under this
Agreement and the decisions to be made on behalf of such persons shall not
be directed or influenced by the State by any action taken under this
Agreement.

3.15. The Contractor may elect to subcontract for such services as may be
necessary to carry out guardianship and protection sen/ices under this
Agreement writh prior notification and approval of the State through the Office of

SS-2017^HS<a-GUARD^)1 BdilDttA Contractor Initials
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Ndw Hampshire Dspartmsnt of KeaKh and Human Services
Guardianship Services

Exhibit A

Client and Legal Sen/Ices or Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services of the
Department.

3.16. The Contractor may provide guardianship and protection services to persons
other than those who are referred pursuant to this Agreement. However, the
Contractor agrees that pursuant to RSA 547 8:7, no funds provided under this
Agreement shall be expended for such persons. Furthermore, the Contractor

agrees to maintain sufficient records, which shall be subject to the
Department's examination and be Included as part of the Audit of Records
required in Section 3.9 to document that the funds received under tNs
Agreement are expended in accordance with this Agreement.

3.17. The Contractor shall accept and Investigate complaints from the Department
regarding services performed under this Agreement. The Contractor shall
investigate the circumstances pertaining to the complaint and shall respond In
writing within thirty (30) days to the Department concerning the results of the
Investigation. The Contractor shall provide on a quarterly basis, a report of all
written complaints filed against the Contractor and shall explain how each such
complaint was resolved.

3!18. The Contractor recognizes the inherent value of the opinions of the wards they
serve, if staff at any institution or developmental sen/ices or mental health or
elderly and adult agency within the Junsdiction of the Department or any entity
providing funding to the Department distributes a survey, questionnaire or
similar Instrument deigned to gauge consumer satisfaction of wards in
reference to the services received by the ward Including the services provided
by the Contractor under this Agreement the Contractor agrees to allow their
wards to participate in such measures of consurher satisfaction unless the

-  Contractor indicates In writing to the Department the reasons why a particular
ward should not be allowecf to so participate.

4. Scope of Services - Guardianship Services
4.1. The Contractor shall provide the following functions for individuals so named by

the Circuit Court Probate Division as wards of the Contractor. This listing and

description is not intended to restate existing rules and regulations already in
place, but rather its purpose Is to clarify the relationship of the Contractor with
respect to Its wards who need and are receiving services In the developmental
services, mental health, and/or elderly and adult systems. The Contractor shall
perform the following functions, but not limited to:

4.1.1. Making decisions regarding the residential and day placement of the
ward, utilizing the standards of least restrictive environment and the

. best Interests of the Individual ward.

4.1.2. insuring that a!) legally necessary steps are taken to enable the
Individual ward to receive comprehensive evaluations and
comprehensive treatment and services.

SS-2017-8UHS-02-GU^(MI1
OfSct or Public Ouartlian
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guerdlanship Services

Exhibn A

4.1.3. Advocating for and requesting appropriate services for the individual
ward utilizing the individual sennce/treatment planning process following
established Department standards and law.

4.1.4. Being available to give or withhold consent to proposed medical care.

4.1.5. Being availabie to give or withhold consent, where such is legally
n^essary. to proposed professional care, counsel, treatment or service
Including, but not limited to behavioral programs, significant changes in

individual service/treatment plans, and, other dinically or legally
significant treatment or services.

4.1.6.- Insuring that the ward's civil rights are protected within the context of
the decision the guardian is making on behalf of the ward and refraining
from unwarranted intrusion into the life of the ward.

4.1.7. Assuming responsibility for any and all other duties, as are stated in
RSA 464 A or as are required by the Circuit Court Probate Division.

4.1.8. If guardian of the estate, being available to make all decisions as
required by RSA464-A;26

4.2. The Contractor agrees that all of the responsibilities referenced in 4.1. above are
contingent upon the actual .authority granted In each individual court order
specifying the extent and scope of guardianship for each individual.

4.3. The Contractor agrees to be kept aware of the facts or circumstances which may
impact the decisions to perform the functions specified in Section 4.1.

4.3.1. The Contractor shall maintain significant and appropriate contact with
each ward so to assure that Contractor's efforts best reflect the
personal preferences, values, and desires of the ward to the fullest
extent possible In order to make Informed decisions on behalf of their
wards.

4.3.2. The Contractor shall seek out information.about the ward or the ward's
situation so that they are fully aware of all risks and benefits of any
proposed course of action, as well as any alternatives that may exist.

4.3.3. The Contractor, when providing guardianship of the person shall
maintain regular contact with their wards In order to comply with the
standards and ethics in Section 3.10.

-4.3.4. The Contractor agrees that each guardian has the obligation to become
as familiar as possible with his or her ward by having the personal
contact required with the ward and other Important and signlfirant
people in the ward's life. The Contractor may meet this obligation
through dose interaction with the ward's case manager and others who
share a responsibility for providing for the needs of the Individual.

SS-2017-BMHS-02*GUAnD-01 ExhibllA Contrattor Initials, ̂
OfrceofPuttfeGuafdian p,g,5o(7



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

Exhibit A

5. Guardianship and Protection Services
5.1. The Contractor is obligated to accept all protection services cases referred to the

Contractor by the Department's Office of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of
Elderly & Adult Senrlces. The Department shall make every attempt to obtain a
Release of Information from the proposed client with the Contractor except where
prohibited from doing so by law. Also, to the extent possible, the Contractor shad
be Involved In the screening process for protection cases. If the Contractor
believes that the appointment of a protective payee or representative payee Is

inappropriate, the Contractor may refer the client to the New Hampshire

Disabilities Rights Center, Inc., New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other
attorney so that an administrative appeal or other appropriate legal action can be
taken on behalf of the client.

5.2. For persons referred to Contractor by the Department's Office of Client and

Legal Services pursuant to RSA 136-C:60 and RSA 171-A:10 II, the Contractor

agrees to serve the current total of 694 persons receiving guardianship services,
plus any new persons referred in accordance with Section 3.5 above. However,

the Contractor agrees to provide guardianship services for up to 725 cases
during the contract period. The Department shall provide the Contractor with

letters of approval for each new case assigned to the Contractor by the Office of
Client and Legal Services. The Contractor may bill for services when the
Contractor is actually appointed as the guardian by the Circuit Court-Probate
Division, except as provided In Exhibit B, Section 4.2

5.3. For persons referred to Contractor by the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services

pursuant to RSA 161-F:52. the Contractor agrees to provide guardianship
sen/ices for no more than forty-two (42) Individuals at any point in time during the
contract period. While the Department shall provide the Contractor with tetters of
approval for each new case assigned to the Contractor by the Bureau of Elderly
& Adult Services, the Contractor may not bill for services until the Contractor is

. actually appointed as guardian by the Circuit Courl-Probate Division.

6. Scope of Services - Technical Assistance
6.1. The Contractor may provide technical assistance to private guardians or training

to area agency or community mental health center whose staff provide direct
services to wards that are clients of the Department.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide the technical assistance or training described in
Section 6.1 upon receiving confirmation from the private guardian or (he agency
staff their approval from the Office of Client and Legal Services with the specified
number of hours for technical assistance or training.

6.3. In order to receive such technical assistance from the Contractor private
guardians must receive prior approval from the Office of Client and Legal
Services for a specified number of consultation hours.

SS-2017-eMHS-02-6UARO-0l
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7. Staffing
7.1.1. The Contractor shall provide sufftcient number of staff to adequately

carry out, (or all clients, all the duties required by statue, the letters of
authority, and the standards set forth in this document.

7.1.2. The Contractor shall have each guardian successfuily complete 20 or
more hours of orientation training and, complete 10 or more hours of
annual continuing education for each year of employment.

•  7.1.3. The Contractor shall report the number of professional continuing
education hours obtained by each guardian by August 1. of each year.

SS-2017'BMHS-02-GUARD-01 Exhibit A Contractor Initial.
Offica of Pubic Quardlan C ̂'2.7-

Pace 7 of 7 Data ,7 ^ '



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8,
for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement Is funded by the New Hampshire General Funds.
2.1. The Contractor agrees to provide the services In Exhibit A Scope of Services In

compliance with funding requirements.
3. Subject to availability of State funds, and in consideration for the satisfactory comple^on of
^ the services to be perfonned under this Agreement, the State shall pay the Contractor a per
diem per case rate approved by the Department's OfTice of Client and Legal Services for all
Bureau of Mental Health Services, Bureau of Developmental Services, and Ihe Bureau of
Elderly and Adult Services clients as follows:

3.1. The per diem reimbutsement rate for the provision of guardianship over the person
services or over the estate services to persons served under this Agreement shall be
$3.96 per ward, per day. for up to 725 clients whose guardianship services are
requested by the Depahrr^ent's Bureaus of Mental Health Services and Developmental
Services.

3.1.1. The Department will reimburse Ihe Contractor at $3.96 per ward per day when
the Contractor provides guardianship over the person.

3.1.2. The Department will reimburse the Contractor at $3.96 per ward per day when
the Contractor provides guardianship over the estate.

3.1.3. In the instance when the Contractor Is the guardian over the person and the
estate of a ward, the Department wDI reimburse the contractor for each service
In accordance with 3.1.1 and 3.1.2 above.

3.2. The hourfy reimbursement rate for the provision of technical assistance to private
guardians shall be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of $1,500.00.

3.3. The hourly reimbursement rale for the provision of training to area agency, menial
health and elderly and adult agency staff and probate court personnel shall be $60.00,
not to exceed the amount of $1,500.00.

3.4. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship ,over the p>erson
services or over the estate services to persons served under this Agreement shall be
$6.29, for up to 42 clients whose guardianship services are requested by the Bureau of
Elderly and Adutl Services.

3.4.1. The Department will reimburse the Contractor at $6.29 per ward per day when
the Contractor provides guardianship over the person.

3.4.2. The Department will reimburse the Contractor at $6.29 per ward per day when
the Contractor provides guardianship over the estate.

Of9c0 o1 Public Gusfdlin EjcftibH B Conlractof InltJali
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3.4.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the person and the
estate of a ward, the Departntent will reimburse the contractor for each service in
accordance with 3.4.1 and 3.4.2 above. ^

3.5. For clients referred for guardianship sen/ices by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services, the actual cost paid by Contractor for expenses Incurred fn the performance of
Contractors duties for guardianship over the estate under this Agreement, Including, but
not limited to, filing fees, bond costs and appraisal fees where no other source of
reimbursement exists, not to exceed $3,574.30.

4. Payment to the, Contractor for the provision of services to clients whose guardianship

services are rer^uested by the Bureaus of Mental Health Services and Developmental
Services will be made on a monthly basis subject to the following conditions:
4.1. The Contractor shall submit Invoices on a monthly basis In accordance with procedures

and instructions established by the Offtce of Client and Legal Services and provided to
the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit with the monthly invoice a list of clients
served during the month for which the invoice is being submitted. The Office of Client
and Legal Services shall pay the Contractor by multiplying the per diem rate times the
total number of days for each service provided durlng'the month to each eligible client

'  under this Agreement.

4.2. The Contractor may be compensated for work completed preceding appointment by the
Circuit Court-Probate Division via submission of a monthly Invoice detailing the actual
work completed and time used to complete the work.
4.2.1. The Contractor wiji be reimbursed at an hourly rate of $60, to be billed using a six

(6) minute/unit.
4.2.2. The blllable limit for each case In which work is completed preceding

appointment by the Circuit Court-Probate Division shall be $300 per case.
4.3. The per diem rate will be extended to the last day of the month following the month In

which the client dies or for whom guardianship service are terminated.

4.4. The Contractor agrees to provide a copy of the court notice to the Department with the
Invoice when the Contractor is appointed guardian of a person and/or estate and no
longer provides guardianship over the person and/or the estate. .

4.5. Invoices shall be due by the 15th ofthe month following the month In which services are
provided.

4.6. The Contractor shall review the cases referred by the Office of Client and Legal
Services monthly and move individuals to a different funding mechanism, If posslbtei to
allow more openings for addltlonal referrals. In all cases vrhere alternate funding
becomes available, the Contractor shall transfer the ward from the Office of Client and
Legal Services funded slot within sixty (60) days.

5. Payment to the Contractor for the provision of services to clients whose guardianship
services are requested by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services will be made on a
monthly basis subject to the following conditions:

Contractor initiateOffico of Public Guardian Er^lbitB
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5.1. The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis in accordance with procedures
and instructions established by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services and provided
to the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit a list of clients served during the month
for which the Invoice is being submitted with the monthly Invoice. The Bureau of Elderly
& Adult Services shall pay the Contractor by multiplying the per diem rate times the total
number of days for each service, provided during the month to each eligible dient under
this Agreement.

5.2. The Contractor agrees to provide a copy of the court notice to the Department with the
invoice when the Contractor is appointed guardian of a person and/or estate and no
longer provides guardianship over the person and/or the estate.

5.3. Invoices shall be due by the 15th of the month following the month in which services are
provided.

6.4. The Contractor shall review the SEAS cases monthly and move individuals to a different
funding mechanism, If possible, to allow more openings for additional referrals. In all
cases where alternate funding becomes available, the Contractor shall transferthe ward
from BEAS funded slot within sixty (60) days.

6. The Contractor agrees to seek reimbursement from other payer sources when providing
protection sen/ices as described In Section 3.4 of Exhibit A, Scope of Services. The
Departrhent will not reimburse for services under this Agreement for protection services
described in Section 3.4 of Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
ttiis Agreement may be withheld, In whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
federal or state law, rule, or regulation applicable to the services provided, or If the said
services have not been satis^ctorlly completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

■pR) '
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SPECIAL PROViSIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all furtds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
tr)dl>dduals and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures-

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on fonns provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shaii maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. ̂ ich file shall include all
Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish die Department wHh all forms and documenlation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that ell applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineiigible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and thai each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this

■ Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sutxagreement If it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notv/ithstanding'anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments wlll be made hereunder to reimburse the ConUactor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any sen/ices provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and TK) payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as othenmse provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds Ihe rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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7-3- Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor (n which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of Individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to sny individual who Is found by the Departmer^t to be ineligible for such services al
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

S. Maintenance of Records: in addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Pertod:

Fiscal Records; books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting ail costs
and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reOect all such costs and expenses, and wfiich are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, aQ ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contribuUons. labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of appllcallon and
eligibility (Including all.forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^icai Records; Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Departoient regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submll an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
ProTrt Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Revlevr. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Corrtract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiallty-of Records: All Information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection v^ith the performance of the services artd the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, VraX pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public ofTicials requiring such Information In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or ihe Contractor's responsibilities with
reaped to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the recijAent, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written Interim fir^cial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non^allovirabie expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Rnal Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Comptetion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price iimitalion
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations.of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: Ail documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting fipm the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement;

13.1. The preparation of this (repod. document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: Ail materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, Including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protoools or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facllitlesi Compliance with Laws and Regulations; In the operation of any facilities
for prodding services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duly upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Office of the Rre Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and xoning codes, by-
taws'and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), If it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more, if the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certificalion Form to the
OCR, ce^fying that Its EEOP (s on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to.claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at http.7/www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdf8fcert.pdf.

17. Limited English Pronciancy(LEP): As cJarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proriclency. and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited Engflsh proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance v^th the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Tifle VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaning^] access to Its programs.

16. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simpfified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rkshts and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whbtleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the wtilstlebiower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistlebiower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 626 of the National Defense Authonzation Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.906.

(b) The Contractor shait inform Its empicyees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functior^ for efficiency or convenience.

. but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
8ut)ccntracting. the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
.responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegaUon or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subconlraclcr, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

.  the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed If the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C -■ special Provisions Contractor Initials.
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, st its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiendes or areas for Improvement are identtfied. the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanlrtgs:

COSTS; Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting prindples established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

V

PROPOSAL: if applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a,form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and cor>dltions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract

FEDERAL/STATE "LAW; Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in tf̂ e Contract the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compllalion.of ail regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch $41 -A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this .
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is !
replaced as follows; . |
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEfl^ENT. j

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the Slate 1
hereunder, Including without limttalion. the continuance of payments, In whole or in part. j
under this Agreement are coolingeni upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, ■
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by |
any 'state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise !
modifies (he appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of 1
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, In whote or in part. In no event shall the
Stale be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the 1
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The ;
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement j
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification. i
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account Into the |
Accounl(s) Identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other «
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable. |

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time lor any reason, at the sole discretion ol
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the Slate Is exercisir>g its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the Slate a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of d'lents
receiving services under the'Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the.Stale and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan tnciudir\g. but not limited to. ar\y information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under Itie AgreciT>ent, Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under (he Agreement are transltioned to having services delivered by ar\other entity
Including contracted providers or Ihe Slate, (he Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and ott^er affected Individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications In its
Transition Plan submitted to the Stale as described above.

3. The bepariment reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by ttie
Governor and Executive Council.

4. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract is deleted and the follosving
subparagraph is added;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, dealh or
property damage, in amounts of not less lhan SI ,000,000 per occurrence and SI ,000.000
aggregate, with additional umbrella liability coverage of not less than $1,000,000: and
professional malpractice insurance covering all professional andfcr licensed personnel
engaged in the performance of (he service hereunder.

ExMlJ'x C-1 - Revisions to General Prowisicns '•, Cortrrsclor Inittals ^
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S. Subpatagraph 14 lof the General Provisions of (his contract, is amended by adding the following
subperagraph 14.1.3:

14.1.3 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall maintain a fidelity bot^, covering the
activities of aO employeas or agents with aulhon'ty to control or have access to any funds
provided under this Agreement In en amount equal to at (east twenty*five (25) percent of the
contract price limitation in BlocH 1.8 of the General Provision (Form P-37).

Ecnibt( C-1 ' Revitioni lo G«ner«i Provi^ns
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUQ^REE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug^Free Wodcplace Act of 1983 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certificalicn Is required by the regulations implementing Sections S151-S160of the Drug-Free
WoiMace Act of 1968 (Pub. L 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21891), and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). phor to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certiricatlon. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of tact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certiteation or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
lermlnation of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or vrill continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Estabrishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in tfie performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving rxjtice under
subparagraph 1.4,2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide noticed including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

epj
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant;

1.8. Taking one of the foliowing actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
^  amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2.1.3,1.4,1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may. Insert in the space provided below the sitefs) for the perfprmance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, dty, county, state, zip code) (fist each location)

Check D if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Contractor Name:

1^^- - -
Date

\ mCr. ^ I i P»
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CERTinCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•ChDd Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Tide XIX
*Communlty Sen/Ices Block Grant under Title V!
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Tit)e IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, thaL

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or w9l be paid by or on behalfof the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any ag^y, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an emptoyee of a Member of Congress in
connection v^th the awarding of any Federal contract, continiiatlon, renewal, amendmenL or
modification of any Federal contracL grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any'funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an olTlcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection this
Federal contracL grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (end by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor)! the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying^ln accordance with its ir\stnjctiona, attached and identltled as Standard Exhibit E-i.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at ell tiers (Including subcontracts, sub-grants, arid contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that aD sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material represcrifefion of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

Date Na
Title:

Eihlbil E - C«itific<tion Regardins Lobbying Contractor Initials.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPQNSIBIUTY MATTERS

The Contractor identified lr> Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responslbiiity Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1,11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certjfication;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shad submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation \m1I be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination wtiether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certifiutlon or an eKplanation shall disqualify such person from partidpation in
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary partidpant knowingly rendered an errorieous certification, In addition to other remedies

'  available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this Iransaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary partidpant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted If at any time the prospective primary partidpant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction," 'debarred,* "suspended,* "ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
transaction,* 'partidpant,* 'person,' 'primary covered transaction,' 'prindpal,' 'proposal,' and
'voluntarily exduded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary partidpant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared inengible, or voluntarily exduded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary partidpant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will indude the
dause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all sotldtations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A partidpant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective partidpant In a
lower tier covered transaction thai it b not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily exduded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A partidpant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant rhay, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. • Nothing contained in jlhe foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F-C«nificslion Regarding Debamient. Sutpension ContrBCtor Irritlalt
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information of a participant is not required to exceed thai wtiich is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these hstrudlons, rf a participant in a
covert transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineiigibie, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction. In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, OHMS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

.11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of Its Knowledge and belief, that It and its
principals:
tt.l. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against Ihem for commission of fraud or a crimir\al offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, Stale or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, thefl, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen properly;

11.3. are not presently indicted for othenM'se criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph '(l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By Signing and submlttlrig this lower Her proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined In 45 CFR Part 76. certjfies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and Us principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that U wiJi
Include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineliglbjlity. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.'without modirication in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Date NameW^c:r P.

CUflHHSniOM}

Eihlbit F - Certif(C80on Regarding Debarment. Suipenslon
And Other ReaponaiblDiy Mattera

Pages 012

Contractor Initials



New Hampshire Oepartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

CERTIFiCATtON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUtREfylENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATIQN. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WH15TLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certlficdtlon:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal r^ondiscrimlnation requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
reci^ents of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, cotor, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain reciplenta to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopto by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act Recipients of federal funding under ̂ is
statute are prohibited from dlserfmlnatlng, either In employment practices or In the delivery of senrlces or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from' discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabffilaticn Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sktion 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;

• the Americans vi4th Olsabilitles Actof 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131*34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employrnent, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1661.1683,1685*86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6108*07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not Include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.P.R. pL 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondlscrlmlnallon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws forlalth-based and community
organljations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 20 C5.R. pL 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and WhIslJeblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blo^ng activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate sat out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of (he certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmenL

ExNWlG . ..
CorUfsclOf Inmate

CtiVtiOtan ol pwitn/^ » FMml NordMrtrioMi, Sqg Tcmwwbi «# •
•ndYKhiSMlOM^pnitalartt

Paaeiofz ^



N»w Hampshire Oepartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
Ihe applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Departmienl of Health and Human Services Offica of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor idenliriad In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
cedificalion:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) Ihe Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

^-1-7'I 0? ^
Date 'p. "Jbbi'O

Title.
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CERTIFICATtON REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, alao known as the Pro-Children Act of 1094
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of facilities used for Irrpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compDance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
wth all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part 0. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Date Narn6lJ2j^-
Title:
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABUTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Pnvacy and Security of Individually Identitialsle Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitiona.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tftie 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Codeof Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set* shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164,501.

e. "pata AooTeoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operatioris"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act* means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitteXlll. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2000,

h. "HIPAA' means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR SecUon 164,501(9).

j. 'privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Ihformatlon at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. -protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 EiWWn Conwdof
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I. 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103. •

m. "Secretarv* shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, SubpartC, and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endors^ by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Asaociate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a.

b.

c.

d.

Business Associate ishall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of (he Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes (or (he health care operations of Covered

Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prtor to malung any such disclosure, 0)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such thlid party to notify Business
Associate. In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that H Is required by law, without first noti^ng
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/20U Eztxbil I
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notiftes the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obllaations and Activities of Business Associate.

. 1
a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately ;

after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected j
health information not provided for by (he Agreement Including breaches of unsecured ■
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an Impact on (he • i
protected health information of the Covered Entity. |

r.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be |
limited to: i

t

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, Including the i
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identificatlon; i

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the i
disclosure was made; !

0 Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed }
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been j

mitigated. |
i

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and Immedialety report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the !.Covered Entity. j

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and> !
-Breach Notification Rule. •

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books i
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for )
purposes Of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and |
Security.Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same i
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including '
the duty to retum or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

anoi* Eahlhltl Coo[r»dy Wfials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (6) business.days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Wlhin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual In order to meet the
requirements under 46 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Hs
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
184.520.

j. Within (en (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such.Information as Covered Entity may require to fuifill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fbrwarded requests. However, if-forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shail instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

1. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to Iri
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend (he protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes (hat make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Oblioatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limltatlon(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section |
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's |
use or disclosure of PHI. |

j

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation j
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or |
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section j
164.506 or45 CFR Section 164.508. 1

I

I

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of.any restrictions on the use or •
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164:522, \
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of !
PHI. '

(6) Termination for Cause

in addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by. Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit!. The Covered Entity may either immediately •
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Erillty. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/20U BxNWl ranlfaeiaf Initials
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Seoreoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit i or the appticatlon thereof to any
person(8) or circumstance is held Invaild, such Invaiidity shai) not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use a^^d disciosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and. conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duiy executed this Exhibit i.

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

s

Name of Aphorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

qI^Ii io
Date

RjUkl ia-n
of th^ontraptor

S jre of Authorized Representative

7.
jfduthcName oKSiuthorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3^014 ExhiWl I
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CERTlPICATiON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUWTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACTfFFATAi COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of-lndlvldual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first'tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more, if the
Initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is su^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.,
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information], the
Department of Hcatth and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following Infofmatlon for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

a: Funding agency
4. NMCS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
B. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identiner of the entity (DUNS tf)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25iU annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Contactor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
'The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-202 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative^ as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

ContractcrName:

Dale I

Tr^LCifVreTill

CUCKM&llOMJ PlQe 1 of 2
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FORMA

As the Contractor identifled.in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, i certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and' accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is:.

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to P2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.76m(a), 76o(d)) or section 6104 of the internal Revenue Code of
1986? •

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

if the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the foiiowing:

4. The names and compensation of the ̂ e most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:.

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CuCHHS/MO'tS

Exhibit J - CertiTicxUon Rescrttno th« Ftderal Funding
AccountabHtty And Tranxptrtnqr Act (FFATA) Cotnpflsnce
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Guardianship Services Contract

This 3"^ Amendment to the Guardianship Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3")
dated this 28'^^day of February, 2019, is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation
with a place of business at 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH, 03570.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2016 (Item #21), as amended on September 27, 2017 (Item #18) and June 20, 2018 (Item
#30), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in
the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,468,605.20.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements, dated 04042018, in its entirety and
replace with Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements, v5. dated 10/09/18.

TrW^ounty Community Action Program, Inc. Amendment #3
SS-2017-BBH-02-GUARD-02 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date

Date^ '

Name;

Title:

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

'.uaroNa

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of Dfju) . County of on ^l^t L .
personally appfipred^e person identiried~31rectly alx)ve, or satisfactdrlly proven to Ipersonally

on I r f. ■

signed

ure

before the undersigned officer,
person identmecTdirectly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is

d acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

CHRISTINA MORIN, Notary Public
State of New Hampshire

o'ta^ Public or Justice of the Peace Commission Expires December 19.2023

c
Name and 'lltle of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:"C^^.P 1^

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.
SS-2017-BBH-02-GUARD-02

Amendment #3

Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

mNamI

Title: S^/7
1 hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
SS-2017-B0M-O2-GUARD-O2

Amendment #3

Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit K ^

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term refening to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
-  Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Infomiation and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics v^thout the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Last update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 1 of 9 Date
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and

>  approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked

-  or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Departrrient of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
•Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5. Last update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
- subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If^DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

.4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Last update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contractor InitJals
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 3 of 9 Date

4/-
3|l6/iq



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be

•  installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

1-1.-Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor initials .
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 4 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The' Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractorlnltlals
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
. contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can' impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
-expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. -The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of

■  obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with.agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Conlractorlnltlals.
DHHS infonnatlon

Security Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

-12: Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govem protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.

vs. Last update 10/09/16 Exhibit K . Contractorinitials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

f. - Conndentlal Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance vrith this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Conhdential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials.
OHHS Information

Security Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

Vi. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Conlractorlnttlals
DHHS Infonnatlon
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TTU-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Noiqirofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this ofBce is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0004430001

%

u.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 6th day of March A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



QuickStart hltps;//quickstart.SOS.nh.gov/online/Businesslnquire/Businesslnfor.

Business Information

Business Details

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

Business Name: ACTION PROGRAM, INC. Business ID: 63020

{TRI-COUNTY CAP)
•

Domestic Nonprofit
Business Type: ̂

Corporation
Business Status: Good Standing

Business Creation o^/.g/iges
Date:

Name in State of
Not Available

Incorporation:

Date of Formation in

Jurisdiction:

Principal Office 30 EXCHANGE ST, BERUN, NH, Mailing Address: 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH,

Address: 03570, USA 03570, USA

Citizenship/State of _ . ^ ..
Domestic/New Hampshire

Incorporation:

Last Nonprofit

Report Year:

Next Report

Year:

Duration: Perpetual

Business Email: sandypatrick@tccap.org Phone#: 800-552-4617

Notification Email: NONE
Fiscal Year End

NONE
Date:

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code NAICS Subcode

1  OTHER / CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION

Page 1 of 1. records 1 to 1 of 1

2 of4 4/2/2019, 6:04 PM



QuickStart hrtps://quickslart.sos.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/Businesslnfor.

NH Department of State, 107 North Main St. Room 204, Concord, NH 03301 - Contact Us (/online

/Home/ContactUSl

Version 2.1 © 2014 PCC Technology Group, LLC, All Rights Reserved.

(/online/Home/)^^ Back to Home (/online)

I of 4 4/2/2019,6:04 PM



QuickStart https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/BusinessInfor.

Principals Information

Name/Title

Lawrence Kelly M / Director

Page 1 of 1. records 1 to 1 of 1

Business Address

30 Exchange Street, Berlin, 03570, USA

Registered Agent Information

Name: Not Available

Registered Office Not Available

Address:

Registered Mailing Not Available

Address:

Trade Name Information

Business Name Business ID

NORTHERN FORESTTOURS (/online

/Businesslnquire 252759

/TradeNameInformation?businessID=320591)

GREAT NORTH WOODS WILDERNESS

ADVENTURES (/online/BusinessInquire 288526

/TradeNameInformation?businessID=336337)

GREAT NORTH WOODS EDUCATION AND

INTERPRETIVE CENTER {/online

/Businesslnquire

/TradeNameInformation?businessID=80158)

313914

Business Status

Expired

Expired

Expired

Trade Name Owned By

Name Title Address

3 of4 4/2/2019, 6:04 PM



QuickStart https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/Businesslnquire/BusinessInfor.

Trademark Information

Trademark
Trademark Name Business Address Mailing Address

Number

No records to view.

Filing History Address History View All Other Addresses Name History Shares

Businesses Linked to Registered Agent Return to Search Back

4of4 4/2/2019,6:04 PM



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

do hereby certify that:1 , Gary Coulombe
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of _Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. .
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 6/26/2018:
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Chief Executive Officer
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the day of March, 2019.
(Date Amendment Signed)

4. Jeanne Robillard is the duly elected Chief Executive Officer

(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of _Coos

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

(Title of Contract Signatory)

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

day of March, 2019,

By _Gary Coulombe_.
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

' ' ' ̂ CHRISTINA MORIN, Notary Public
1  State of New Hampshire

■  (NOTARY SEALf^ Commission Expires December 19,2023

V . .

■  ■ (^mmission Expires: December 19, 2023

ry Public/Justice of the Peace)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1,2005



ACORCf CERTIFICATE LlABrLITY INSURANCE DATE (MVDDnnrrY)

THIS, CERTIFICATE IS; ISSUED AS A;,MAI itK UF INFORMATION ONLY AND'CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON. THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER," THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE-POLICIES
'BELOW: THIS-CERTIFICATE :0F INSURANCE DOES NOT'CONSTTTUTE A .'CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING: iNSURER(S); AU'rHORIZEb
REPRESENTATIVEpR PRODUCER; AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT; If the certificate hplctor is an ADDlTipNA^ the poJl.cy(l«) rnutt bo endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS.WArVED.^subJect to
the terrns arid conditions of the policy, certain policies may. require an endorsement A statement on this cerdflcatie,does not confer rights to the.
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs):

PROpUCSR

FIAI/Crose Ihsucanco

11.00 ;Bla. Street

Manchester Mis. .03101

Karen Shaughnesay
(603) 669-3218. .

Si^pM-XahaughnessyScroasagency .'com

INSURE^^'AFFORDINd COVERAOE NAICf

iNMRERA:Teehhbl6dv- Ins-: Co. 42376
INSURED

Trl-Co^ty Coamunl'ty Action Progran, 'Inc
30 Bxcha.rige. [Street

Berlin NH 03570

IMSUftERBiHesce Ihs; C6-. 25011 "
ifisuRERC Pranl'te :S~^tate iRealth .Caret and Ruoan

INMRERD;

INSURER 6 : _ ,.

Insurers: , . .

T

Ih

C
E

HIS.IS TO CERTIFY THAT,THE POLICIES OF.INSURANCE LISTED BELOW.HAVE.BEEN ISSUED.TO THE'INSURED'NAMED ABOVE FOR.THE POLICY PERIOD

^ REOUIREMENTnTERM OR CONDITION,OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER.DOCUMENt'WlTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS'ERTIFICATE MAY BE' ISSUED OR .MAY-:PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED" BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED^HEREIN IS SUBJECT'TO" ALL THE TERMS'
XCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOW! MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS '

TYPE OF INSURANCE 'POliCY NUMBER-
POLICY EFF
IMM/Dormm

'POLICY EXP.
IMM/DOrrYVVl 1. UMhfS 1

A

X COMMERCULOIEN^LLUSJUTYi

* CHj occw
TFP12247S1 7/l/20ie. 7/172019

EACH OCCURRENCE s  i-,ooo;ooo

1 CLAIMS-AIAI UAMAUfe lUNfcNIfcU, v" ' ioo;Oob

MEO EXP (Any ona parson) ;i' i5-,o60.

IPERSONAL S'AOV INJURY t' 1,000/000

GE

X

d

TL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

poucy'Q^ I Iloc
OTHER:.

GENERAL AOGREGATE' SvOOOt'OOO

PROOUCTS-.COMP/OP ACG ■|; 3,000/000
CKma/Em^oyaa Oithbnttty ~ X' 600,000

A

Ain

X

rOh^LE UABlLnY^

TPP12247S1 7/1/2018 7/1/2019

COMBJNLD ^IhCie LiMiT
fla acewanii 5' " 1,-000,000

ANY AUTO
ALLOVWIED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS
1

SCHEDULED
AUTOS'
NONGWNEO

.AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Par parson)
BODILY INJURY (Par acddani) S'

PROPERTY DAMAGE "'
(ParteciaarX) s.

Undadnsurad moi6«UI !l,,000",000
I

B ! X-

UMB^UUAB 1
»CEM UA9 1

X- 'ooy.R
CLAIMS-MAOE

140415(5713 7/1/2018 '  '7/1/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE S' 2.000.000

AGGREGATE SI 2.000.000
DED 1 X 1 RETCNTIONI 10,000 1 1  . . — ,

y

c

WORKERS COMPENSATION'
AND EMPLOYERS-UABILITY
ANY PROPRIETGR/PARTNER'EXECUTIVE '| 1
0FFICERAIEM8ER EXCLUDED? : Y
(Mtndalofy In NH) ' '
V yet. Mtcrlbt un«kr_
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bMomf

Hik

;HCH820ie000004S'

|3a.>;MB; Rul^ Ucbah;
Kafah Maitthawa :( Hilliaa

Baitch' axeludad

7/172018 7/1/2019

'X- Patute .^r"" ■
E.L. EACH ACODENT. .1.000.000

E:t.OISEASE ■ EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY-UMIT

t  1.000.000

S  11.000.000

A Profeeeienal -Liability TPP1224751 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 Par Ocojrrai^ $1,'000,000
Aograom <3/000,-000

DTORfPTION GFpPERATlpNS/ LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddWofiil Rtmirka ScOMuH. mty b» AtUchMl U mon tpKt I* rtBtdrKi)

DHHS, St^te of 'NH
Contra'cta & Procurement
-129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 0,3301

•SHOULD AMY OF, THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,' NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCC^ANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISiONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATTVE - - -

T Franggps/JSC

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025r?oi4on

®1988r2014 ACORD CORPORATION. AIITlghts reserved.
The.ACORD.name:and iogo.are registered marks of ACORD



COMMUNITY

CTION
TRI-COUNTY CAP

Serving Coos. Carroll & Grafton County since 1965

MISSION STATEMENT

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, Inc. Is a

private, non-profit 501(C) 3 corporation that is dedicated

to improving the lives and weil being of New Hampshire's

peopie and communities. Formed on May 18,1965, we

provide opportunities and support for people to learn and

grow in self-sufficiency and get involved in heiping their
neighbors and improving the conditions in their

communities.

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, Inc.

...Helping people, changing lives.

CEO: Jeanne L. Robillard COO: Regan Pride CFO: Randall S. Pilotte

30 Exchange Street, Berlin NH 03570 P: 603-752-7001

www.tccaD.orQ FB(Q)TriCountvCQmmunitvActionProQram



m

UARDIANSHIP
advocate | taists | bonded fiduciary | protecS^ive payee

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

Main Office: 34 Jefferson Road, Wtiitefield, NH 03598 P: (603) 837-9561 F: (603) 837-2613

Concord Office: 18 Low Avenue, Concord, NH 03301 P: (603)224-0805 F: (603)229-1758

MISSION STATEMENT

It is the mission of Tri-County CAP, Inc./Guardianship Services
to provide quality Guardianship, Protective,

and Fiduciary Services
to incapacitated residents of New Hampshire

CEO: Jeanne L. Robillard DBO: Regan Pride CFO: Randall S. Pilotte

30 Exchange Street, Berlin NH 03570 P: 603-752-7001

www.tccaD.orQ FB@TriCountyCommunltyActionProgram



Financial Statements

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC
and AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA'''EMENTS FOR tHE YEARS ENDED
JUNE 3d, 2018 AND, 2017

AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

To the Board of Directors of professionalassociation

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. certified public a^untant^
Berlin, New hHampshire wolfeboro north conw

DOVERr* CONCORD

STRAimi

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS^ REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We haye audited the accbrtipanylhg cohsolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, jric. and Affiliate (a New Harhpshire nonprofit organization), which cornprlse the
consolidated statements of financial position as of^June '30; 2018 and 2017, and the reiated
consolidated statements of cash flows, ifuhctibnal expenses, and the relat^ consolidated
statement of adiNnties for the year ended June 30, 2018, for the years then ended, and'the
reiated notes tb'the consolidated fihancial'etatements.

Management's Responsibllfty fpr the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for thei prepafatibh and fair presehtatioh of these, consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accpunting principles generajly accepted In the iJnlted
States of America; this includes''the design, irrtplementation, and maintenanbe of internal control
relevant to the, preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express ah opinion oh these consolidated flhahcial statements based on
our audit. We conducted oureudit |n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to fihancial:'audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards; [ssued by the Comptroller Genera! of the.United States. Jbose
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the.consblidated financial statements are free from ifiatehal misstatemeht.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures, selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment pf the risks of material misstatement of the
cohsolidated 'financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entiys prepa'fatibh and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appfopnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such bpihioh. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated finaricial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opiinion.



Opinion

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements, referred to above present fairly, in ail
material: respects, the consolidated financial positioh of Tri-Couhty Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30,;2018 and 2017, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, arid the changes in Its: net assets for the year ended June 30. -2618, in accordance
with accounting prihcijples generally accepted In the United States of America.

Report.on Summarized Comparaitye information

We haye previously audited Tn-Qpunty Gpmmunity Action program, JnCi and; Affiliate's 2017
consolidated fltiahcial 'Stateniehts, and we expressed an unmodified audit' opinion on those
consolidated financial staterriehts in our report dated November 10. 2017. In olir opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
,2017, is consistent, in all matenal' respects, with the audited consolidated finahcrai staterriehts
from vyhich it has beeri, derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an.opiriion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The acc^'pariyihg schedule .of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by titie 2 U;S. of Federal Regutatiqns.{C^^ Unjf<^m
Requirements, Cost Principles, -and. Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is 'presented for
purposes of additional analysis and 'is hot a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and vyas derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the Consolidated
financial statemejits. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the ;audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and recbncilirig .such Ihfbmlatidn directly to the Undehyihg, accburiting and other
records used prepare ihe cpnspljdated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
Statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with Auditing standards
generally accepted In the United .Slates of America. In bur bpihibri, thei infotthatioh. is fairiy
Stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by GbVernmeht Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we haye also issued o'ur report dated
October 19, 2018, on our consideratibri bf TrifCounty Community Action Prbgfam, Inc.'s.ihternal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its cpmpliance with certain provisions of jaws,
regulations, contracts, and;gfant agleeiifients and other rh'atters. The purpose bif that'fepbrt Is to
describe the scope of our testirig of intemal control over financial reporting and cornpllance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the, effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Pfogr'am, Inc.'s ihtem'al cbritfbl over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit' performed in accordance with Gpvernrnent Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s intemal control over
financial repoiling and complisnce.

October 19. 2018

North Conway, New Hampshire



TRKCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. tMC. AND AFFILIATg

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash ahd^cash equivalents
Accounts receiyabie
pi^ges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Tdtal current assets

PROPERTY

Property.and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHERASSEtS
jRestrlrted cash
.Building refinance costs; net

Totai.other; assets

TOTAL ̂ SEtS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

2018-

i,3M.038

212.207

87,569
25.640

2.811,1.11

12,812,689
(5,203.324)

7,609.365

706,765'
il7oy

719,470

LiABILITIES And net ASSETS

2017

505,700

1,326,994
205.804
65;641

.2:149.484,

13,544,469
(5,317;470)

8.226.999

942.687

li591

956,278

S 11.139,946, $ 11,332,761

pemand note payable $  516,022. $  671,434
Currerit'portion of loiig term debt 142,733 587,809
Current portion ofxapital'lease obligations 4;'445 4,057
Accounts payable 237,276 518,447

Accrued compensated absences 203,121 242:545
Acchied Claries 187,508 196,882

Accrued expj^ses 131i"888 107,627

Refundable advances 191,069 197,548

Other liabilities 387,168 .645,311

Tdtal current liabilities ,2,00.1,-230 ■ 3,171,660

LONG TERM DEBT

Long terrh debt, net of current portion 5.386,642 5,254,436
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion 8,226 12,670

Total liabilities 7,396.098 8.438,766

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted ,2,926,057 2,191 ;395

Temporarily restricted 817,791 702,WO

Total net assets 3,743,848 2,893,995

TOTAL LIABILITIES. AND NET ASSETS $ 11,139,946 $■ 11,332,761

See Notes to Consolidated Flnanclat^SUtements



TRI^CQUWTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.AND AFFlLIATg^

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OP. ACTIVITIES

^ FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 201S'
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

TsmfwaHly >2018 2017

Unraa^cte'd Restricted Total Total

REVENUES AND OTHER.SUPPORT
Grant and contracts $  14.097.629 i  211.457 S  14,309,086 $ 12.644.657
Program funding 1.259,037 • .1:259,037 1,708,487
Utility programs 1.079.361 - 1,079,361 '972.359
;ir>^lra.contrtbuiu6hs> 351.187 351,187 436,874
Contributions 116,928 1278.297 395,225 497,735
Fundralsing 59,536 59,536 42.421
Rental Income 679:112 - 679,112 847,380
lilterest Income 348 ... '348 '270

'Gain (loss) on di$^u| of pro^ny 48.487 - 48;487 (16,685)
For^veness of debf - •- - 25,912
Otfter reverse 81.938 •- 81.938 4461

Total revenues and other support 17:773.563 '489.754 18,263;3"17 17.'i'63.771

NET ASSETS RELEASED PROM RESTRICTIONS 374;563 (374,5M) .

Total revenues.,Other support,- and

net assets released from restrictions 18.148:126 115:191. .. 18.263:317 '17.163.771

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agency Furtd 922.701 922:701 825.517
Head.Start .2.481,916 - 2:481.916 2:312:665
Gua'rdlanship 760.009 780.009 735.925
Transpbrtiatioh 879,729 879.729 1,063,996
Volunteer 122,941 .. :i 22.941 121;543
Wotfcforce Development 394,252 -■ 394.252 402.576
'Alcoh'ol'and Other Drugs. 444,581 - 444.581 1^165,000
Carroll County DeTital 642,637 . 642.637 542i920
Support Center 276,172 - 276.172 265,052
Homeless 577.783 - 577.783 554;509
Energy and Community Development- 7.480.943 . 7.460.943 6,276,570
Elder'' 1.142.818 'l.i42.81B 1,026,070
Housing Services 176.511 - ,176.511: "167.528

Total p'r^rarti slices' 16.302.993 18.361993 15:459.871

Supportir>g Activities:
Gehe'rel arid e'drhihlstiative 1.102:448 - 1:102:448 1.213,425
Fur>draising 8.023 8,023 4.873

Total suppoiling activities i.110.471 1.110:471 1.218,298

Total functiortal expenses 17.413.464 17.'413:4$4 ■16.678.169

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 734.662 lis.ioi 849.'8S3 485,602

NETASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 2.191.395 702.600 . 2:893.995 2;408.393

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR $  2.926.057 S  .817.791 S  3.743:848 .$ 2.893.995

See Note* to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNfTY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFll lATF

CONSOUDATEO STATEMENTS.OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAFfs ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM,OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
;Adjustments jipY cteng'e m net assets to
net:cast) provided by opera.tlhg-a(^vitje$:

Dep_r^atipn ahb/arnphjiatiph
Donation of property and.equipment
Loss on dls'pbsal^bf. pibpehy
Forgiveness of debt'

(increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable

Redges receivable
Inventories

. Prepaid, expenses
Restricted cash

(Decfease)jncrease In liabilities:
Accounts payable
^crued ppmpensated abservces
Accrued salaries
Accrued, expenses.
R^urtdabfe ad varices
Other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTiyiTtES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Prepapds frpfff.disppsal of property
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net repayment on demand note payable
Re'pa^entpf I6r>g^terfn',debt
Repayment of capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITjES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH and CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF'YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for

Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND fJNANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment financed by long>term debt

Purchase of property and equipment financed by capital lease

Fixed assets donated

2fll2

$  €49:853 $ 485,602

46^.370

(48.487)

170.337

(6.403)
(21.928)
19.705

235.922

(281.171)
(39.424)
i(9.374)
24.261

(6.479)
(258.143)

1.093,039

27,8.972

(141.335)

137.637

(90.412)
(312.870)

'(4,056)

(407.338)

823.338

505.700

$  1.329.038

182.514

492,1^1
(224.685)

'16.685
(25.912)

(78.676)
23.615
23.239,
(4.M3)

(154.926)

(157.079)
('51.698)
'20.697
13.863

(35.781)
1M.401

477.133

26.750

(181.113)

(154.^3)

(192.432)
(210.M8)

(3.636)

(406.876)

(84.106)

589.806

505.700

208.781

14.867

5.889

i  18.830 $

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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affiliate

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2017

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and Principles of Consolidation

Jhe cpnsplidated financia! statements include the accounts of Tri-Cdurity
Cbmmuriify Action Pipgrarh, Inc: and its; affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. control? 10(0%, of the voting power of Gomerstone Housing Nprth; Inc;
AH Significant intercpmpany items and transacliphs have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-Courity Community Action. Program, inc. (the,
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of communi^ seryioe programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state,; and jpcaj agericies, Cbmei^tpne- Hbusing
North, Inc. (a New Hamp'shife nonprofit corporation) was-irtcorpofated under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire;for the acquisition, construction' and operation
of community based housing for the elderly;

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-Gounty CAP Adfnihistfatioh provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's: many individual programs.
This' includes' planning .and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR- services, legal and audit services, IT .support;
management support, financial support and central policy development!

Tri-County CAP .Administration is the liaison between Tri-Qounty
Community Action P/ogram, Inc., Board of Directors and its prpgramSi
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services B|ock Grant, as well as
management of the Organizafoh's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their farriilies. Head StaTt supports children's growth arid development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which Include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings;
nutritious meals, oral health and merital health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.
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Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their chlid's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents, to [dentify
and provide Individualized activities that support their child's growth and
develbprfiehf.

Tri County Community Action Head Start serves 217 children in Carroll,
Coos '& GVaftpri cpurities in ? locations yyith 12 center-based classrooms
and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Grgani^tipn's Guardianship program providesadvocacy and guardian
services for the: vulhefable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from,alzheimer's, dementia, and multiplej medical
issues) who need a guardian aM vyhp have np family member ipr friend
wiljing, able, of suitable: to. selve in that capacity., This pfbgram serves 406
individuals. Additional services include, fconservatbrship, representative
payee-ship, federal, fiduciary services, benefit management services and
private probate accpuntihg services.

fransodrtatidn
The' Organization's- transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus ro.ufeSj dppr-tpHjoor service by request, Ipng distance
fnedical travel to medical faclHtjes outside our fegulaf service area; and
special tr^ips for the, eldefjy tb ;gb shopping and erijpy other activities that
are located outside; the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transpprtatiori options to the elderly
and disabled, as welj as to the genefal public.

Voiuntder

The 'Gpos County Retired '& Senipr Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minirnum, group of 400 vplunteefs, ages 55 and older, of which 309
actively served during the last reporting period. These Vblunteefs share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public :agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 43,611 hours yeariy.

Workforce Deveiopment

The Organization |s assjstjng transitional and displaced workers as. they
prepare for hew jobs, and also assisting cufreritly-employed workers to
gOiri the skills required for better jobs.



The Grgahtzalioh is helping to implement New Hampshire's Uhifi^ State
Plan .for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide ternpprary asststance for needy families (TANF),
recipients with 20^30 houfS'per week of training in the areas of erfiploymeht
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also, place
participating TANF recipients in community-based worl^ experience sites.

Aicohol & Other Drugs (AOD)

Services provided through the AOD program include assisting the
alcoholic/addicted person on the road to recovery, through three phases:
Crisis Intervention, Sobriety Maintenance, and Assessnrient and Referral to
appropriate treatrnehtTaclljties.

The Residential Treatment Programs {Friendship House) provide
chemically dependent ihdiyiduals with the fundarnental toojs of recovery;
including educational classes, group and individual counseling, vy6f1< and
recreational itherapy, and attendance at in-house arid commuriity-bas~ed
alcoholics anoriymous and narcotics anonymous meetings. The AOD
program also offers assistance with Its impaired driver prpgrarns;

The Friendship House, lih December of 2014, had approximately $130,000
worth of irivestmerits arid improvements due to assistance from Public
Services of New Hampshire. There was a total of $111,595, of pre-
development capitaljzed experises at June 30, 2017.

Effective October 1, 2017, the Orgariization is no longer responsible for the.
Alcohdl &. Other Drugs (a6d). program. The grants for the program have been
transferred tb North Country Health Consortium (NGHC), as they are taking
over the program. The Friendship Hpuse was sold to Affordable Housing
Education arid Develbprnent (AHeAD).

Carroll Countv.Dental

The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers high quality oral heajth
care to children with NH Medicaid coverage. The Orgariization also serves
uninsured and underinsured children and adults using a .sliding fee scale
that offers income-based discounts for care. The Center accepts most
common dental insurances for those who have cbimmercial derital

insufarice coverage. A school-based project of the Dental Center, School
Srriiles, offers oral health education, screening, treatment and referrals for
treatment to over 1,000 children in 9 schools in the vicinity of the Center.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking In Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
iriteh/eritiori; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
arid accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
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education and outreach; violence prevention prpgranis for students;
inforniatiph, referrals and assistance accessing other conimunity
resources.

Homeless

Homeless services inclyde an outreach intervention and preyerition project
that strives to prevent individuals arid families from .becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
drganization provides, temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Orgariizatloh also provides some housing rehabilitation services: to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel arid electric'assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the'client's bill. Community Contact
sites, aliow locOl participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services, The offices provide h/prmatipn to the
Qraari'zatiph's ciierits about other programs offefed. as weli as other
prdgfams: available through other organizations in the community.

Low-Income Weatherizatlon

The NH weatherizatjon "program helps IpwHricome families, elderiy,
disabled, small children arid individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, isafety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy post saying, health and safety and carbon Ipwefing' rneasures. The
NH VVeathefizatibh Assistance Program also cfeatee local NH jobs.

Elder.

The drgariization's elder program provides senior meals in 15 community
dinjrig sjteSj hpme^leiiyered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail arid
homebbund eidefly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, iprig-term cafe: counseling services, arid caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is subject to a Project Rental Assistance
Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their rental income is
received from HUD.

The Organization includes a 12 unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.
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The fabove Organization has a Section 202 Capital Advance; Under
;guidelines established by the U.S'. Office of Management and Budget
Uniform Guidance, Title! 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulatiqhs (QFR) part
200, Uhifdrfh Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles aPd Audit

. Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section ,202; Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program.

Method oTaccouhtirid

The cohsolidated 'firiahcial. statement of TH-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance .with
accQuntihg principles igeneraHy accepted in the United States of America,- as
promulgated ;by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis', revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis ofpreseritation

Financial 'statement presentation follows the; recommendations of the FASB ih its
Accounting'Standard Codification No. 958 Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit
Qrganjzatipns. Under FASB ASC No. 958, the prgariizatidh is required to report
Information regarding its fihah'ciai position and activities according to three classes
of net assets: Unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and
permanently restricted net assets.

The Organization had no perffianehtly restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 arid
2017. The Organization had temporarily restricted net assets of '$817,791 and
$702.600at June 30', 2018:and 2017, respectively.

Restricted and unrestricted support

Cohfributidhs received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of ariy
donor restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as; an; increase in
temporarily or permahehtly restncted net assets, depending dti the nature of the.
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restncted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the.statement of activities as
net assets released from restrictions.

Unrestricted net assets include revenues and expenses and contributions
which are, not subject to. any donor imposed restrictions, Unrestricted net
assets can be board designated by the Board of Directors for special projects
and expenditures.

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions for which time

restrictions or donor-imposed restrictions have riot yet beeri met: When a
restriction expires, terriporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restriction (Note 12).
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Permanently restricted net assets include giffs^ which require, by donor
restriction, that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income or a
pbrtibh thereof (excluding capital gains restricted by $tate statute) be made
laVailable for program operations in accordance with dpnpf ■restfictions. The
Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 and
20T7.

Fair Value Measurements
Fair value, is defined as the price that woyld be received to sell ah asset or paid to
transfer a, liability (1,6; the 'Pxjt price") in an ofderiy trahsactibri between market
participants af thei measurement date. The accounting standards for fair values
estabiishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring faJr yalye thaT maximizes
the use of observable inputs and minirnlzes the use of Undbservable inputs by
requiring that, the most Observable inputs be use'd when ayailable. Observable
inputs are ihputs that hiaritet participants would use In pricing the asset or liability
developed based on market, data Obtained from sources independent of the
Drganization. Unobservable inputs -are inputs' thaT reflect the Orgahizatipn-s
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the
asset of liability developed based on the best information ayailable In the
cifcuimstances.

The hierarchy is classified into three levels based on the reliability of inputs as
follows:

Level 1: Valuations based on quoted prices in actiye rriarkets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Organizajiofi has 'the 'ability to access. Since
valuations are based .on quoted prices that'are. readily-and regularly available
iri ah jactive rtiarket, valuatiori of these products does not entail a [significant
degree of judgment.

Level 2: Valuation is determined from quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities iri active rnarkets, quoted prices for identical instruments In markets
that are not active or by model-based techniques in which all significant Inputs
are observable in the market.

Level 3: Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to
the overall fair value measurement. The degree of judgment exercised in
determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized as Level 3.

The availability of observable inputs can vary and is affected by a wide variety of
factore. including, the type of asset/liability, whether the asset/liabijity is established
in the marketplace, and other characteristips particular to the transaction. To the
extent that valuation is based on Imodels or inputs that are less observable or
unobservable in the marKet, the determination of fair value requires more judgment.
In certain case's, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes the level in the
fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measufemeht in its entirety falls is
determined based on the lowest level input that is sigriificant to the fair value
measurerherit iri its entirety.
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Fair value is a market-based measure cotisidered from the perspective of a ifiafket
participant rather than an entity-specific measure. Therefore, even when market
assumptions are. not ceadijy available, assumptions are required to reflect those that
markqt participants would use in pricing, the .asset or Jialbilily at the measuremerit
date,

Accounts Receivable

Accounts recelyat)[e are stated, at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies arid are based oh reirnbufsemerit for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts; A portion of the accounts
receivable balarice represents amounts due; from patierits at CanrpN .County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at managemeht's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is riot considered a departure from accountirig principles
generally accepted in the. United State because the effects of the direct vwite
method approxihiate tho,se of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment hjstp^. the age of the accounts
fecelvable, arid cbllectiOri rates for feceivables with simirar characteristics, such as
length of time Outstanding. The Organization does riot charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property arid Deprecfatlbn
Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 arid all
expenditures for repairs; maintenance, and d.ettermerits that; materially prolong the
useful liyes of assets are capitajized. Buildings, equipnient, and impnDvemepts are
stated at cost less accurriulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided usirig the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciatjon expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related prograrri. Depreciatlbn expense for assets used by
ifiofe than one pfogfam is charged to the progrartf based upon a square .footage of
other similar allocation.

P.epreciation expense related to adrriinistrative assets is included irt the indirect co.st
pool arid charged to the programs in accordaffce with the iridifect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture arid equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housirig and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban development.

14



Rent subsidies .are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the- allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refjundable advances and recognized
as revenue In the period in which the related services or expenditures are
perfdfmed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor cohditibhs being met
aggregated $191,069 and $197,548 as of June'30. 201.8; and^^d 17, respectively.

Nonprofit-tax status

The Orgahizatibn is a not-for-profit SecWon 501 (c)(3) organization in accordance
. with the Internal Revenue Gode: It has been classified as an. Organization that is
not, a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a
charitable cpritributipn deduction for individual dpriqrs. The Orgartization files
ihfdrmatibh returns in the United States. The Organization's Federal Fplm 990
(Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax), is'subject to examination by the
IRS. generally for three, years after it is filed. The; Qrganization 'is no loriger sutiject
to examinations,by tax authprities for yea_rs prjorfc 2014

The Orgariizatioh follows FASB ASC, Accouhtihg for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes-a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statemertt recognition
and measurement of tax positions takeri or expected to be taken in a tax. return.
The Ofgahizaliori does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positidnSi
therefore, a liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax,positions has not
been recognized.

Cofnefstohe Housing North, Inc. is exempt from ihcoine taxes' under Section
50T{c)(3) .of the Internal Revenue Code. The: Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be. other than a private: foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a);

Retirement plan

The; Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Gpde; All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning oiri the date they are employed. Each employee
nhay elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion^ In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, there were no discretionary
cohtribUtions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or

that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.
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Contributed noncash assets are reporded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as restricted support. In the absence of such stipulations, contributiorfs of noncash
asset's are recorded as UriYestricted support.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equlpfTieht are recorded as support at their estiriiated fair
value at the date of donation. Such" donations are reported as unrestricted support
unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that
rn.ust be used to acquire property arid equiprfipht are reported as restricted support.
Absent dbhdr stipulations regafdihg how long those donated assets must be
maintained, the drganlzation reports expirations of donor restrictions when the
donated or acquired assets are, placed in service as instructed by the donor. The
Organization reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets
at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give a_fe not fecognjzed in the firiahcial statements until the
cptiditipns are substantially met. Uncoriditibnat promises to ;give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be cojjected in more than one
year are recoided at fair value, which [s measured as the present value of their
fLrture cash flows^ The discounts on those artiourits are computed using riskr
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
AmoTtization of the discounts Is included in contribution revenue. |n the absence of
donor ■stipulations to the contrary, promises vyjth payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Prbrriisesrthat rerriairi uricbllected 'more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to .unrestricted net assets.

As of June 30, 2018 arid 2017, there were promises to give that were absent of
dbribr' stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as
temporarily restricted in the amount.of ,$212,207 and $205,804; respectively. This
amount was included in grants and contracts On the Cbrisplidated Statement of
Activities.

Use of estimates
The presentation of financial statements in coriformity accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Accounting Standards Codification No. 825" (ASC 825); Disclosures of Fair Value of
Finaricial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
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financial Instalments^ the canying amount of the Ofganization's financial
instalments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate, fair value because of the ishort-tenm maturity of Xhos'e
instruments.

Functional allocation otexpehses:
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functipnal basis In the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities,
benefited.

Program salaries and re/afed- expenses are allocated to the various
programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
eniployees spehd oh each functibh as fepbfted on a timesheet,

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the tirne erriplbyees'spend oh each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is. charged to' a, leave; pool and is allocated to each prbgrarii as: a
percentage of total salaries;

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include eniployer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dehtal
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting progfarn
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, ihsufarice, utilities, building riiaihtehance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furhlture and equiprrient is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses' are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.
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The Organjzatipn submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
behefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1. 20'17 received
provisional approval and is effective until amended at a rate of 13%. Per ;the
a_greement wjtji the U.S. Departrtierit of Health and Hurtiarf Services, the
Ofgahjzatlph's fihai fate for the year ended June 30, 2017 was 12.5%. the
Orgahlzatioh carefuily calculates the allocation to agree exactly with the expenses
in the indirect pool. The actual rate for the year ended June 30; 2018 was
approximately which is allowable because It is less than the pfovisibhal
rat©;

Advertising pollcv
The Organization ujes advertising to inform the cpmniunity about the prpgfams it
offers and the availability of-services. Advertisihg is expensed as incurred., The total
cost of advertising for the. years ended June 30„ 20i8 and 2017 was;$l'8igl.6iand
$26,456, respectively.

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQCilVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit .with financial
institutions; and investments with priginai maturjtte months pr less,; A_t
year erid and throughout the. yeaf, the' Ofganizaliori's cash balafices were
deposited with multiple fihanciar institutions. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the
baiarices Jn interestand non-interesi-bearing accounts were insured jby the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, there was approximately $l7200;000 .and
$665,000; of deposits .held in excess of the FDIC limit, repectively; Management
believes the O'fga'hizatioh is not exposed to any significant Credit nsk On cash and
eash equivalents and. considers this a normal business risk.

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to hlaintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 6. The required balance in the
account is $T0,968 and is restricted from withdrawal except to make payments of
•debt service or as approved by the US Department of Agficultufe. The Ofgahization
is compliant with this requirement as Of October 2017.

Amounts withdrawn to, make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until, the rnaximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30,, 2018 and 2017 was $19,980 and $19,611, respectively.
The Ofgahization has made ail of their scheduled deposits for' the years ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017. These amounts are included in restricted cash on ihe

Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 6). The required balance in the
account is $173,817;and is equal "to 12 monthly payrrients. The balance as of June
30, 2018 and 2017 was $174,273 and $187,095, respectively, and the Ofganizatioh
was in connpliance with this fequifement. These amount's are Included in restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.
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The Organization malhtains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate In
the Guardianship -Seivices Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as pther cjjrrent liabilities. The 'total curfent liability related to this
fesfrictioh at June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $378,605 and $642,308, respectively.
These arhbuhts are included In other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June SQ, 2pT8, and 2017
was $.378,605 and <$642i308, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts: related to, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses; in the Organization under rules .and regulations prescribed by the
Departrnent of Housing and Urban pevelopmeht. The total amount restricted at,
Juhei30, 2018 and 2017 waS $131,610 and $93,673, respectively.

NOTE 3. INVENTORY

In 2018 and 20,17, inventory included weatherizaiion materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most 'recent 'Cpst. A physical
inventory is itakeri .annually. Cost is detenriined u.sjng. the ftrstfih, first,-p,ut (FjFO)
method; Inyentpry at^June SQ, 2018 and 2017, cohslsts of weatherizatlon materials
totaiihg $87,569 and $65,^.1, respectively.

During the year ended June 3.0, 2018, the Grgani^tipn adopted the provisions of
the FASB Accpunting Stapdard Update (ASU) 2015^11, Inveritbryi (fpp/c 330):
Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which simplifies the subsequehl
rheasurernerit of inventory by requiring inventory to be measured 'at the lower of
cost net realizable value. Net realizable value iS: the estirnated .sellihg price of
inventory in .the ordlriary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of
compjetipri, disposaj arid transportation. The Ofgarilzatioh has evaluated ASU
2015r1-1 and has detefrhined thatiis no material irtipact to the'financial staternents.

NOTE 4, ACCRUED EARNED TIME
Fpr the years ending June 30. 2018 and 2017, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2018 and
2017, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annuaj leave time that its
enriployees had earned arid vested In the amount of $203,121 and $242,545,
respectively.
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NOTES. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2018:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $10,003,944 $3,448,411 $6,555,533
Equiprhent 2,384,905 1,754,913 629,992
Land 423.840 : 423.840

Property consists of the following at June 30. 2017:

Gapjtatlzed Accumulated Net,
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $ 10,679.707 $ 3.428,094 $ 7,^51,6.13
Equipment ■2,400.922 1,889,376 ' 511.546
Land 463.840 - 463.840

£13.544.469 £5.317.470 £ 8.226.999

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state <and federal agencies under grant agfeeinehts: The eqliiphient,. whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the' drganization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30. 2018 and 2017 totaled
$463,483 arid $491,254. respectively:

The Organization also had building refinancing costs of $17,730 during the year
ended June 30, 2014. Aniprtization expense and accumulated arhoftjzatipn for the.
year ended JDrie 30, 2018 totaled $887 and $5,025. respectively. Amortization
expense and accumulated amortization for the year ended June bo. 2017 "totaled
$887 and $4,138, respectively.

NOTES. LONG TERM DEBT
The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 consisted of
the following:

2018 2017
Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,496, including interest at 4.5% per
annum, The property was sold and the loan was
paid in full during 2018. $ - $ 108,127
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Note .payable yyith the USDA requiring 360 monthly
ihstallmeritis of $1,664„ ihcludihg interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installmerit due January 2027. 138,225 150,935

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $292, including interest at 4.75% per
annum. The property was sold and loan was paid in
full during 2018. - 29,633

NotOi payable with the USDA requiring 360 rribnthly
installments of $74, including Interest at 4.75% per
annum. The property was sold and loan was paid in
fujl during 2018. - 8,103

Note payable with -a bank requiring 120 monthly
instali.mehts of $3,03'3; including interest at 4.69%
per annum. Secured by firet. mortgages on tvyo
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021. 349,131 368,428

Note payable vyith a bank requiring 60 morithiy
installments of $459i including interest at 5% per
annum. ThiS' liote was ah unsecured line of credit

that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended Jurie 30, 201.6, Final installment due April
202t..See Note S. 14,600 19,144

r^ote payable to a non-profit organization (related
party)i rnpnthjy principal payments pf $1,533. Final
iristaiinnerit due October 2018. A portion of the riote
payable was forgiven by the non-profit organization
during the year ended June 30, 2017. See Note 16. • 24:533

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
rhonthly ihstaiiments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicfe. Final installment due August 2021. 10,874 13,934

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
morithiy installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021. 10,637 13,715

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final ihstairmeht due Novertiber 2020. 3,863 5,306
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Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248, including interest at
6.10%, per annum. Secured by the Orgariizatipn's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023. 12,041 14,207

Note payable with a bank requiring 6.0 monthly
installments of $4j5l8, including interest at 4.16.%
,per arinurri. Secured by second mortgage ph
comnfTercial property. Final balloon payment was
due- Decenriber 2017. The loan was refinanced in
.March .2018. It requires 60 monthly installments of
$2;512. jncludjhg interest at 5.51% per annurri; Final
balldbn payment is due in March 2023. 403,244 417,421

Bjond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installrnerits of $14;485, jricluding interest of 2,75%
plus the bahk'sViriteitiarcO'st, orfunds multiplied by
67% With ian jndicativ.e. rate as of March 2017 of
3.28.%. Secured by first commercial real estate
riio.rtgage pri various properties and assjgnmepts of
rents at Various properties-. Final installhieht due
August2040. •^,7l'9.,260 2,801,159

Gornerstpne Housing North, Inc, capital advance
due to the Departmerit of Housing and Urban
bevelopnieht. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047. 1,617,600 1,617,600

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to. New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The: mortgage i.s not subject to interest or principal
amprtizatjpri. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payrtierit due in August 2047. ,250.000 250.000

5.529,375 5^842,245
Less current portion due within one year f142.733V (587.8091

$'5,3$6,642 ^ 5.254.436
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The scheduled maturities of |ong term debt as pf 'Jurie 30,20T8 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2019 $ 142,733
2020 148.501
2021 437,412
2022 123v200
2023 485,560

Thereafter ^.l 91.969

^ 5^529.375

As described at Note 2, the Grgani^tloh is required to rhaihtaih a reselVe account
with a bank for the fiist four notes' payable listed above. In May 2013, the
Organization began, making rrionthly deposits Xo ithe reserve account, "but had not
yet accumulated the required balarice. Fajlure to jineet thLs fequirernerit may be
coristrued by the Government to constitute deifauit;'however, the awafdirig agency
iseware of this issue and has not made a request for advanced payment.

NOTE 7. CAPITAL LEASE OBLKjAtiONS
During the year ended June 30. 2016; the Orgahizatioh leased a phone system and
cgpi.er under the terms of capital leases, expirihg in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended JuneOO. :2017, the/Company leased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expirihg tri May 2021. The
assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded lal the lower of the
present yajue of the minimum lease payments or the, fair value of the,assets; The
assets are depreciated over their estimated Ijyes;

The obligations included in capital leases at JUne 30. 2018 arid 2017, consisted of
the following:

2018 2017
Lease payable to a ifinancing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone system and will mature in November
2020. $ 5,362 $ 7.246

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
Interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in March
2021. 3,467 4,570
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Lease payable to a financing company with
mohthly instailments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copierand will mature in May 2021. 3.842

Less cuffeht portion

4.911

12,671 16.727
(4.4451 ■ (4.0571

S  1267Q

The. scheduled rhatunties of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2p18 were as
follows:

Years ending
Juhe-30 Amount

2019
,2020

2021

4;445

4.870
3.356

NOTE S. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $756,000 line of' credit with TD Bank Which is
secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases, and rents on various
properties as disclosed, in the line, of credit agreement: Borrowings under the line
bear interest at 5.00% perannurh, ahd totaled $316,0p0'arid .$40Qi0p0 'at June 30,
2018 and 20i7,. respectively: the line is subject to rehewal eabh January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the
New Hafnpshire Departrpeht of Adrhinistratipp Seiyices. On June 3Q, 2018 and
2017, the outstanding debt totaled $266,622 and $271,434, respectively, which
included accrued interest of $22 and $21,434; respectively. During the year ended
June 30, 2017 there was an amendment to the original agreement. The
Organization is not required to make payrnents of Interest or principal prior to
maturity. The unsecured revolving line of credit rhatures in Novernbef 2019.

NOTE 9. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into numefous lease comrriitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis, For the years ended
June 30, 26I8 arid 2017, the ahnual rent expense for leased facilities totaled
$165,227 and $163,025, respectively.
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Minimum future rental payments under ,non-canc.elable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30. *2018^ are as follows;

Years ending
June '30 Amount

2019 $ 157,610
2020 43,441
2021 39.611
2022 3.301.

S 243.963

NOTE 10, IN-iKIND CONTRIBUTIONS
The Grgariization records the value of ih-klhd ;contributlbns according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on yol.uriteers who donate their seivices to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon: the cornparative market wage for sinriilar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of ,a donation of in kind in the form of below
fnarket rent for some of the facilities.utilized by the Head, Start and elder,programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recbrded at ith'e difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

Many other individuals ha.ve donated 'Significant arnpunts of tirne to the activities pf
the 'Orgarilzatip'n. The financial statemehts do hot reflect any Value for these
donated services since there is ho reliable basis for making a reasonable
de'terminatibn.

NOTE 11. CONGENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-.County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of Its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,
approximately $13,773,803 (75%) arid $i2i128,016 (71%), respectively, of the
Oigahizatibh's total revenue was received from federal and state govemmehts. If a
significant, reduction in the level of support were to occur, 't would have a significant
effect on the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, liic. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2018 and 2017 approxihiately 69% for each year, respectively, of the
Organizations total revenue was derived from the U.S. pepartrrient of Housing and
Urban Development, in the absence of addilioh'al revenue sources, the future
existence of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding
policies of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
The rnajority of Comerstpne Housing Norths Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operatioris are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate rpaiKet; In
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addition, the prganizatioh operates jh a regulated enyirdnment. The operation of
the Orgahizatioh is subject to administrative direetlves, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited td; HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations ;are subject to change: !by'an
act of Congress or .an administrative changei mandated, by HU.D. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate fuhdihg Xb pay for the related cost,
including the administrative, burden, to compfy with the change.

NOTE 12. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET.ASSETS
Temporarily restricted net [assets are available for the follow/ing specific program
services as of June 30,. 2018 and 2017:

,2018 2017:

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 212.207 $ 205,804
Restncjted Buildings 190^049 '94/239
10 Bricks Shelter Funds 142,190 141,100
FAP 136,614 87,991
IDN Capacity Fund 32,194 15,066
Homeless Programs 27,680 36,856
FAR/EAP 23,249 11,735
Loans - HSGP 21,454 24,261
USDA 10,332 7.2*52
Loans-HHARLF 6,967 10,884
RSVP Program Funds 5,021 3,675
Head Start 4.172 973

Comrriunity Needs Assessment A076 i.

Donations to Maple Fund i;586 1,246
NH Charitable Fpundatjpn Grant, Mt. Jasper 32,653

12,123Service Link

L. CHIP - Brown Co. House 8,236
Donations to. Mahoosuc Trail ,6,842
Jujien Fund (ApD) . 1.175
Angelias Fund (AOD) - 235
EAR - 164

Total temporarily restricted net assets .S 817.791 Ljmm

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the' Organization is required to cdrhply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.
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Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009,- the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are -2
buildings on this site: designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as. a research and development facility , for the Berlin Mills
Cornpahy.

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
:2p12, the State of New Hampshire Department of Envtrpnment Services (the
Departrheril) noted that the rerhedial actions for the :exteribr soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Departmerit's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department-noted that the cpntaminants related to the West Wing
Building did hot pose' an exposure ha'zafd to site occupants, area r'esidents, and the.
environment provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration.. If further deterioration occurs' and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Ofganlzatipn could be requjr;ed to take additiojial
action including ccTritaihrheht and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

Duririg the year erided June 30, 2018, legal actions, were brought against the;
Organization; Due to the uhcertainty of the outcdrtie of such cases as of June 30,
2018, as well as the uncertainty of the Organizalibn's potential liability, no amount
has been accrued by the.Organization at this time.

N0TE14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in Note 6', the Organization has a loan payable to a hori-profit
organization which alsp provides pass-through stale and federal funding for some
of the Organization's prpgr'ams. See Note 6 and Note "16 for terms of the npte
payables and related fofgivehess of debt. The br'ganizatidh had a note payable to
a related party ih the amount of $24;533 at June 30, 2017. The note payable wPs
paid in full during 2018.

NOTE 15. RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNT

Cornerstone Housing Nprthi Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD's prior written approval. During the year ended June 30, 2017, HUD
approved a withdrawal from the residual receipt account in theiamouht of $13,205
for an energy efficiency project. There were no withdrawals froin the residual
receipts account for the year ended June 30, 2018. Residual receipts of $21,326
and $1,847 were held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2018
and 2017, respectively.
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NOTE 16. FORGIVEr^ESS OF DEBT

During the year,ended June 30; 2017, the Organization realized forgiveness of debt
incorne in connection with a note payable to a non-profit organization. Forgiveness
of debt income totaled $25,912%nthe year ended June 30, 2017.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are g^yehts or 'transactions that occur after the .statement of
financial position date., but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions- that existed at the statement of financial posftion date,
including -the estimates inherent in ithe process of preparing fipa„ncjaj istatements.
t^dn-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence abput
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent'events throudb Octobef 19,
2018, the date the financial staterhehts were available to be issued.
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROFESl^NAL ASSOCIATION

CE_pFIEb PUBLIC ACCpUpy^
.. WOLFEBoRO • NORtH CONUW

TRI.CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC. DOVER • CONCORD
"  jnivniAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPbRTING:ANb ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

.  IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUOmNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Qirectors of
Tri-Cburity Cbrh'rfTunlty Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, Nevy Hampshire

yyp have-audited; in ■a,ccprdance_with the a.uditirig standards generally accepted In the United States of
America-arid the.standards" applicabie to financial audits ;cbntairied in Gb'C^erhm^nt Auditing Standards
issued by the Cbrriptroller General of the United States; the. :financial statemerits pf Tri-Cpunty
Community Action Program,, lnc;'(a nonprofit organizatloii), which comprise tlie staterriehi of financial
po'sltioh as of June 30, ,2018, and the felate'd stateniehts of actiwties, furictidrial exiaenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financjaLstaternentS; and have issued pur
report thereon dated October 19,2018.

Internal Control Over Flriancjal Reporting

In planhlhg and performing our audit of the consolidated financial staJemenU); we,, considered Tri-Counly
Commuriity Action Program Inc-'s internal'control over financial reporting Jjn'ternal contrd]j'to determine
the audit pfocedures; that are appfopfiate in the cifcurhstahces for the purpose of expressing pur
opinion on the consolidated fjnanciai staternerits, but not for the purpose of expressing :an opinion on
the effectiveness of Tri-County Comniunity Action Program Iric.'s iritefrial control. Accofdihgly, we do
hot express an opinion ori the effectiveness of Tri-County Comrnuriity'Action Program Inc/s'ihtemal
coritrdl.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the desig.n or operation of o control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functiohs, to prevent, or
detect and correct, rhisstaternehts ori a tiriiely basis. A niatefial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement Of the entity's financial statements will not be preverited. or detected and 'cbrfected bri a
tirriely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a cbmbinatibn of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a materiaj weakness, yet Important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be rnaterial
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during pur eudit we did not identify any
deficiencies in iriternal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-Couhty Community Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatemen't; we performed 'tests-of its compliance with
certain provisions ;6f,'laws, regulations, contracts, and'grant lagreements, ndncbmpiiance with which
could have a 'direct and matenal effect on the detei^inatipri of corisblidated financial statement
amounts. However;, providing an opinion on compliance with those .provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not e)^ress' such an bpinidn. The results of out" tests disclosed no
instances' -of noncompjiance or other matters that are required 'to be reported under Goyemment
Auditing Standards.

Purpose pf this Beport

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results :of that testing, and not to proyi,^ an opirTjqn on the effectiveness of the
organization's internal cdhtr'OI or on compliance; this report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October i9i 2018
North ConwaVi New Hampshire
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

PROFE^imA^lATlON

CERTIFIED PUkiC ACCOUNTA^
WdLFEBORO • NORTH CONW

DO\'ER> CONCORD
-STRATHAM

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PjRQGRAM. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PRbCRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Tb.the.Boafd of Directors of

TrhGourity Community Action Program, Iric.
Beflih, New Hampshire

Repbil oh GdmpNance for Each.Major Federal Pfogfam

We"}iave audited Tri'-ebunty Community Action ProgramJhc;js .compliance with the types of .cbmpliance^
requifemehts described in The 0MB-'Compliance Supplemerit-ihai could have a direct and rriateriial'
effect'pn each of TrirCounty Cprnrnunity Action Program Inc.'s major fe>d_eral pr.ogramstfor the year
ended durie 30, 20'l8. Tri-Counfy Commuriity Action Program Ihc.'s rriajOr federal programs "are
identified in the. summary of auditois" results section of-the (accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Managemeht- Is responsible for compliance with the requirerifiehts of laws, regulations, coritractSi and
.grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our respbhsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-Colinty Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on pur audit'of the. types of compljance requirements'
referred to above. We conducted our audit of Compliance in accordance with auditihg standards
generally accepted-in the United States of America; the .standards-applicable to financial audits
contatned in Government Auditing Sfandards, .issued by the Cpmp.trplier General of the United States;
and the faOdIt requirerhents of Title .2 U.S. Code of Federal RegUlaiiohs Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance- require that we plan and perform the audit to
obfairi reasbnable assurance, abbut'whether n'ohcbmpliarice with the types of cbrripliahCe requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a rnajor federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
corihpliance with those requireriiehts and performing such other procedur^es as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We beiieve that bur audit provides a reasonable basis .for bur opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does-not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Pfbgfam Inc.'s cbrtiplia^hce.
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Opinion on Each MajorFederal Program

In our^opiriron, Tri-County Cpmm.unity Aptipn Program, Inc. .compjied, in a|l rnajerial resp.ects, with the
types of;cbmpliahce requirements referred to above that could have a direct and maieriai effect on each
of its major fedet^aj programs.fpr the year ended June 30,20'18.

Report on Internal Cpntrpl over Compliance

Management of Tfi-County Community Action PfOgram, Ihc. is responsible '.for establishing and
rnajntaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance- requirements
referred ,td above. In piahhing and performing ouriaudit of compiiahce. we considered TriTCounty
Community Action Program Iric.'s interhal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
pfo'cedufes that are appropriate in the cifcumstahces for the purpose Of, expressing an opinion on
compjiance'fpr each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the- purpose Pf expressing an opinfon oh the
effectiveness of- iriterhal control over cbmpliahce. Accordingly,^ we do not express an opinion oh the
'effectiyehese of Tri-CountV Community Actiori Program, [nc;'s internal control oyer cpmpliance.

,A deficiency in interhal cohtrdi over cbnipliahce exists when the design of operatibh of a cbntfol over
compljance does not allow management nr empjpyees, ijn the normal course of performing their
•assigned functions, to prevent, Of detect and .cbn-ect, no'ncOrhpliance with a type of compliance
requirement, of a federal program oh a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance, is a" deficiency, or corri.binatron of deficiencies, in internal, control over compjiance, such that,
'there is a reasonable possibility that hiatehal nohcbmpliahce with.a type ofcomplianceTequiremeht of a
federal program yyilj not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on- a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance, is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies; in
internal control over corhpliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
isevere .than ,a mafenal weakness in Jnternal control over ̂ compliance, yet' important enough to merit
•attentibh by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal controj over compjiance. was, for the limited purpose described in the .first
paragraph Of this .sectibh .and waS'not designed to identify all deficiencies in inte'fhal cbntfol over
corppliance that rpjght be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did hot identify any
.deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
rhaterial weaknesses may exist that have hot been identified.

The purpose Of this report on internal control pyer compliance is solely to describe the scope Of our
testing of internal control over compiiahce and the results of that'testing based on the fequifem'ehts of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 19,2018
North Cbnway, New Hampshire
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TRI-COUNTY fcOMMUNITV: ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND. QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018

1. The. auditors' report expresses an,unmodified opihibh on the financial statements of Tri-Gpunty
Commuiiity Action Prograrn, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are' reported in the.
Independent Auditors' Report on.internal Control over Financial Repbrting arid ori .Compliance
and other Matters Based oh ah Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing'Standards.

3; Np instances,of noricompliance material to, the financial staterhents of Tri-Couhty Comrriuriity
Action Prdgfarfi, Ihc. which would bb required to be reported in accordance with Gbvernmejit
Auditing Standards, vyere disclpsed during the auditr

4. No significant deficiencies in internalxoritrol over major federafaward programs during, the audit
are reported iP the 7/^ependen Auditors.' Report on Cbrnpliahce for Each Major Pfopram and'
oh lhterhah.eontrot,bver Cbmpliahce in Accordance \with the Uniforrn Guidance.

5. The auditors' report oh conn~pliance fpr the major federal^ award programs fo,r Tri-County
CommunityActipn Programi Inc./expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs'

6: Np. laudit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2-CFR 206.516(a) ̂are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The'prOgrams tested as major programs included:

U.S., Dept. of Health & Human Services; LIHEAP - CFDA'#93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, TANF Cluster - GFDA #9,3.558

Electrical Assistance Program (Non-Federal) - NH Public Utilities Conipany

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was'$756,060.

9. Tn^County Community Actjon Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDjT

None
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Jeanne L. Robillard

CORE STRENGTHS

Program development, management and administration □ Community collaborations
Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet funder standards
Grant writing and management □ Budget perfonnance and financial reporting Innovative
solutions & problem solving □ DCapacity building
Professional presentations □ Public speaking
Dedication □ □ Imagination □ □ Detennination □ Fortitude

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Tri-County Commiuiity Action Programs, Inc.
Chief Executive Officer

Berlin, NH current FT employment
Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc.
Chief Operating Officer
Berlin, NH 2016 - 2018

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that
provide over 60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire.
Essential duties melude; supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program
resources, revenues, expenditures and budget perfoimance; tactical oversight of programs
to meet or exceed agency defined strategie goals; develop and implement strategies to
improve individual programs and overall agency program and fiscal performance;
oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan, Community
Needs Assessment proeess, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service imtiatives. Provide taetical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues
and problems in the daily operations of programs.
Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc.
Division Director: TCCAP Prevention Services
Berlin, NH 2015- 2016



JL RobUlard *2

Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention

Services; oversee division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget
performance; general oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; supervise program directors; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and
prepare grant reports and financial statements for fimders and agency; develop

fundraising and mariceting strategies for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service
delivery;

collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative
testimony.

Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc.

Program/Division Director; Support Center at Burch House

Littleton, New Hampshire 2007- 2015 Oversee daily operation and supervision of
domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential shelter; write grants to support
programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for fimders

and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and monitor
budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim

advocacy programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and
federal law; develop fimdraising and marketing strategies; participate in state and local

collaborations to enhance victim services; represent program in state and federal victim

service initiatives, including presentation of legislative testimony; create and present
traimngs for medical and legal professionals on legal standards and best practices for
victim services.

Bookeeper: Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network (WREN)

Bethlehem, NH current PT employment

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, fimds release and account transfers, bi
weekly payroll and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end

reconciliations for bank accounts, credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales;
monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail locations, preparing monthly cash flow,
forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directore.



JL RobiUard *3

Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc.

Direct ServicesA^olunteer Coordinator: Support Center at Burch House

Littleton, New Hampshire 1997 to 2007

Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence;
supervise court advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and
interns; develop agency systems, policies and protocols; create and present community
outreach presentations and campaigns; present school-based violence prevention classes
for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: HaverhiU Area JuvenUe Diversion Program

Woodsville, New Hampshire 1999-2001

Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community
programming for diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative

relationships between the court system, juvenile service officers, local police
departments, and diversion program; prepare and file court reports on diverted youth;
community outreach and education

Counselor/Title I Teacher: Northern Family Institute-Jefferson Shelter

Jefferson, New Hampshire 1996-1999

Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support
groups, develop and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients,
supervise and tutor youth in classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills
Education

BS in Human Services, Springfield College School of Human Services, Boston, MA
Criminal Justice Concentration, Graduated with 4.0 GPA

AS in Drug and Alcohol Rehabilitation Counseling (DARC Program)
Southern Connecticut Community College, New Haven, CT

Additional Skills, Professional Leadership and Civic Affiliations

□ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2006-
2010



JL Robillard *4

□ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003^ Treasurer 1996-
1998

□ Chairman, Haverhill Area Family Violence Coimcil 1998-2003
0 Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor
#NH16199

□ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
□ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; Individual Member
2008-2017

□ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 2015
□ Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current
□ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
□ DTCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011
□ Bethlehem Citizen's Advisory Committee on Recycling 2007-2010
□ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006
□ Small Business Owner ; Aurora Energies 2015- current
□ Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997- current
□ Member, United States Figure Skating Assoc/Intemational Skating Institute current
since 1993

□ Avid outdoor enthusiast and angler



REGAN L. PRIDE

summary

My experience:spans the fields of engineering, coirqmKr iMbiwipgy, educaUqn, and i^blic adiniiiistretioo
"This'unii^ combination brings a wide array of bwwledge i^ skUiis to .die,tablc.fb.r yotir, prgauaizatiqii. J.am a
team player: a patient trainer, and adept at interpersoi^l relations.

REVELANT kNOWLEDGE AND SklLL AS

C^nndence in piiblic.speaklng'for business Md'technicarappljcati^^^ mstmctidnal sIMn^
•; Strong writing skiUVand interpersonaJ cqmrnunjMtm teMH bther5,.ah'd build consensus
•: Approachable; \rarm and p.et^nai:!le'style' in't cluses.and'interacting w
• Rpbusreducatipn in ma^eniMjcs,*ehgin^ ^iehce'topics
• Flucncy.with entire ̂ cto^ft^OfficeJapp
• Flucncy'wi^ Autp^ drafting'software
•• F^ili^ty with" ArdView GIS softvwc:
• Familiar uith'Avante.Ehtierp'm Planning software
• F^iliar,wth,BMSLfund a^untihg:and:Avitar assessing/tax billing sofhvare
?- Adept at Macromedia/Adobe Dreamweaver.MX web site design software

WORK EXPERIENCE

NORTHCOUNTRVCOUNCIL REGIONAL plaining COMlSSION,-Littleton,-NH
JITLE: Planner,:2012r20l3 +2015-2018
.Mahagcd'solid'waste technical assistance program fiinded byUSDA'Rurai Dcvelppment. Conducted "FulVC^^
Accouhtihg? studies of municipal solid waste department operations;.Reviewed^and updat^'operatihg plansTof
mwicipal solid w^'te facilities.'Oiganized household hazardous waste collection events. Created and'deliver^
training programs.Tor ̂ lid'was'te ci|xrator certification.. Created,pilotiprograms to reduce ̂  divert f(^ wasle
fn^ landfills jh ̂ .communities.

2013.^201A

INNOYATiyE STRUCTURAL BUILDING PRODUCTS
TITLE: Pfoject.Mahager
Pcifonncd.a.vanety of-fuhctions includlng busihess plan,preparation and product development wsqcialed wth a'
startrup: company in the engineered wood sheathing industry..! created engi'neering;drawihgs, built arid^t&ted
pTptoy^s.and assis'ted.'lh'rharketing activities.

.2M0.- Prcseht'
ICANTC»^^TERP Lisbon,NH
'TITLE; Owner, Cpmputer. Applicatlons;Consulttng
.As^stahce and training business .arid technical applications. Created customized solutions involving
AutoCAD, MS Work, MS.ExccI, MS Access software,applications';,I also perform web site HTML and CGI
deyelppmeht,;hardwa~re/»^^ aTi'd!tix)ubleshobting.
(Wceht clients/prtgccjs Include:
•  l^ew EriglMd Electric Wire Corp - Implementation of Avantc MRP &'APS scheduling software,

wniputerized >yiP labeling sy«crn,.computer woricstation installailions,'user/operator training.
"  Littleton,'NH Senior Softball League-^ custom programming and support of statistical software
*  Lo'uisiwa'Co^o'rate Credit Union - Web site design and maihtenance.
■  BranimerCfeek - Web site design.for wholesale food distributor;



•2006,f:'2012
town of Lisbon, nh, Lisbon,.hiH.:
|TltLE: Town
;Prcparcd aiinjl?! budg^^^ pcrfoTmed prcsentauons ai budget hearings Md town meeting. Prepwcd
wnual fintocjal rejwrts (MS-2, MS^i MS-6) for the town.'Generated lax 'warrants; and "water/sewer wanahts
•Analyzed wtor/wwer reyem^^^^^ rate stnicturcto bailee dep^rttociit*rbud^^^^ the
functions of finMclal adifiimstratioh, pcrsonnel:managemenf, grant adm'lnisjratjpnVweif^re
emergency mwiagemehj; and,p^

1990r2066 &'26b4 - 2006
I^W EN<UA^ CATHE
(Subsidiary ofNew^England Wire Tcchhol6gl«)
'TITLE; CDgineer,.Medjul Products
Pef^oj^ed ptocpss siip^rt in the manufacture of wireTreihfpreed^m^^ mcliidihg;
e^P'PIPenf specifiiratloh^proces&p^ tooling dcsi^,-and Sitfficai data '
iDevelpped cust6m.i|cd_0f(S^ for produrt:design,;and manufacturing process cphtroT:
I was ajso employi^. with the parent company as an engineer/CAD operator (roml l^O to While.in this
opacity, I. led pe groups. Installed the first EthenTet net^kjlifHe cplfipMy ehglrieering:
t|®partmCTt; wd/dcyeloped.cbmputer.filcmanagement'sysicms;Md toci(up''roj^^

■2bb2-.;2d64
'SGHWL-ApMINISTRATiy&M
ilTLE:'pistance
This |»sition teachers and-stafr'tovdcv^PplHtera^^^ cducatiohal programs
"tihzing ̂ st^pe je^mg/videbconferencing iechnology. P were iljstribufed j>etweeh three high school
camRus«/puties included sc'tupl corifiguratibn, operation and.mainten^cC of vidi^hfcrcnclhg ehdpoints -and
oporatjpntofMdg^^te.way as webmaster fbr'SAU wcbiiterfai^ wiTdrm^^^ yaribus.
coinputer support duties.

EDUGATION/GERTIFI^

Bureau pf^ucati^ Training
•CPM CertificajcfCertifie'd Pubic Manager)

University.of California'at;Berkcley;_Ehgincering.C|c"pajimcnt
92 semcstor'credib.in Mkhanicai EngineeHhg'Majpr:

GpNTINUTlNG EDUCATION
-• NH.Ccriified.Ptiblic: Supervisor progr^
•  .Kadvislon'H.232 techrdcian course'
,• Six Sigma process conffolxourre-by Bo^ Corp.
•  Extrusion Theory course at U^y^jty of MasM^ Lowcil

PROFESSIGnAL & civic A^pCIATIpNS
'• Board of Directors,•North'Gountiy 'Council.Reglbrial PlannihgCommissionj

Beihlehem, NH;r2007.20r2; Served as ch-airitian in 201,1.
• GraftonTCoos Regional Cop^ihating Gbuhcll.(f6r public transit);-Littleton,- NH;'2p09-20i 2
• Member of NHMMA.NHGFOA.NHLW A A-2006:2^^^^
;• Board of Seliectm^i Lisbpri; NH M^h 2000^2006. Served as chairman from 2002 to 2006.
• BoardofDirectprs, ListonMmn'Street, Inc., Lisbon, NH;2f)'08-20T2;^
• gnomic Resjructurihg Committee.of Lisbon Main'sfreet, Inc., 2602ip;rcserit
• Member pf G.i^lte Stare Distance Learning Network; 2062•'2M4 ^

REFERENCES

Professional references shajj be produced upon request and presented at tirnc of interview.



Randall S. Pilotte

Summary

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include:

Financial Statements Accounts Payables Inventory Fixed Assets
Payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables Sales/Use Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

Experience

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.. Berlin, NH 06/2013-Present

CFO (2017-Present)
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify performance goals for the Agency and to
maintain systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial management systems and activities of the Agency with a budget of $18M.
•  Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside

regulatory agencies.

•  As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance
policies, objectives and programs.

•  Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,
coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews of Tri-County CAPs divisions.

• Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the department; recommend promotions and salary
adjustments.

•  Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP's facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan.

•  Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor investments associated
with each property.

•  Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (2016 - 2017)

•  Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.

•  Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.

• Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monitoring's by fimders and auditors.

•  Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconciled periodically.
•  Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.
• Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual fmancial reporting; and implementing

departmental goals.
•  Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.

•  Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)

RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:



KENT NUTRITION GROUP. INC. fgk/a Blue Seal Feeds. Inc.). Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010

Assistant Controller (2005-2010)

•  Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
individual financial statement in accordance with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

• Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

•  Oversaw all aspects of proprietary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

•  Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
•  Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits.
•  Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.
•  Oversaw month-end accruals.

•  Assisted and responded to auditors' requests on annual audit.
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. Concord, NH 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988) •

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, Frankuin Pierce College. Concord, NH



DAWN FERRINGO

Experience

irevenaon Services Uivisioii uirector, Iri-L'ounty CAP. Berlin, NU July 2016 to
present

♦Write, manage, and administer federal, state, and local grants and grant deliverables
♦Provide supervision of all programs directors under Division
♦Oversee and administer all fiscal and administrative matters related to programs, including
budget preparation, tracking, and management, grants preparation and management, reports
to funders and audit requirements
♦Maintmn program documentation and ensure compliance with fimding standards
(including audits, reports and compliance checks) and objectives as required by fimders
♦Prepare monthly financial reports and Division reports for CEO/COO and TCCAP Board
♦Ensure program integrity, viability, and compliance with all fimding standards
♦Ensure program has adequate resources to sustain operations and programs
♦Represent program at community, business, and civic fimctions
♦Develop and maintain positive collaborative relationships with area health and human
service providers, and other civic and business organizations
♦Represent Division programs in federal, state and local initiatives
♦Organize, plan, and prepare agency development and fimdraising projects

Shelter Manager, Tyler Blain House, Tri-County CAP, Lancaster, NH March 2016
to June 2016.

♦Responsible for the general welfare and safety of all Shelter Residents.
♦Direct intake and exit procedures
♦Maintain appropriate client records.
♦Oversee the enforcement of house rules and standards of conduct.
♦Coordinate and assist with the provision of case management services for residents.
♦Supervise other House staff: hire, train, schedule and evaluate; oversee the submission
of payroll forms.

♦Oversee the maintenance of the Shelter building and grounds with TCCAP Facilities;
keep the interior orderly, clean and safe, the exterior sound and presentable, house
vehicle, appliances and office equipment in good working order.
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*Maintain cash receipts for shelter guests rent, submit rent revenue to Accounts

♦Receivable, and review and submit bills for payment.
♦Be responsible for the receipt, storage and disbursement of donated goods.
♦Keep necessary records; prepare and submit reports on Shelter activities as required by
funders.

♦Enter statistical data into State HMIS system; act as one of the coordinated entry points
for the Northern Region per State of NH BHHS, attend HMIS trainings as needed.
♦Operate under strict client confidentiality and code of conduct requirements.
♦Abide by the Homeless Programs Ethics Policy.
♦Public Relations Representative for the Tyler Blain House and related TCCAP programs
to mclude statewide Shelter Meetings, other meetings and opportunities for community
outreach as necessary..
♦Assist Homeless Programs Manager and Prevention Division Director with fund raising
and grant writing.

♦Communicate regularly with Homeless Programs Manager and Prevention Division
Director; inform them of important issues promptly.

Director of Welfare, Town of Bethlehem, Bethlehem, NH July 2009 to March 2016.
♦Developed municipal welfare policy and maintained policy integrity, viability and

compliance with NH RSA 165, Aid to Assisted Persons.
♦Oversaw and administered all fiscal and administrative matters related to municipal
welfare including budget preparation, tracking and management.
♦Effectively reduced over all municipal welfare budgets by 60% over the course of three
years through program evaluation and established new policy and program facilitation
practices.

♦Provided case management for clients who qualify for general assistance, which often
includes resource and referrals networking and client advocacy.
♦Employed a method of self-care with clients including self assessment, goal setting,
strategies and desired outcomes in the Seven Areas of Wellness.
♦Momtored legislation and new programs and makes recommendations regarding the
administration of the welfare function to the Board of Selectmen;
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♦Made frequent collateral contact requiring considerable skill and tact in eliciting
confidential and pertinent information in order to determine eligibility for assistance.
♦Maintained meticulous case files, case notes, and other related records.
♦Established and maintains effective relationships with state and local social services
organizations.

•Maintained strict confidentiality practices.

Development and Special Events Manager, Adaptive Sports Partners of the North
Country, Franconia, NH October 2013 - May 2014.
•Annual Fundraising and Resource Development: Worked with the Executive Director
and Development Committee to create, oversee and manage annual fundraising plan for
the organization. Helped to establish new mission statement, strategic plan and case
statement for the organization.
♦Event Management; Managed key fundraising events throughout the year including;
Wobble 'n Gobble Thanksgiving Day 5K, Pirates of the High Skis, Sunrise Ascent on
Mount Washington, Any Which Way You Can Triathlon Challenge, and multiple smaller
events.

•Outreach and Communication: Promoted Adaptive Sports Partners of the North
Country's mission and business operation in the community and beyond.

Workplace Success FacUitator/Community Job Specialist, Tri-County CAP,
Littleton, NH September 2007 - January 2011.
•Conducted daily work simulated sessions through "Service Bureau" projects and
Workplace Success curriculum to participants enrolled with the NH Employment
Program (NHEP).
♦Followed each participant's NHEP Employability Plan in an eflFort to resolve
employment barriers.

•Coordinated Community Work Experience Program (CWEP) in Grafton, Coos, and
Carroll Counties for participants who completed Workplace Success.
♦Developed and maintained relationships with the volunteer sites and acted as a liaison
for these sites, the client, and the NHEP Employment Counselor Specialist.



DONNA M. C. KEDDY

Career Objective: To utilize my experience in the Probate Forum to advocate for
incapacitated individuals for the improvement of their quality of life.

EMPLOYMENT:

2003-Present - Tri-County CAP, Inc. Guardianship Services- Director
Directorship approved by Board of Directors on 4/21/2004

Acting Director effective 5/13/2003

1993-2003 - TCC/GS Assistant Director/Estate Supervisor

1/01/1993-5/12/2003 - Duties include Management of the Estate and Trust Departments,
direct supervision of five financial managers, ie: Estate Managers, Payee Specialist and
Benefits Administrator, indirect supervision of entire program staff as Director's
designee. This position also includes carrying an Estate and Trust Caseload.

1991-1992 - TCC/GS Estate Manager

6/1991-12/1992 - Duties included the development of a more efficient system to manage
and account for wards resources. Continual training and understanding of the Probate
System and all public assistance programs and syst^s, plus Social Security and Veteran
Administrative systems. Also carried an Estate and Payee Caseload. Duties also
included Administrative Program functions. Direct supervision of estate and support
staff.

1988-1992 - TCC/GS Administrative Assistant/Staff Guardian

11/1988-12/1992 - Duties included Administrative Program Functions, Payee
Responsibilities, and a guardianship caseload at Glencliff Home for the Elderly.
1985-1989 Bookkeeper for Diamond International Corporation
Woodland Division based out of Lancaster/Groveton, New Hampshire

EDUCATION:

1973-1977 Ludlow High School, Business Study

Ludlow, MA

National Honor Society
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CERTIFICATIONS: Member since 1988, Registered Guardian, Conference Presenter
National Guardianship Foundation. National Master Guardian, Center for Guardianship
Certification.

Professional Qualifications and Background;

♦Development of comprehensive program policies and protocols for the establishment of
Estate, Trust, Protective Payee, and Braefit Management Services for state-wide
public guardianship program with oversight of the associate director, staff
guardians, estate and benefit staff in both Whitefield and Concord offices.

♦Consultation services to family guardians and individuals either considering
Guardianship over a loved one or education regarding guardianship standards
and responsibilities both on a fee-for-service basis and as a professional
courtesy to the Probate Court and the general public.
♦Member of the National Guardianship Association (NGA) from 1988 to present.
♦Certified as a National Registered Guardian through the NGA in 1997.
♦Presenter at the National Guardianship Conference in Arlington, Virginia 1998.
Topic: The Keys of Estate Management ^The First Ninety "Days".
♦Selected by Judge Maher, then Administrative Probate Judge, to be on his
committee to produce a handbook to guide, assist, and provide resources to
individuals that are responsible for making health care decision for others.
"Making Medical Decisions for Someone Else: A New Hampshire Handbook (2007).
♦Appointed to Judge King's Task Force on Professional Guardians 6/24/2008.
Purpose: need to ensure that the guardians serving the vulnerable population are held to
high professional and ethical standards and have adequate education, training and
expenence. (Article in Coos County Democrat July 2, 2008). The NH House passed the
proposed legislation for the amendment on RSA 464-A: 10 on 5/2Q/2009.
♦Certified as a National Master Guardian through the Center for Guardianship
Certification on 4/1/2010.



JAYNE ELIZABETH MCCABE

Career Objective;

To work for a customer orientated human services organization that enables me to utilize
a variety of leadership and management skills in a challenging setting.

EMPLOYMENT:

8/98- present TRI-COUNTY CAP, INC., GUARDIANSHIP SERVICES

Associate Director - 4/04 to present

Duties mclude assisting the Director in the overall management of the program,
supervision of staff guardians, training and orientation

of staff, and quality assurance activities. Managing assigned case load.

Senior Staff Guardian-11/02 to 4/04

Duties included direct supervision of 7 staff guardians, staff training and orientation, and
working with the program management team.

Staff Guardian- 8/98 to 10/02

Duties included making medical and treatment decisions for incapacitated adults,
working with treatment teams from a variety of community agencies, and advocacy.

4/83- 11/98 MOORE CENTER SERVICES INC.

Self Determination and Special Projects Director- 2/98 to 11/98
Primary responsibilities included coordination of regional self-determination project a
part of a state-wide grant from the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation. Primary focus
included developing a data collection system, facilitating necessary training, and
Identification of systems issues which impacted the ability of the consumers to exercise
choice and control. Secondary responsibilities included coordination of regional quality
assurance activities.
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Quality Assurance Director-11/93 to 2/98

Areas of authority included coordination of regional quality assurance activities;
coordination of regional client rights activities including complaint investigation,
problem resolution and trend analysis; and, coordination of regional staff development
and training activities.

Director of Regional Residential Services- 2/88-11/93

Areas of authority included directing programmatic support and administrative services
for residential programs services 127 individuals within a seven community region;
management of owned and lease property, negotiating and monitoring subcontracts;
formulation and management of program budget.
Residential Supervisor- 3/86 to 2/88

Supervision of staffed residences; recruitment, training and supervision of private
residential providers; and, coordination of quality assurance and licensing activities.
Various other positions within the agency- 4/83 to 3/86

EDUCATION:

1986 NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE, Manchester, New Hampshire
M.S., Human Services Administration

1983 SAINT ANSELM COLLEGE, Goflfetown, NH

B.S., Criminal Justice

CERTIFICATIONS:

Center for Guardianship Certification;

National Master Guardian 4/2010 to present

National Certified Guardian 10/1999 to 4/2010



Tri-County Community Action Program, inc.

Key Personnel

Guardianship Services

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $115,000 0% 0%

Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer $75,000 0% 0%

Reqan Pride Chief Operating Officer $70,000 0% 0%

Dawn Ferringo Prevention Division

Director

$52,999 0% 0%

Donna M.C. Keddy Director GS $59,862 25% 2%

Jayne McCabe Associate Director GS $48,443 65% 4.5%
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JcfTrey A. Meyers
Comcnissioner

Kalja S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5000 1-800-852-3345 ExL 5000

Fax: 603-271-5058 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 10. 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral
Health, Bureau of Mental Health Services, to amend sole source agreements with the
vendors, listed below, to provide public guardianship services by increasing the price limitation
by $2,679,403.50, from $3,963,444.40 to an amount not to exceed $6,642,847.90 and
extending the completion date from June 30, 2018 to June 30. 2019, effective upon Governor
and Executive Council approval. The agreements were originally approved by the Governor
and Executive Council on June 29, 2016 (Item #21) and subsequently amended on
September 27, 2017 (Item #18). 2%Fecleral Funds, 98% General Funds.

Vendor Location
Current
Amount

Increase/
(Decrease)

Revised
Amount

Office of Public Guardian Concord, NH $2,893,803.20 $1,979,921.50 $4,873,724.70

Tri-County Community
Action Program Berlin. NH , $1,069,641.20 $699,482.00 $1,769,123.20

Grand Total $3,963,444.40 $2,879,403.50 $6,642,847.90

Funds are available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 with the authority to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval
from the Governor and Executive Council, If needed and justified.

See attachment for financial details.

EXPLANATION

These agreements are sole source because Revised Statues Annotated (RSA) 547-B
establishes the Public Guardianship and Protection Program for guardianship services to be
provided per RSA 135-C:60 and 171-A:10. RSA 547-B:6 and requires the Department to
contract with one or more organizations that the New Hampshire Supreme Court has
designated as a public guardianship and protection program. The Office of Public Guardian
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and Tri-County Community Action Program are the only organizations the New Hampshire
Supreme Court has designated as public guardianship and protection programs.

The Vendors provide guardianship services, statewide, for up to 1,077 individuals with
mental Illness or developmental disabilities as well as to incapacitated adults who are abused,
neglected or exploited leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their inability to
provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs.
These services are needed to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard
incapacitated persons who are in state institutions as well as in community mental health and
developmental service programs, statewide. The emphasis in providing such services will be
to ensure that the guardianships are maintained and limited in accordance with the standards
embodied in RSA 464-A.

These agreements also provide mentoring and training services. Mentoring services
are provided to family members who are willing to serve as guardian but who require a period
of support. Providing this support will remove the need for a public guardian in these cases
and will save the State from paying the cost of a permanent public guardianship.

Additionally, approval of these agreements allows the vendors to provide protection
services, ori a statewide, basis. These agreements also carry out the requirements of RSA
135-C:60, RSA 171-A;10, II and RSA 161-F:52. The Contractors agree to seek
reimbursement from other payer sources, such as social security, when providing protection
sen/ices.

The attached Contracts include language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions, Item 3, that reserves the right to renew each contract for up to two (2) additional
years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of contracted
services and Governor and Executive Council approval. The Department continues to be
satisfied with the sen/ices provided by the vendors. The attached amendments exercise one
(1) year of renewal available for these contracts, leaving one (1) remaining year of renewal.

Should Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department will
be in violation of legislative mandates. Also, there may continue to be a waiting list for
individuals to receive public guardianship services. Additionally, should the request not be
approved, the financial ability of the vendors to continue providing services may be
compromised, which may greatly impact services to vulnerable individuals.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 2% Federal Funds from the Administration of Families, Department of
Health and Human Services, Social Services Block Grant, CFDA #93.667, Federal Award
Identification Number 1601NHSOSR75, and 98% General Funds.
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In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox

Director

Approved by:^ ^ "

J wrey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.

n



Financial Detail

05-9S-92-S20010-7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS:BEHAViORAL HEALTH DIV OF, OIV OF
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUAROJANSHIP SVCS

Offica of Public Guardian

Class TItto Class Account Current Amount Increase/IDecrease) Revlsorl Amount

2017

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $1,050,915.00 $0.00 $1,050,915.00

Subfofaf $1,050,915.00 $0.00 $f.050.9f5.00

Tri-Ccurrtv Communltv Action Program

State Fiscal Year Class yitic Class Account Current Amount Increase/IDecrease) Rr-vlsed Amount

2017

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $421,607.50 $0.00 $421,607.50

Subtotal U21.607.SO $0.00 U21.607.50

0&-9$-92-922010'4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHStBEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Office of Public Guardian

Stato Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Currant Amount . increase/IOecreasel Revised Amount

2018

Contracts lor Program
Services

102-500731 $1,642,688.20 $0.00 $1,642,888.20

2019

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $0.00 $1,879,921.50 $1,879,921.50

Subtotal $1.U2,888.20 $1,879,921.50 $3,522,809.70

Trl-County Community Action Program

State Rseal Year Clas-^ yftle Class Account Current Amount Increase/rOecrease) Revised Amount

2018

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $648,033.70 $0.00 $648,033.70

2019

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $0.00 $699,482.00 $699,482.00

Subtotaf $648,035.70 $699,482.00 $1J47.S1570

05-95-46-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHStELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES,
GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Office of Public Guardian

Stato Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Amount Increase/IDecrease) Rnvlsftd Amount

2017

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500734 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2018

' Contracts for Program

Services
102-500734 S100.000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2019

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500734 $0.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00

Subtofa/ $200,000.00 $100,000.00 $300,000.00

Grand Total $3,953,444.40 $2,679,403,50 $6,642,847.90
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New'Harnp&hire^Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship.Services. .

State of New Harhpshire' ̂  i
Depailmeht of Health arid Human.Services.

Amendrrient #2.t6.th.e.
Guardianship Services Contract

■  • : • This 2"^ Ameridme'nt'to theiGuardlanship Services'Corilract (hereinafter refeired to aS'"Arnendment #2").
• dated.this -l" day of May; 2018; Is by and" between the State of New Hampshire,'De^rtfnent-of He'aith

: aihd.Hunian •Services (hereinafter referred to as the ""State" or "Department") and Tri-Cbunty .Qommunity
•  .Action Prpgramj.1n.c; (hereinafter referred to as "the. Cpritractor"); a nonvprofit corporation with.a-,place of

business at SO Exchange Street; Berlin, NH, 03570. J
; WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreernen.t (the-"Contract") approved.by the Gov.emor and. Execudye.Council
;bh-June^20,,2016: (Iterri #21:), and subsequehtiy arnended on Sieptember .27, 2017 (Item #18), the
:  .Contractor, agreed to perform certain' services, based 'upon the terms and .con'ditiohs ;sp6ciflbd in

■ Con'ti^act as brhended and ill consideration of certain'surns specified; and

.: WHEREAS. the'State and.the Contractbr have agreed to rfiake changes to the paymeht-schedujes arid -
■  ■ terms.and Gonditjons..of the contract; and

■ . WHEREASi/pursuahtrtip-iKe Gerieral Provisions,'Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-l,Paragraph-3, the State
.  • : niay modify the^scope of work and the payment.achedule of the contract upon-,written agreemehfof the•

•.■■ -.parliesarid apprpyalfrpm.the Goyerpqrand-.Executlve Council;and. . ,
■  ■ .WHEREAS,- the'parties' agree to exterid ithe' terrris of the agreement, increase the price, limitatipn, and

. : riribdify the scope; • .
.NOW THEREF.ORE, In consideration-of the .foregoing, and the mutual • covenants arid conditions.
-.cbntained-in the Contract and sot forth herein, .the'.partieS:hereto agree to amend as follows:- • =
'  . Foim P^37 General Provisions, Block 1.7; Corh'pletion Date, to read:: . •

'."June 30.-2019. ' ■. 'j
■  ■2.'. -FoItti P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.8 Price Limitation to read:. ■

769,123:201 ' " V -
3. . /Add" Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section -3; Scope of'Work-.AppllMble.to-Ail Guardians.hjip'

Services,-Subsection'3.18 as follows: ■

■3:t8; The Contractor .agrees.vthat if the performance of-.services" 'Inyoiyes: the :'coileclion,
transmi-ssion, storage,; pr .disposition of data on behalf of DHHS including; substance use
disorder (SUD) data created by a Pari 2 provider, the Contractor shall maintain the data
subject.to;the r^.u.lrements stated in 45 CFR Part 2. .

'4. Delete.in Its entirety. Exhibit B, Method and Conditlqns Rrecedent to Payment, Section-S.tand .
: • replace-with the followlrig:-

: 3:1. The per dlem: reimbursement rate; for die.provision of .guardianship-over the; person"
"  serMces or over the estate seh/ices to persons served under .this Agreemerit .^hali be

$6.81 per-ward, per.day.'for up to 280-clients whose, guardianship, services are requeisted
", by the.:bepartment's Bureaus of Mental Health Services, and Deyelopmerital -Services.

.5; Delete:Exhibit K:(dated 032917) and replace with Exhibit K (dated 04042018).

•trVCduhly Cwiimwilty Acilon Program.-Inc. ■
■  -Amendment #2
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Guardlanshtp.Serylces.

State of'New Hampshire

Department of Health and 'Hurrijain Services'. "

IMA'

Date •Katja S. Fox

Director '

Date

T ri-Coiihty Community Actiori-Program;. Iric.

Narn^Jtarme L. RobillAd

Title: Chief Executive Officer

State of New Hampshire- • . Couhtv of Coos

be the: person whose: riame is;signi
. capacity^icate4aboye..

on - - 14 May 2018 .• before the;
5,'.or s'atisfadorily proven,to

t'in.the"

Kristen PaHridge'Adminis^ttiv.e Assistaht'/

Mr-
*  MY
CXMWOSSION

S  ; EXPli^: \ 1
1 \ NOV. 22.2022 i |
&

Ha

-My Go'rhmiwiCn Expires: N6vcmW22 2022..

Trt-CbuhtyCornmunftyAclionProgram.-lnc.

SS-2bi7-BMHM2-G'UARD:02,
;  [Amendment #2
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Quardianship.Seryjces.

The preceding Amehdment.'having beenTeviewed by.this office, is apprdyed as tpforrn- substance, and'
execution.

Date'
•  ! '

OFFICE OF THE'ATTORNEY. GENERAL

Name:

.a.:
TlUe:

It was approved by-the Governor and Execiitlve Council of
: • " :: (date of meeting); ; .

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STAtE .

.Date : Name:- .

Title:'

• jfl^ouhty Cbmmunjty Action Prooram, Inc.'.'

SS.2bi7-8MHS^^UARb^
Amendment ff2

Pege 3ol3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Hurhian: Services

Exhibit K .

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. ', Definitions ' ,'

The folloyyihg terms may be reflected and. have the described, meahlng in this document:..

; ■ 1.. ."Breach". means the loss of control, compromise, -unauthorized, disciosilire,
.unauthorized" ■acquisitioh, unauthorized'access, or .any slmiiar.^term-refernng .to

situations where, persons other than, authorized users and for .an other-than
. authorj^d purpose have access, or potential .access to persohaiiy.Jdentifi.abie

information^ whether physicai or. electronic. .With regard to Protected Health .
infdrmatiori, " Bre.ach".shaji.have the same meaning.as the term "BreachMn seciion

.  : 164.402 of Title 45. Code pf Federal Regulations. : i -

■ yZ '"Computer .Security inddenf shall have .the-same inieaning "Computer Security
'  Incldeht" ln;section two (2) of NiST Publication 800?61,: Computer .Security Incident

.  . Handling :Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S: Departrhent, ;•
ofComrrierce. ^ ' • •

•3. "CorifidenViarinfOrrhation'' bf "Confidential Data" means all' confidehtiarinfonriatjon •
'  - dlisclosed :b.y. one' party^ :to the other- such as' alj mediMlj ih'eajth.i financial,, public
' .'assistance benefils-and personal InforTnatlon.in'cluding-withput iimltatibn-. Substance

• - Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information' .iand = '
. Personally, identifiable information..

. . . • Confidential Infprrhation.also includes any and all information,oWned.br.managed.by ..
the State=6f-NH.- created,'received from pr.on behalfof the.Departmeht .of.Health and .
Hurtian.Services.'(DHHS) or accessed' in the course bf performing'coritraded .

.' . services T of which, collection, disclosure; protection, arid disposition 1s'governed by.
.stat'e or federal law or regulation. This information Includes,-but. is not. limited to -
.RrPteded Health' information .(PHI)', Personal Information (PI), Persbhai. Flnandar '
infonrriation (PFI),- Federal Tax .Information (FTI), Social Security-Numbers. (SSN),

.  "'.Payment Card'.Iridust.ry (PCI), arid or otheraerisitlve arid confidential"iriforrriatiph. -r

■  :.'.'4i- "End .User"- means' any. person or- enti^ (e.g:, -contractor.'.contractor's; employee,
.  . business associate, subcpntractpr.' .other downstream; user, 'etc.) that receives

DHHS data or derivative-data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5.- ."."H!PAA":means.ihe:Heaith;insurance Portability arid Accountability. Act "of. 1996 and the
.  . . ' reguiatiohs promulgated thereunder.

. 6.: i ; incident" means an act that potentially .violates an. explicit" or Implied, security'.policy, . :
-  which ̂ includes attempts (ejtherfailed.or successful) to gain unauthorized: access to a

system briits data'; unwanted disrup'tibh: or dpniaj of service, the-unau'thbrized .use of
:  a.systerri for the".processing.'or'.storage'of datai^and chariges to.'system-hardware, "
'  firmware,-^ br:sbfiware characteristics-'vyithout the:owner^s knpwledgel iristructlbn; or -

consent. 'incidenls i'nciude the loss of data through theft or device-misplacement, loss
' br misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misfouting of physical, or'electrohic-.

V4.L^ update'04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initlab.
.DHHS Information . .

Security Req'ulrements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

■  -Exhibit K.,. -

DHHS Infortnatloh Securlty Requirements

■ ■ niail, all of'which may .have-.the-potential to, put the. data .at-risk .of unauthorized,
access,-use, disclosure, .modification: or destruction.- • '

■7; ."Open .Wireless Network" means any .network of segmeht.b^a network-that is
.  . not designated by . the State of New Hampshire's Dep.artment'of ■Iriformatipn-'
;  • ••■.Te'chhblpgy dr. ,delegate 'as.':a protected network (desigried,- tested -and-.
.  approved,', by means of the State,' -to transmit) will be cons.idered an open

•/network and.not adequately secure for the transmission of unericfypted'PI, :P.Fl,
;  ■ PHl or cpnfidfenlial DHHS data.; ^

8.. ."Perso.nal .Information" .(or "PI") means informatipn;wh,ich, can be used to distinguish
br;frace ari.individuars identity; such asihelr name, social security number, personal.

.Information as defined ;in New-Hampshire. RSA 359^C;19, .biorrietric records; etc-.,
■ ; alone; or \iyhen ,cpmbihed with other-personal or Identifying inform'ation whlch isDriked

or lirikabie to a specific.Individual; such as dateiand place.of :birth, motheris itiaideh.
narhe; etc.

■  " ■ 9. "PriyacyRuIe' shaiimeantheStandards for Privacy of lridividuairy.rdferltifiable..Health.'
Ihf6rmati6h.al-45:C.F.R. PartS:160 and *164, promulgated under HlpAA by:lhe.United.
States.Depa'tynent of Health and'Human Services.

10": "Protected Health Information"-.(or "PHI") has the.same rrieaning as provided in the.
■ definition.of "Protected Health Information''in" the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C-.F.'R. §
160.103, ' '

•.11.'"Security Rule", shall mean the .Security Standards for, the Rrotection .of Electfbnic.
Protected-Health Information af.45 C.F.R. ,Parf 164, Subpart'.C, and amendments'.

. thereto. "

..12.- "-U'nsecured Protected Health Information" rnea'ns Protected Health lnfprmatipn that is
• -riot, siecufed .by a •techriology' Staridafd. that-reridere" Protected. Health Inforrhatioh

unusable, unreadable, or. Indecipherable -to -unauthorized- ..individuals and is
developed or endorsed.by a staridards.developing organization thatls'-a.ccreditsd.by
the American Natipri.al-Standards Institute.- ■ , .

I RESPONSiBiUTIES OF DHHS AND THE CON^

. A.; [Business Use and Disclosure, pf .Confidential Informatlbn.

'1., ;The Contractpr must:not use,-disclqse, maintain ortfahsm.it Confidential Infonnatiori
■ . except as reaspriabiy necessary-as' outlined under this Contract..Further,- Contractor,'

"  . including;but'not limited, to all its directors, officers, employees arid [agents, must.not
use', di^lose; maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that-vvould constitute a violation

•  [ ; ,6f the-Privacy .and Security Rule.
2. -The Contractor, must.not disclose any Confidential -Information In responise-to" a

V4: Lul'Update04.04.20.1d - Exhibit K Contractor Initials
.  , . ' : ' - DHHS rnfonnalion

Security Requirements
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New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K.

DHHS inforrhatloh Security Requirements

-  . request for disclosure on .the. basis, that it is required by. law,-.in "response to. a
tsubpoena, :elc.,.'.without first hotifyih^ DHHS'so that; DHHS" has an opportuhity to-
consent or object to the disclosure... .■ !

3. If DHHS-notifies the" Contractor that DHHS has. agreed to- be. bound.by additioriar
■ restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards- of ]PHI-

■  . pursuaht to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bpiind by .such
i  ' . -.a.dditionai :"restrictions arid .rnust not. disclose PHI iri violation of such additional.' V- . . Testrictlpns and rh.ust abide by,any additional security .saf^uards.^ " • ^
.';4.; -The Cpntractdr^agrees that DHHS Data;or-derivative, there from disclo^'d:tO:an End

User mustonly be used'pursuant to the terms of this Contract. . . . .
5. The Contractor agrees DHHS .Data obtained.under this Contract may. hot be.u^ for

any.other.purposes thatar.e. not indicated iri this GOritract. .' .'
.  ;6;" .TheiCpritractof agrees to "g'rarit access Jto. the-data to the .authorizedJrepresentatiyesi

"of-DHHS.'-for the.-purp'osd of inspecting to cohfifm compliance Virtth-.^e. terms of I this
-  ' i ' iContra'ct.. '

Ih :METHdDS OF SECURE tRANSMISSiON OF DAtA i-

• .1. Application . :Ehcryption. . ,If End User Is . transmitting" DHHS data . containing
'  .Cphfidehtiar.bata. between applications, the Qoritractor attests, the applicatlonshiave

• been evaluated by :an' .expert knowledgeable in cyber security.and that said"
■  . application's.encryption capabilities ensure.secure.transniissioh'via the internet. !. .
2. Cdrnputer Disks and Portable: Storage Devices. End .User may not iise. computer disks
. • .or portable.storage devices,- such as:a thumb driye,:as a methodiof trahsmlttingiDHHSi
"  ■ data. .' ■ . '
3;..Ehci7pled :Email. :End User may only employ email to transmit CbniRdential .bata If

email-is encrypted and being .sent to .and .being receivefd, by email addresses pf
; pdrsons-authorized,to receive such irifo'nrnation;. , :

■.4.".'EncrVpted. Web .Site. If ;Ehd .User. is. erhploying' the -Web. to transmit .Cohfrdentiar
.  Data, the .secure socket layers (SSL) rhust be used and the web site, musf .be
.'- '.secure;. SSL en'crypts data.trarism.itted via a Web site.- . -." 1
:5; -File.'Hosting:Seiviees;.also' as.Rle Sharing.Sites. End-User rriay-not use'file

.  .hosting services.,-. -.auch . as Dropbox- or Go.o.gre Cl.o.ud- Storage, , to transmit.
Confidential Data. ■ . ■ :

6. .Grdurid Mali Sen/ice! End User may only transhiit CdrifidentiahData^via certified ground-
■ mall within the continental lJ.S. and wheh sent-to.a named Individual.: ■ ■ ■ j

7.' • Laptops;, and PDA,"- If. End: User: Is employing' pb.rta.ble ;devlces. .to trarisrfiit
; Confidential Data said deylces must be encrypted and password-protected. . !

8;. Open Wireless Networks: End User may not transmit Conridentlal Data via an.bpen

V4.. Last update 04.04.20.18 Exhibit K . Contractor Inl'Uis
-DHHS Ihformalioh . .

Security Requirenionts -
Page 3 of 9 - Date



New Hiampshire Department of; Health and.Human: Services

Exhibit K.

DHHS Information iSecurlty Requirements

, - ' wireless n^^ork..End User must employ" a .virtual private hetwork- (VPN)'.wh"en"
■ ".Terriot'ely transmitting via an open'wireless network'. 1 -

9.i iRernpte" User Communication. If Grid User is employing remote commuhicatioh tO'
.access-or'transrnit Confideritial- Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must-i be.
jnst'alied dh the End. User's mobile device(s)'dr laptop frprn which Inform.atlqn will be .
trarisrhltted.or accessed. . .. i .

.  . 10; SShi File transfer Protocol (SFtp), also known as Secure File .Transfer Protocol/ If
•  • iEnd- User is employing ari: SFTP to -transmit Confidential! Data, .End User iwill:

-•". structure the Folder" and access privileges to "prevent-inappropriate disclosure of.
.  infdrmatiori'. SFTP folders and sub-folders,used for transmitting-Cohfidential Dateiwill'.

.  ■ be .Coded fdr.24^hbur autordeletion.cycle (I.e. Confidential Data.will.be".deleted every 24-
hdlills),.

■  11..Wireless Devices. jf 'End Userl.s transmitting Confidential Data via:wireless, devices," aW-
data.'m.ust be encrypted to prevent inappropriate di^losure of information," . ■ ■ i

lil, RETENTION AND piSPbsiTipN OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS ' ,

V. .The Cpritractor will only-retain the data,arid any derivative of the data for the'duratipri bfithis
■ .Contract.: After such time," the Cbntractbr will have , 30" days to - destroy .the; 'data arid jany

.•.'derivative In .viti'atever-form it may .exist,, unless, .btherwise required by law or perrriitted
". "."upder.this Contract: to thls.erid, the parties, must:. .' '

.'A. Retention ' .

■"."T. ./The- Contractor'.agrees it will not store, transfer'or process "data collected 'in
.. connection-with-the services'rendered'under ihls Contract outside; of. the United;
'  ' States.; this physical location requirement shall 'also .apply in. the,'implefTientatlon of

. . ; cipu.d computing, cloud service or; cloud storage capabilities, and-.ih.cludes backup
.  ' ' data.andDis'aster'Recovery;localions.-

. - = '2. The Cont'i^actor^agrees to ensure proper security rnpnitorjrig .capabilities'are Jn= '
■  place to detect poteritial security events, that. can. imp'act .State .of. NH' systarris

• 'and/or pepartrfi,6hf.cohfidentlal Information fpr.cbntractbrprbylded .system^."- [
\ • 3.- i iTh'e Cbntractbr agrees to prbyidp "securi.ty :"awafeness and edU'catibri:for its^End.

•  .Users in support of protectirig Department confideritial'information: ' m
' "4. . .The Gpntfactor agrees tb.retairi all electronic eind hard copies of Confidenli'al; Data

.-. in a secure location.and Identified in section IV. A.2 j .
5. " 'The Cpntractpl*. 'agrees Confidential "Data stored in a ;Cloud'must "be in a.

,  FedRAMP/Hl.tECH cbmpllanf solution arid comply with,all applicable statutes,;an"d. .
riegUlations-regarding the privacy and security.. . All seivers-an.d deNrices must'have

.currently-supported and .hardened operating' systems, the.- latest' a'ritjfviral, -antir
hacker,anti-spam, ariti-spYware, arid aritlTrhalware utilities, the environment,".as a

V4. L^st update 04.04.20.1 S ' Exhibit K Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

.  ' ̂ -Exhibit K. ■

DHHS infohnatloh Security Requirements

.'whoie,.niust have.aggressive ihtrusion-detectlbn and'firewairprotection..'

,  ■ :6! , The Cpntrabtor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation .with'the State's ■
Chief infofmatibh: Officerin theidetectibh of any security vuiherabiiih' of the hosting;
'infrastructure..'- ; i

B. Disposition . :•

.1. If the Contractor .vwit" maintair} any Confidential Information ;on its systems (or its-
.  .\su'b-cohtractor. systems), the "Contractor will ma.intaiii a documented process for

.. , securely .disposing of, such data. upon, request or. contract, teirhinatipn; and-will
.  :obtain written cerlifi.cation for any State of New Hampshire data: destroyed-b^ the .
; .Contraetoror;anysubcontractOrsas.a partpf pngolng. em;ergencyi and:or-diSaSter
• recovery operations.- When no loriger in use, electronic media containing Sta^ of

:  . < New-Hampshire: data shall be rendered unrecoverable via ai secure wipe 'progfarh;
-In accordance with industry-accepted standards .for .secure, deletiori and'media
sanitlzation, or -otherwse physically • destrb^ng ; the -.media-, (for example,-,
degaussing) as described In NISI Special Publication 800^9,-Rev i, Guidelines
for. Media. Sanitlzation, National institute of-Standards and. jeehnplogy, .U. S.-

. Department of Commerce, the Contiactor v^i! dpcunient and certify In. w^tibg at.
tiriie of the data, destruction, and vyilfprovjde written certificatiori to th'e Deparirnent

.  upon request; the "written certification.'will include all -details necessary, to
• •' .demonstrate data has-been properly destroyed and .validated: Where applicable, .

■ .reguiatpry and professional standards for 'retentlpri requirements'wil be .jpint|y
.  ..evaluated by the State and Contractor priorto destructipn.. ;

: ;2.-' Unless • otherwise specified,- -withln_ -thli^ (30) da;^:'of the termihatipn iof./this
■.'•Gbntract, Conb^ctdr agrees to. destroy'ail hard copies of Corifideritiai Data using a

secure rneth'od.such as-shredding.; • . . .

-. 3. Unless.-.othenAtise specified, -Within -thirty (30). days of the termination, of.jthis
. Cpnlract, Cbntractor. agrees -to cdrnpletely:destroy-all; electronic Confidential .Data
.  . byme'ans of. data erasure, aiso:known as secure data wiping. - . . . ; ; . . ; ; i.' ' ' '

IV.; PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

'. .A;' Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHH$^Data;received unde.r this. Contract-, arid any
'  -derivative data or files,-as foliowe;.

-The Cohtractbr- ; will: maintain. proper security controls to. protect Depar^ent
- ; ; .confidential information collected, processed, managed,;and/or^stbred ,lri:the-deiivery,

of contracted services.

-  . 2.,-The; Contractor will maintain policies and procedures -tO' prptect-.-pepartmeht
.confidential: infofmation throughout the. information lifecycle; ;where. aijijiicabie, (from
creation,-transformation, , use; storage and secure destructibri) regardless of the
media used:to store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). '

.V4. 'Last update M.'04.26i 8 " . • Exhibit K ' Contractor Inftlala
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human; Services

■Exhibit K. '
DHHS Infomiatioh Security Requirements '

3: The Cdn^ador .wiirmalhtaih. appropriate. authentication and access . controls-to
•. contractor, sydems that collect,' transmit, .or istore Departrhent confidential- InfoiTnation

-where applicable.

A. '.jhe Cohtractp.r wili -e.nsure- proper'.security' rnonitprihg capabHiti.es arejn pla^ to-
"  ' detect potential.';security- events that- can. Impact ,State.'.ofvNH. :syStems' 'and/qr"

•Department confldentiaiinformatlon for contractor provlded systenis... • • •• • ;. •

■5." The Contractor will provide regular-security awareness and education-for; its End.
Usere'In'support of protecting pe'parimeht confidential information.

.6;- If-the-Cpnttaclpr'.vyill be. sub-contracting any.cdre functions-'of the; engagement
•  -supporting the services-for State of -New Hampshire,, the-Contractor will maintain-a.
.  program- of .'an : internal process. ;or- processes that. defines specific - security

expectations, and monitoring cornpliance-to. security.r.equlrements that at a minimum
match those for the Cbhiractor,-including-breach notification requirements. .

■T'-.the Contractor will'work with the Department to sign and. co'rhply with .all aplplicable
"State'ofNew Hampshire and,Department system access and.aUlhoriz'ation,policies.'

- and'procedures,, systems'access forms, and computer-use-agreements as: part of
•' obtaining ;and -maintaihihg access to ahy.'Departhrient- system(s). Agreements: will- be

completed and signed by the Contractor ahd'-ahy applicable sub-contractors prior to
-system access being authorized.

8. If-the Department determines the Contractor is.a. Business Associate pursuant to 45-
• CFR 160.103;. the'Cqntractor vyill execute'a HIPAA Business Asspclate, Agreement
-(BAA) with the Department and- is responsible for malhtainlng.compliance with, the-
.agreement. ,

■Q. .the' Co'ntrectof. will, work with, the .bepallment -at Its .'request' to. corfipjete. a' System'.
: ̂ M'anagerhent" Survey. The purpose, of the suwey is'tq enable.the Departrhent-ahd

Contractor.to mohltor.for^ any changes iri risks', threats,, and.vuinerabilities.that may,
occur over'-th'e' life.of :the Cdhtracto'r engagement.': The survey, will, be completed

.-ahhualjy, or ah. alternate time frame st the Departments discretion-,with-agreement by
■ the =Cb'ntfactor, -or' the. Department may request'the .survey .be cqrhpieted. whdn. the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes:

16. The.Contractor-will.not store, knowingly or uiikn6wlrigly,.any State of New Haiiipshire.-
- or'Department .'data-offshore or- ; outside'the: boundaries of. the United 'States unless
• prior expre'ss-witten. conserit Is , obtained from, the .Information 'Security. Office
leadership.rriemberwithin-the Department. i - .

tli'Data-Security. Breach;Liability^ In the event of'any security breach .Contractpf'.shall.
make efforts'to. Investigate'the ;caus.es; of the; breach, - promptly take- measur:es .to-'
p'revent'-future breach and miriimjze any damage-or. loss resulting-from the-breach.

: - The State shall recover from.-the C.ontractor all costs, of response; and .recovery frorti

y4:. Last-update 04.04.201'8 . . . -Exhibit K . . . ConlrMtor In'rtials
-  = DHHS Information

.Security Requiremdnls. .
Page 6 of 9 -Dale



New Hampshire Department of; Health and Human Semc^^

■Exhibit K. '

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the' breach, includihg but not. limited to: credit .monitorihg seiyices, -mailing. c6sts| and
costs associated with websltevand'telephone call center sen/i^s nectary.'due to
•the breach.

Contractor must, 'Comply with all applicable statutes- and.regulations' regarding. the
.■priyacy .and security of Cbhfidehtial Ipfbrtnatioh, and mustMh'all. other respects
•maintain the privacy and security of PI.and PHI at a level and scope mat is not|iess

. m'an the level and; sco'f^ of. requirements, applicable to federal agencies, Iricluding',
but not limited to,, provisions of :the Privacy Act: of 1974 .(S US.C., §• 552a),; DHHS -

:  : Pnvacy^Act :Regulatioris: (45 .C.RR. §5b)," HIRAA Privacy, and Security.Ru|es| .(45
,  : :C.F.R. Parts 160 and' 164) that govern protections, for. individually identifiable; health
•  lnformatjo"n" and as applicable under .State law. |

1-3. Contractor agrees to'establish and maintain appropriate, administrative; technical; and
physical, safeguards to protect the confidentiality of .the. Confidential Data .'and to

; prevent .unauthprized use or access to it.' The. safeguards .must provide' a level and
• i'scof^ of'Security that isi not less Jthan th.e level ehd scope of security requirerinentS:
' established by'the State of New Harnp'shire, Department of Infomiation Technology;

.  :F^efer toiVendor Resources/Procurernent at;https;//www;nh.gov/doit/vendbr/lhdex.htm
•. for the Department of. Infbrmaliph' technology, policies,' guidelinesi'.s.taridards.l.and

procurement information,relatirig, to vendors:. ,

■,14,.-Coritractpr agrees:, to maintain; a documented, "breach " notification ,ahd .Incident:
'  .msponsa. "process..'The" .Cohiraclor will notify the. -Slatb's Privacy. Officer,'and.
. . : additionar.email addresses provided in this secfi.on;.of,anysecurity'breach= within two

' (2).hours of the.tirrie that the Cohtractpr" learns of its.pccuirence.. this includes a.
. cdriflderitlaT .IhfbrifTiatibh breach, "computer security: incident,Vor.':Suspecfed, breach'
. which '.affects or includes any State of Nevy, Hampshire systems that connect to the

'. StatePf New'HamipShlre.network;

15; Cpntractbr' must resthct accbss.".t6 the" Gorifidential. 'Dafa pblairied" under, .this."
Contract "to .only those auihorlzed End. Users .who heed isuch DHHS Data to
perform.their pffi.cialputles In connection with purposes Identified in.this Contract.!:,

•16.'The Contractor mgsl'ensure that.all End.Users:

a.. comply. : With such safeguards as referenced . in -Sectipri IV .A. abpve,
•  . , j.mpiemente.d to protect Cbnfidential . information, that. is. furnished, by DHHS

under this Contract firom losS} theft or Inadwrtent disclosure. '. • ' ^ |
b.: : safeguard this'information at all times,; . : J-

.  c. ensure that laptops and,other electronic devices/media coritaining PHI, PI, or
•PFi are.encrypted arid password-protected.- ■ . . . ' .

d. seiid;erTiails: confairiing Confidential Infdrmatibri:only - if encrvoted and deifig
sent to and. being' received by email addresses'of • persons, authorized to

.  receive suchJnformation.

.V4; Ustupdats 04.04.2018 ExhlbllK Contractor Initials
.DHHSIfirormalion

Security Raquirerrenls
Page7of9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

- bHHS InfoFmatloh Security Requirements

,e. limit'disciosure of the Confidential Infonnation to "the extent permitted bylaw." •

f.. ' Confidential ■ Information received ■ under this "Contract and ■ "Individually
:  identifiable data-deriyed from DHHS Data,.miist;be stored in;ari."areathatfs:

physically and'technolbigicaHy secure from: access by unauthorized-persons
during duty hours as: well as non-^duty hours (e.g., door locks, card'keys,
bibmetfic identifiers, etc.)." • ;

g.. -prily authorized End Users :may transmit the Cpnhdential'Pata.-.inclijding any
'  derivative files cpntaihing persphaily identifiable- information, and" in all-cases,-

subh data" must'i).e encrypted,'at-all :tlm'es-when "in transit.".at resi, bn"when
stored on portable media.as required In section IV above.;,;

h. in." all other instances Confidential Data must be rriaintaihed, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined'.by. - a risk-based"
"assessment .of the circumstances Involved..

L". understand that .their user credentials (user name and -password) must not be
shared with anyone^ End Users will: keep their credential information- secure.
This, applies to credentials used to access the site directly "or indirectly, through
a third party application.

• ■ Contractor Is. responsible for oversight and cpmpliance :of their -End .Users.. pHHS.
reserves the right to" conduct :onslte [inspections, to monitor .compliance;-with ;this.

-  :"Contract, includingfhe' privacy .and-security- requlrerhents-provided.in herein,- HIPAA,-
. ; i'-and ether applicable jaws "and Federal regulations until such "time, the Confidential Data

is disposed of In a'ccordarice with this Cpritract.'

V: LOSS REPORTING

The. Contractor must notify the State!s Privacy "Officer, Inforination -Security Office arid
Program 'Manager :0f any Security Incidents, and ̂Breaches, within .two- (2) hpure' of -the:
time that the Contractor leams of their pccurrence.

.The. Contractor must .further handle and report Incidents-arid.Breaches ̂Involving PHl'iri
.accordance vyith the .agency's documented Inddent .Handling .and .Breach Notification
.pr.oce.dures."and.in. accordance with 42.C.F;R.-.§§"431.300,-- 306. In addition.to, and
notwithstanding," Contra'ctor'.s.compliance with all'applicable obligations and proce.dures,

. Cpritractbr's procedures must a|so address how the Contractor will:..

■1. " Idehtify'lricidents;-
:Z ".Determine.if 'persori.ally.ideritifiable Information Is involvedriri|ricidents::."' ' '
"3;. Report-suspected or confirmed Incidents as-.required in this. Exhibit or:P-37:
4.. Identify arid conyene a core response group to determine the risk-leye! of Incidents

and deterrnine risk-based responses to .Incidents; arid ̂

V4:. Last update ()4.'04.2018 Exhibit K . . . " Contractor Initials
DHHS rrifofmatlon - •

Sccu^ Requiremonts. ,
Pag© 8 of 9 Date



■Exhibit K.

DHHS InfbtTtiatioh Security Requlrertients

.  .5.. Determihe. whether .Breach " notlficatioa^ requited, .arid, if so'., identify- appropriate
: ^Breach hotificatlon."methods, timirig;-'.soufciB;' ahd contents fi'om .arriong/different

'-. options, and .bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as-any mitigation
•  measures. - ' ' v i '

Incidents ,ahd/or-. Breaches- that' irhplicat'e PI rhust be addressed-."arid reported,
appiicablejn accpitience.with.NH .RSA 359-C:20,

as

PERSONS TO CONTACT

A.

VI.

.DHHS.lnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov.

■ B.'... DHHS.cbntacls'for Privacy issues: - .
- -bHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.hh.gov ■

V .-.C: -DHHS Contabt-for Infor^matipn'Security issues: . •
i  = D.HHSIriforrnationS.ecurityOffice@dhHs.nh;gov

D.:. DHHS.cohtact for Breach notifications:

issues:

■;DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gbv .

• \-.

.V4: Last'update'04.04.201B Exhibit K
DHHS ihtomiatioh .

Security Requirements
Page 9 of 9
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JefTrey A. Meyers
CommissSoaer

Kitji S. Fos

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIKE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

BUREA U OF MENTAL HEAL TH SER VICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5000 1-800-852-3345 Ext 5000

Fax: 603-271-5058 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

August 23, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,.
Bureau of Mental Health Services, to enter into Amendments to sole source Agreements with the two
Vendors, listed below, to increase the per ward, per day rate and number of clients for whom public
guardianship services may be provided, by Increasing the price limitation by $818,300.40, fijom
$3,145,045 to an amount not to exceed $3,963,444.40, effective October 1, 2017 or upon the date of
Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, with no change to the end date of June
30,2018.6.4%Federal Funds, 93.6% General Funds. . ■

Summary of Contract Amounts by Vendor:

Vendor Location

Current

Budget
Amount

Increase /

(Decrease) Revised Arhouiif'
" t

Office of Public Guardian Concord. NH $2,301,830 $591,973.20 $2,893,803.20

Tri-County Community
Action Prooram Berlin. NH $843,215 $226,426.20

i

$1,069,641.20

Grand Total $3,145,045 $818,399.40 $3,963,444.40

Funds are available In State Fiscal Year 2018 with the authority to adjust encumbrances
between Slate Fiscal Years through the Budget Office If "needed and justified, without approval from
Governor and Executive Council.

See attachment for financial details.

r"
EXPLANATION

These Agreements are sole source because Revised Statues Annotated (RSA) 547-8
establishes the Public Guardianship and Protection Program for guardianship services to be provided
as required by RSA 135-0:60 and 171-A:10. RSA 547-8:6 requires the Department to contract with
one or rhore organizations that the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as a public
guardianship and protection program. The Office of Public Guardian and Tri-County Community Action
Program are the .only organizations the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as public
guardianship and protection programs.



His Excaliency. Governor Christopher T. Surtunu
'  end Ihe Honorable Cound)
Page 2 ol 3

Approval of these Amendments will allow the Contractors to continue to provide public
guardianship services to existing wards, while also increasing the capacity to provide the same
services to more wards. In the past year, there has been a waiting list for services provided under this
contract and by increasing the amount of wards to be served the current waitir^g list can be eliminated.
Over the last several years, the costs to the Contractors for providing public guardianship services
have increased, however the contract amounts have remained the same. In an effort to alleviale the
financial strain on the Contractors, the Legislature approved a rate Increase for State Fiscal Year 2018.
This increase In funding will enable the Contractors to continue to be financially viable and continue to
be able to provide services.

The Contractors provide guardianship services statewide for up to 1072 persons with mental
illness or developmental disabilities and to incapacitated adults who are abused, neglected or exploited
leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their Inability to provide for their own food, shelter,
health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs. These services are needed to meet the State's
statutory obligations to safeguard Incapacitated persons who are In state institutions as well as In
community mental health and developmental service programs statewide. The emphasis in providing
such services will be to ensure that the guardianships are maintained and limited in accordance'with
the standards embodied in RSA 464-A.

These Agreements also provide mentoring and training services. Mentoring services are
provided to family members who are willing to serve as guardian but who require a period of support.
Providing this support will obviate the need for a public guardian in these cases and will save the State
from paying the cost of a permanent public guardianship.

Additionally, approval of these Agreements will allow the Contractors to provide protection
services, on a statewide basis. These Agreements also carry out the requirements of RSA 135-C:60,
RSA 171-A:10, II and RSA 161-F:52. The Contractors agree to seek reimbursement from other payer
sources, such as social security, when providing protection services.

The attached Contracts include language that reserves the right to renew each contract for up
to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department v«ll be in
violation of the legislative mandate. Also, there may continue to be a waiting list for Individuals to
receive public guardianship services. Additionally, should the request not be approved, the financial
ability of the Contractors to continue to be able to provide the services may be compromised, which
may greatly impact services to vulnerable individuals.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 6.4% Federal Funds from the Administration of Families, Department of
Health and Human Services. Social Sen/ices Block Grant. CFDA #93.667, Federal Award Identification
Number 1601NHSOSR75. and 93.6% General Funds.



His Excellency. Governor Christapher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

In the event-that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:
mrey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is toJoin communities and families
In pfovi(Sng opportunities for citizens to achieve health end independence.



Financial Oetail

OS-95-92-920010-7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS:BEHAV10RAL HEALTH DiV OF. OIV

OF BEHAVIORALHEALTH, LEGAfGUAROlANSHIP SVCS ,

OfOce of Public Guardian
1

Stale Rfical Year (p lass Title Class Account Budoflt AmouTtt
Inerssse/fOaereasel Revised Budoet

2017

Contracts for Program
Sorvlcos

102-500731 S1.050.915.00 $0.00
1

$1,050,915.00

Sub-total $1,050,915.00 $0.00 $1,050,915.00

•

Trt-Countv Communlw Action Proaram ,

Increase/fDecreasel Revised Budoet

Amount Amount

2017

Contracts for Program
Servicos

102-500731 $421,607.50 50.00
1

$421,807.50

Sub-total S421.607.50 SO.QQ $421,607.50

f

05-95-92-920010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS:BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV
OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEQAL-GUARDlANSHfP SVCS i

Office of Public Guardian

State Fiftcai Year Class JUje Class Account Budoet Amount
Increase/fOecreasel

Amount

Revised Budoal

Amount

2018

Contracts for Program

Services
102-S00731 $1,050,915.00 -  $591,973.20 1

$1,642,868.20

Sul>total $1,050,915.00 $591,973.20 $1,642,683.20
1

Tfl-Counlv Communilv Action Proaram 1

State Fiscal Year piassTltlf ' Class Account Budoet Amount
Increase/fDncreasel

Amount

Revised Budoet

Amount

2016

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $421,607.50 $226,426.20
1

$648,033.70

Sub-total $421,607.50 $226,426.20 $648,033.70
i

05-95-4M81010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS:ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES.
GRANTS TO LOCALS. SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT 1

OfUce of Public Guardian . 1

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Budoet Amount
IncreaseffDecreasel

Amount

1

Revised Budoet

Amount

2017

Contracts for Program
Servicea

102-500734 $100,000.00 $0.00
1

$100.000.00

2018

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500734 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,0^.00
Sub-total $200,000.00 50.0C $200,000.00

Grand Total $3,145,045.00 $818,399.40 $3,963.44440

Page 1 of I



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301 •
Fox: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1.800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/ doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

August3), 2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents forms! notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)"
has approved your agency's request to enter into amendments to sole source agreements with the Office
of Public Guardian and Tri-County Community Action Program, as described below and referenced as
DolT No. 2018-080.

The purpose of this amendment is to provide increased capacity for guardianship sen/ices
statewide for persons with mental illness or developmental disabiiitiies and to
incapacitated adults. These agreements also provide mentoring and training services.

The amount of these amendments is $8)8,300.40, increasing the price limitation from
$3,145,045 to an amount not to exceed $3,963,444.40, effective October 1,2017 or upon
the date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, with no change
to the end date of June 30,201S.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

S(nccrcly

Dents Goulet

DC/mh

DolT «2018-080

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

"Jnnovot/ve Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the
Guardianship Services Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Guardianship Services Contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment V) dateb this
16*" day of August, 2017. Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Tri*County Community Action Program, inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 30 Exchange
Street, Berlin, NH. 03570.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contracf) approved by the Governor and Executive Courwli on June
29, 2016 (Item #21), the Contractor agreed to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the payment schedules and terms and
conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 16, the Agreement may be amended only by written
instrument executed by the perties thereto and approved by the Governor and Executive Council;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to Increase per ward, per day rate for clients whose .guardianship sen/ices are
requested the Department's Bureaus of Mental Health Senrices and Developmental Services and increase the
price limitation.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing artd the mutual covenants and conditions contained in die
Contract end set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: |

1. Add to General Provisions. Form P-37, Block 1.6 Account Number the following:
05-95-92-920010-4114X00-102-500731 '

I

2. Amend General Provisions, Form P-37, Block 1.6 Price Limitation to reed: $1,069,641.20

3. Delete in Its entirety Exhibit B, Section 3.1 arid'Teplace with the following;

3.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the person services or
over the estate services to persons served under this Agreement shall be $6.61 per ward, per
day. for up to 290 clients whose guardlartship services are requested by the Department's
Bureaus of Mental Health Services and Developmental Services.

4. Add Exhibit K

Remainder of the page left Intentionally blank.

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc
Amendment#!

SS^l7-eMHS-02-GLIARO-02 Page lot 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Katja S. Fox
Director

TrI-County Community Action Program, Inc.

<^ 9.
Date

pAlfi iS^A .
Name: Robert G. SoscMn, Jr.
Title: chief Executive Officer

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of Nevtf Hampshire Counly Of Hoos on 8-21-17 before the undersigned officer,
personatly appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily prov^ to be the person whose r\ame Is
signed above, and ackru^edged that s/he executed (his document in the capacity indicated above.

Slgna^^of Notaiy Public or Justice of the Peace

Suzanne C. Fretv:-h. Notary
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: fi-ie-i8

Tri^ounty Communny Action Program, inc.
Amendment 01

SS-2017-eMHS-02-GUARO^}2 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date /
Z

Name;

Tttle:"
fl-vVt

I hereby certKy that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Cpvemor and Executive Council of the St^
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Ttl-County Community Action Program. Inc

SS-20t7.BMHS-02^UARD-02
Amendment 01

Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS |

1. Conndentlal Information: In addition to Paragraph #G of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
RFP, the Department's Conridentlal information includes any and eSi information owned or managed by the
State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services • of which coliectlon, disclosure, protection, and
disposrtion is governed by state or federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to ]
Persona) Health Information (PHI), Persohally Identifiable Information (Pll), Federal Tax Information (FTI),,
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card industry (PClj, and or other sensitive and confidential !
Information. ' ,

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential information collected, .
processed, martaged, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectations include:!

2.1. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Departrhent confidential information throughout the
Information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use, storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.2. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that collect, transmit, or<
store Department confidential Information where applicable. ,

2.3. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidential data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops, USB
drives, as well as when transmitted over public networks like the Internet using current Industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2.4. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect potential security events that can '
Impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systerns.

2.5. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in support
of protecting Department confidential information

2.6. Maintain a documented breach notification and incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional email ^
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security Incident, or;
suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

ZS.I.-Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer
Security Incident'' In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications will be sent to the following email addresses:

2.6.1.1. DHHSChleflnformationOfficer@dhh8.nh.QQv

2.6.1.2. DHHSInformatlonSecuritvOfflce@dhhs.nh.QOv

2.7. If the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or Its sub-contractor systems), the
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or contract
termination; and will obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
vendor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, end or disaster recovery operations, i
When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be rendered ^
unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure^

Exhibit K - DHHS information Security Requirements Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

deletion, or otherwise physicall/destroying the media'(for example, degaussing). The vendor will
document and certify in writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the

Department upon request. The written certification wii include all details necessary to demonstrate data

has been properly destroyed end validated. Where applicable, regulatory and professional-standards for
retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and vendor prior to destruction. i

2.6. If the vendor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for '
State of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an.lntemai process or processes that !
defines specific security expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a ;
minimum match those for the vendor, Including breach notification requirements.

3. The wndor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New Hampshire and
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department 8ystem(s). Agreements will
be completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized. >

I

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103, the vendor,will
work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Assodate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department and is responsible fOr maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey Is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an alternate time ,
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement between the.Department and the vendor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data |
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express written consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member within the Department.

Exhibit K - DHHS Information Securit/ Reqi^rements Contractor InrUals.JU^
/

CUrt3HHS/032917 Pago 2 of 2 Date



Jeffrey A. Meyere
CooamiMioaer

KaQa S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHffiE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STRttT. CONCORD, Ml 0.1301

60.1.27)-94 22 I-8004S2-3.145 Exl.9421

MJ-271.S4.U TDD Arms: i'A(KI'7.1<-39M MHH.dhhs.nh.eos

0;
t  I

June 3. 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301
.^c/c S>curci^

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department ot Health and Human Services, Division ot Behavioral Health, Bureau
of Mental Health Services, to enter into sole source Agreements with two Vendors, listed below, to
provide public guardianship services. In an amount not to exceed $3,145,045, effective July 1. 2016
through June 30, 2018, upon approval by Governor and Executive Council. 6.4%Federal, 93.6%
General. !

Summary of Contract Amounts by Vendor:

Vendor Location Amount

Office of Public Guardian Concord. NH $2,301,830

Tri-County Community Action
Program Berlin, NH $843,215

Grand Total $3,145,045

Funds are available In State Fiscal Year 2017 and anticipated to be available in 2018, upon the
avallabliity and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust
encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justifi^, wittout
approval from Governor and Executive Council.

See attachment for financial details.



Her Excellency. Margaret Wood Hassan
and Her Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

These Agreements are sole source because Revise Statues Annotated (RSA) 547'B
establishes the Public Guardianship and Protection Program for guardianship services to be provided
as required by RSA 135-C and 171'A. RSA 54-7-8:6 requires the Department to contract with one or
more organizations that the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as a public guardianship
and protection program. The Office of Public Guardian and Tri-Couniy Community Action Program are
the only organizations the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as public guardianship and
protection programs.

Approval of these Agreements will allow the Contractors to provide for guardianship services
statewide for up to 1057 persons with mental Illness or deveiopmentai dlsabidtles, and (o incapacitated
adults who are abused, neglected or exploited, leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their
inability to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their persona) affairs.
These services are needed to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard incapacitated persons
who are in state Institutions as well as in community mental health and developmental service
programs statewide. The emphasis in providing such services will be to ensure that the guardiar^ships
are maintained and limited in accordance with the standards embodied in RSA 464 A.

These Agreements also provide mentoring and training services. Mentorirrg services are
provided to family members who are willing to serve as guardian but who require a period of support.
Providing this support will obviate the need for a public guardian in these cases and will thereby save
the State from paying the costof a permanent public guardianship. '

Additior^lly, approval of these Agreements will allow the Contractors to provide. protection
services, on a statewide basis, These Agreements also carry out the requirements of RSA 135 C: ,60.
RSA 171 A; 10, II and RSA 161-F-.52. The Contractors agree to seek reimbursement for other payer
sources such as social security when providing protecllon services.

The attached Contracts include language that reserves the right to renew each contract for up to
two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, the Department
would be out of compliance with the requirements of RSA 135-0; 60. RSA 171-A; 10, II, and RSA 161-
F:52 and persons with mental illness, developmental disabilities and incapacitated adults who |are
abused, neglected or exploited, leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their inability to
provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs.

Area served: Statewide.

Souroe of funds; 6.4% Federal Funds from the Administration of Families, Department of
Health and Human Services, Social Services Block Grant, CFDA #93.667, Federal Award Identification
Number 1601NHSOSR75, and 93.6% General Funds.



Her Excellency, Margaret Wood Hassan
and Her Honorable Council
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In the event thai the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:
Jeffrey A. lyieyers
CO^n/nissioner

Tho Department of anpHumen Services'Mssion is to/oin communities end famities
In providing opporiurUties for citiions to achieve health and independence.



Financial Detail

05-95-92.&20010-7002 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHSiBEHAVIORAL
HEALTH DIV OF. DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, LEGAL-GUAROIANSHIP SVCS ' ,

OfHce of Public Guardian

1

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Budoet Amount '

2017

ConUacts for Program
Services

102-500731 $1,050,915.00

2018

Conlracis for Program
Services

102-500731 $1,050,915.^
Sub-total $2,101,830.00

1

Tri-CounN Communliv Action Proaram

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Budoet Amount

2017

Conlracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $421.607.M

2018

Contracts for Program
^  Services

102-500731 $421,607.50

Sub-total $943,215.00

06-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS:ELDERLY - ADULT
SERVICES. GRANTS TO LCCALS\SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Stats Fiscal Year ^lass Tillo Class Account Budoet Amount

2017

Contracls for Program
Services

102-500734 $100,000.00
1

2018

Contracls for Program
Services

102-500734 SIOO.QQOOO

Sub-total $200,000.00

Grand Total $3,145,045.00

Page 1 of 1



Subject; Public Guardianship Services (58-2017-BMHS-02-GUARD'021
FORM NUMBER P-37 (venion S/8/I5)

Notice: This Bgreemenl and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any inrormation that is private, conlldenlial or proprietary must
be clearly tdeotiried to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

' AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION,

I.I StateAgerKyName
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

30 Exchange Street
Berlin. NH. 03570

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-750-3010

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-920010-7002-102-

500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2018

1.8 Price Limitation

5843,215.

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency
Eric Borrin. Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

Contractor Signature

"hTwyvv

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Robart G. Boichen. Jr. Chiet Eiscutive OFficar

1.13 Aclcnowiedgeroent: Staleof N«wHampshire . County of Coos <
I

On S-2S-2C16 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be (he person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity |
indicated in block 1.12. > ;

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
SUZANNE C. FBENCH

Notary PuUle •N9w Hampehlre
My Commission Er^iras Juno 19,2018

1.132 I^ame arid of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Suzanna C' branch. Notary

1.14 State Agency Signature

Date

1,16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel

By: Director, On:

.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

inel (i/ap^^icabfe) I

1.17 ApprovalLy the Altomey General (Form, SubstaiKC and Execution) Of oppHcable)

Bv.

ixeciiaive Coimcii fi/o/j/rf/cfh/vJ ' I1.18 Approval by Che Oovemq^nd ExecCnive Coimcii fi/op/rf/cfbfvj

By; \ I On:

Page I of 4



I, EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State ofNew Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block i. I ("State*^, engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor sHbU perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject (o the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council ofihe Slate of New Hampshire, if
appticable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval Is required, In which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreemem is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 fEffective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be perfoniKd at (he sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to (he
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement!
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Slate hereunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In (he event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to tenninaie this Agreement imitiedialely upon
giving the Contractor notice ofsuch termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer fbnds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is Incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shal I be the
only and the complete reimbursement to ihe Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
perfomtance hereof^ and shall be Ihe only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amourtis
otherwise payable to the Contractor under (his Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law. [
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall (he total of all payments authorized, or actiially
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in blo^
1.8. ;

I

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT >
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with (he performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with at) statutes, laws, regulatioiis,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opporiunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxili^
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can '
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contraaor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws. '
6.2 During the term of this Agreement (he Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will lake
afriTmative action to prevent such discrimination..
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the |
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by (he ;
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41'
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as (he State of New Hampshire or the United Slates issue to
implement these rtgulations. The Contractor fbrihcr agrees to
permit the State or United Stales access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for (he purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agrcemettt.

1

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Slices. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly |
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws. !
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and ̂ all not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effoil to
perform (he Services to hire, any person who i.s a State
employee or orftcial. who is materially involved in Ihe ;
procurement, administration or performance of this

of4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive (emiination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified In block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In the event
of any dispme concerning the interprcuiion of this Agreernem,
the Contracltng Officer's decision shall be fhul for the Slate.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of (he following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event ofdefault hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services saiis&ctorilyoron
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any repon required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement
8.2 Upon iheoccunencc ofany Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or ihore. or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
ofDefault and requiring it to be remedied.within, in the
absetKeofa greater or lesser specificaiion of time, thirty (30)
days from the date ofibe notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely icmedied, terminate this Agteement. cfTcctivc two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying (he Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering (hat tbe portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Slate
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set ofTagainst any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. data/access/confidentialitv/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data'' shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of. (his
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
flics, formulae, surveys, m^s, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pktorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether fmished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Ajgreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any rcasnn.
9 J ConftdcniialUy of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing jaw. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In ihe event of an early termination of
(his Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, (he Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting '
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of '
termination, a report ("Termination Report^ describing In
detail all Senrices perfonned, and the contract price earned, to
and includiog the date of tennination. The form, subject '
matter, content, and number of copies of the Tennination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report

j  described in the attached EXHIBIT A. i

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE! In
the performance ofthis Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authoiity to
bind the State or receive any bencfiis, vmriccrs* compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employes.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of tbe Services shall be

subcontracted by'the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent ofihe State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shoU defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and >
employees, from and against any and ail losses suffered by (he
Stale. tt.s officers and employees, and any and all claims.'
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which Immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the lerminaiion of this Agreement.

U. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or'
assignee to obtain and maimatn in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against.all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI.QOO.OOOpcr occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate: and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of (he property.
14.2 The policiesdescribed in subparagraph 14.1 hereinShall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department uf
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Slate of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor ahall fumUh to the Contracting Officer
identincd in block 1.9. or his or her successor, e cerlilicatefs)
of insurance for ail insurance required under this Agreetnenl.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ceni&cate(s) of
insurance for all renewals) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
dale of each of Che insurarKc policies. TIm cenlficale(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certilicate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified In block 1.9, or bis
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written,
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* compensation.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("WoH^' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements orN.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with actrvttics which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreenwmt. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described inN.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which rriight
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Corrpensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER or BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Staus Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given In blocks 1.2 and 1.4, hercirt

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or dbcharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

I

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the bcneffl of the parlies and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreeihent
is the wording chosen by the parlies to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

I

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
bertefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be '
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arc for reference purposes only, and the words contained;
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the |
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth m the aftached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated here'm;by
reference. ,

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthe provisions of
this Agreement are held by a coun of conipetcn! jurisdiction to
be contraiy to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect, t

' 24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number ofcounterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between (he parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Deparlment of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor w(ll submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons wHh^ limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agr^s that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

2. - Definitions
2.1. Contractor means the public guardianship and protection program appointed by

the Court to serve as guardian of the person and/or estate

2.2. Ward means the person for whom guardian of the person and/or estate has been
appointed by the Circuit Court - Probate Division

3. Scope of Work Applicable to all Guardianship Services
3.1. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection sen/ices to

safeguard the liberty and well'being of persons who because of functional
limitations, have suffered, are suffering, or are likely to suffer substantial harm
due to an inability to provide for personal needs for food, clothing, shelter, health
care, safety or an inability to manage their property or financial affairs.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection services to
-  persons at risk of harm to the person, estate or both the person and estate whom

the State of New Hampshire has a responsibility to safeguard pursuant to RSA
135-0:60. RSA 161-F:52. and RSA 171-A:10, II.

3.3. The Contractor will provide public guardianship ser^ces to persons in Section 3.2
statewide In accordance with Revised Statues Annotated 464-A and 547-B that

include appointments as guardian, co guardian, conservator, or temporary
guardian of the person and/or estate of a ward.

3.4. The Contractor will provide protection services to persons in Section 3.2
statewide that include those actions that are necessary to carry out the duties as
duly designated representative or protective payee, client representative, attorney
in fact, or other similar agent, as prescribed by applicable law. rule, or agreement.

3.5. The Contractor agrees to provide services to any person under this Agreement
only upon receiving prior approval of the State through the Department's Office of
Client and Legal Services.

SS-30ir*aMHS^-Giiar4-02 ExhibilA ConVaelor Iflltiatt.
Trl-Cow^Community Acllen Program. Inc. m^.mi
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

Exhibit A

3.6. The Cor>tractor agrees to provide services to all persons approved for services in
accordance with Section 3.5.

3.7. The Contractor shall refer the client to the New Hampshire Disabilities Rights

Center, Inc., the New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney when the
Contractor is referred a client from the Department's Office of Client and Legal

Services that the Contractor believes guardianship and protection services to be
inappropriate, so that an administrative .appeal or other appropriate legal action
can be taken on behalf of the client

3.6. The Contractor agrees to direct to the Department's Office of Client and Legal
Services any referrals of persons made to the Contractor for guardianship and
protection services from, but not limited to, the Glencllff Home for the Elderly,
New Hampshire' Hospital, and community agencies In the mental health system,

' and developmental services system.

3.9. The Contractor agrees that they will not be reimbursed by the Department for
services In this Agreement in the event the Contractor provides guardianship and
protection services to persons who have not been screened and approved by the
Department's Office of Client and Legal Sen/ices.

3.9.1. Instances not within the control of ihe Contractor where guardianship
appointments were made without approval granted from the Department's ■
Office of Client and Legal Services, the Contractor may receive
reimbursement for guardianship services when the Contractor can
provide documentation satisfactory to the Department that such
circumstances occurred ar\d the Contractor made reasonable efforts to

decline such appointments.

3.9.2. The Contractor shall Include documentation of reasonable efforts made to
decline such appointments with its monthly invoices. If the
documentation provided by the Contractor Is satisfactory to the
Department, the Department may make payments to the Contractor for
appointments made without approval as long as the wards appointed to
the Contractor are persons for whom the Stale has responsibility to
safeguard pursuant to RSA 135 C; 60, RSA 171 A:10, II and RSA 161-
F:52.

3.10, The Contractor shall provide guardianship and protection services to persons
under this Agreement, In accordance vwth the "Standards of Practice' and "^A
Model Code of Ethics for Guardians" developed by the National Guardianship
Association.

3.10.1. Notwithstanding the ethics and standards for guardians cited in Section
3.10, for monthly visits, the Contractor shall at least make quarterly face
to face visits with the ward or more frequent visits as required In
individual circumstances, In accordance with Contractor's accepted
practice.

SS-2017.B»AH3^2-Guaid-02 CofiUactOf —
Tfi^Cconty Community Acbon Program, trw.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

Exhibit A

3.;I0.2. The Contractor shall attempt to have a video conference with the ward

in the Instance the ward Is out of the State of New Hampshire for an

extended period of time and it would not be feasible for the Contractor

to see the ward face to face on the basis outline In Section 3.10.1

above.

3.10.3. The Contractor shall make at least telephone contact with the ward

should the technology for a video conference not be available.

3.10.4. The Contractor may suspend face to face visits as required in Section
3.10.1 when the ward may be aggressive to the point of physical harm
to- the Contractor. The Contractor shall suspend visits until an
alternative plan can be developed for the guardian to meet with the
ward while maintaining personal safety.

3.11. In any action brought In Circuit Court-Probate Division to limit or otherwise
reduce the scope of a guardianship over a person served under this
Agreement., the State agrees to appear with the Contractor where the State
agrees that It is necessary to present the State's position on the action
proposed.

3.12. The Contractor agrees that no "direct services' shall be provided to persons
under this Agreement. Direct services include psychotherapy, case
management, transportation, financial aid. or other social services available
through state or other governmental or nonprofit agencies.

3.13. The Contractor has responsibilities as an Independent decision-maker acting In
a fiduciary capacity v^th respect to the persons to be served under this
Agreement and. the decisions to be made on behalf of such persons shall r\ot
be directed or influenced by the State by any action taken under this
Agreement.

3.14. The Contractor may elect to subcontract for such services as may be
necessary to carry out guardianship and protection services under this
Agreement with prior notification and approval of the State through the Office of
Client and Legal Services.

3.15. The Contractor may provide guardianship and protection services to persons
other than those who era referred pursuant to this Agreement. However, the
Contractor agrees that pursuant to RSA 547 B:7. no funds provided under this
Agreement shall be expended for such persons. Furtherrnore, the Contractor

.  agrees to maintain sufficient records, which shall be subject to the
Department's examination and be Included as part of the Audit of Records
required In Section 3.8 to document that the funds received under this
Agreement are expended in accordance with this Agreement.

SS.2017-6MHS-02>Ouard-02 Ejrf^ibiiA Contiactof Initieta
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3.16. The Contractor shall accept and Investigate complaints from the Department
regarding- services perfomied under (his Agreement. The Contractor shall
investigate the circumstances pertaining to the complaint and shaD respond in '
writing within thirty (30) days to the Department concerning the results of the

investigation. The Contractor.shali provide on a quarterly basis, a report of all
written compiaints filed against the Contractor and shall explain how each such '
complaini was resolved. •

3.17. The Contractor recognizes the inherent value of the opinions of the wards they >

serve. If staff at any institution or developmental services or mental health
agency within the jurisdiction of the Department or any entity providing funding
to the Department distributes a survey, questionnaire or similar instrument
designed to gauge consumer satisfaction of wards In reference to the services

received by the ward including the services provided by the Contractor under

this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to allow their wards to participate In
such measures of consumer satisfaction unless the Contractor Indicates In

writing to the Department the reasons why a particular ward should not be

allowed to so participate.

4. Scope of Services - Guardianship Services
4.1. The Contractor shall provide the following functions for individuals so named by !

the Circuit Court Probate Division as wards of the Contractor. This listing and , \
description Is not Intended to restate exisUng rules and regulations already In

place, but rather Its purpose Is to clarify the relationship of the Contractor with |
, respect to its wards who need and are receiving services in the developmental t

services, and/or mental health systems. The Contractor shall perform the I
following functions, but not limited to; |

4.1.1. Making decisions regarding the residential and day placement of the j
ward, utilizing the standards of least restrictive environment and the i

best interests of the individual ward. I

4.1.2. Insuring that all legally necessary steps are taken to enable the , j
individual ward to receive comprehensive evaluations and ' !
comprehensive treatment and services.

4.1.3. Advocating for and requesting appropriate services for the individual
ward utilizing the Individual serviceytreatment planning process following

established Department standards and law.

4.1.4. Being avallabte to give or withhold consent to proposed medical care.

4.1.5. Being available to give or withhold consent, where such is legally ,
necessary, to proposed professional care, counsel, treatment or service
Including, but not limited to behavioral programs, significant changes In
Individual service/treatment plans, and other clinically or legally
significant treatment or services.

SS-2017-eMHS-02-Guard.02 ExMbltA ContfaetorInlflah
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4.1.6. Insuring that the ward's civil rights are protected within the context of
the decision the guardian is making on behatf of the ward and refraining
from unwarranted intrusion Into the life of the ward.

4.1.7. Assuming responsibility for any. and ail other duties as are stated in
RSA 464 A or as are required by the Circuit Court Probate Division.

4.1.8. if guardian of the estate, being available to make all decisions as

required by RSA 464-A;26

4.2. The Contractor agrees that all of the responsibiliUes referer^ced in 4.1. above are
contingent upon the actual authority granted in each individual court order
specifying the extent and scope of guardianship for each individual.

4.3. The Contractor agrees to be kept aware of the facts or circumstances which may
Impact the decisions to perform the functions specified in Section 4.1.

4.3.1. The Contractor shall maintain signifK:ant and appropriate contact with

each ward so to assure that Contractor's efforts best reflect the

personal preferences, values, and desires of the ward to the fullest
extent possible in order to make Informed decisions on behalf of their

wards, should

4.3.2. The Contractor shall seek out Information about the ward or the ward's

situation so that they are fully aware of all risks and benefits of any
proposed course of action, as well as any alternatives that may exist.

4.3.3. The Contractor, when providing guardianship of the person shall
maintain regular contact with their wards in order to comply with the

standards and ethics In Section 3.10.

4.3.4. The Contractor agrees that each guardian has the obligation to become
as familiar as possible with his or her ward by having the personal

contact required with the ward and other Important and significant
people in the ward's life. The Contractor may meet this obligation
through close interaction with the ward's case manager and others who

share a responsibility for providing for the needs of the individual.

5. Guardianship and Protection Services
5.1. The Contractor is obligated to accept all protection services cases referred to the

Contractor by the Department's Office of Client and Legal Services. The
Department shad make every attempt to obtain a Release of Information from the
proposed client with the Contractor except where prohibited from doing so by law.
Also, to the extent possible, the Contractor shall be involved In the screening
process for protection cases. If the Contractor believes that the appointment of a
protective payee or representative payee is inappropriate, the Contractor may
refer the client to the New Hampshire Disabilities Rights Center, Inc., New
Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney so that an administrative appeal or
other appropriate legal action can be taken on behalf of the client.

SS.}017*BMHS42-Ou8rd42 Exhibit A Cantractef
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5.2. For persons referred to Contractor by the Department's Office of Client and
Legal Services pursuant to RSA 136-C:60 and RSA 171-A:10. II the Contractor
agrees to serve the current total of 286 persons receiving guardianship services,

,  plus any new persons referred in accordance with Section 3.5 above. However,
the Contractor agrees to provide guardianship services for up to 290 cases
during the contract period. The Department shall provide the Contractor with
letters of approval for each new case assigned to the Contractor by the Office of
Client and Legal Services. The Contractor may bill for sen/ices when the
Contractor Is actually appointed as the guardian by the Circuit Court-Probate
Division. i

6. Scope of Services - Technical Assistance
6.1. The Contractor may provide technical assistance to private guardians or training

to area agency or community merital health whose staff provide direct services to
wards that are clients of the Department. -

6.2. The Contractor shall provide the technical assistance or training described in
Section 6.1 upon receiving conftrmation from the private guardian or the agency
staff their approval from the Office of Client and Legal Services with the specified
number of hours for technical assistance or training.

6.3. in order to receive such technical assistance from the Contractor private
guardians must receive prior approval from the Office of Client and Legal
Services for a specified number of consultation hours. '

7. Staffing
7.1.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient number of staff to adequately

carry out. for all clients, all the duties required by statue, the letters of
authority, and the standards set forth in this document.

7.1.2. The Contractor shall have each guardian successfully complete 20 or
nx)re hours of orientation training and, complete 10 or more hours of
annual continuing education for each year of employment.

7.1.3. The Contractor shall report the number of professional continuing
education hours obtained by each guardian by August 1, of each year.

SS-20U-aMHS.02-Ov»nW2 ExhlWlA ContrKtof InitJala, (^■>6
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount r^ot to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8,

for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire Ger>erai Funds.
2.1. The Contractor agrees to provide the services In Exhibit A Scope of Services In

compliance vdth funding requirements.

3. Subject to avaltatiility of State funds, and In consideration for the satisfactory completion of

the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State shall pay the Contractor a per

diem per case rate approved by the Department's Office of Client and Legal Services for all

Bureau of Mental Health Services, and Bureau of Developmental Services:

3.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the person

services or over the estate services to persons served under this Agreement shall be
$3.95 per ward, per day. for up to 290 clients whose guardianship services are

requested by the Department's Bureaus of Mental HeaKh Services and Developmental
Services.

3.2. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of technical assistance to private

guardians shall be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of $2,000.

3.3. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training to area agency, mental
health and elderly and adult agency staff and probate court personnel shall be $60.00,
not to exceed the amount of $1,500.

4. Payment to the Contractor for the provision of services to clients v^ose guardianship
services are requested by the Bureaus of Mental Health Services and Developmental
Services will be made on a montt>ly basis subject to the following conditions:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit Invoices on a monthly basis in accordance with
procedures and instructions established by the Office of Client and Legal Services
and provided to the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit with the monthly Invoice a

(1st of clients served during the month for which the invoice is being submitted. The
Office of Client and Legal Services shall pay the Contractor by muttipiying the per
diem rate times the total number of days for each service provided during the month ̂
to each eligible client under this Agreement.

4.2. The per diem rate vmH be extended to the last day of the month following the month in
which the client dies or for whom guardianship service are terminated.

4.3. The Contractor agrees to provide a copy of the court notice to the Department with
the invoice when the Contractor Is appointed guardian of a ward and when the
Contractor no longer provides guardianship services to the ward.

4.4. Invoices shall be due by the 15th of the month following the month in which services
are provided.

Tn-Counly Convnunity Action Progrm, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Inltlats
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4.5. The Contractor shall review the cases referred by the OfTice of Client and Legal

Services monthly and move individuals to a different funding mechanism, if possible, to
aiiow more openings for addKlonal referrals, in ail cases where alternate funding
becomes available, the Contractor shall transfer the ward from the Office of Client and

Legal Services funded slot within sixty (60) days.

5. The Contractor agrees to seek reimbursement from other payer sources when providing
protecUon services as described In Section 3.4 of Exhibit A. Scope of Services. The
Department will not reimburse for services under this Agreement for protection services
described in Section 3,4 o1 Exhibit A, Scope o1 Services.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be wilhheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
federal or state law, rule, or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been satisfactorily comploted In accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

Trt-Ceunty Ccmmunity Action Prosratn. Inc.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
irullviduals and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data Trie on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other informaUor),as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding ellglbUity determinations that the Department may request or require.

A. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-appUcant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair.
hearing [n accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that paymerrts, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anyUiing to the contrary contained in the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred tor
any puqpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no ̂ yments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as other^se pro>^ded by the
federal regulations) prior to a determir>ation that (he Indlvidua) is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase sen/ices
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such ser^'ce, or at a
rate whidi exceeds the rate charged by the Contrector to ineiigSiie individuals or other third party
funders for such service, if at any time during the term of (his Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall deterrnine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse herns of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event new rates shall be establshed;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

tvniu
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In wt>k:h event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eliglUlity of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who Is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any lime during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTEf^CE. RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

B. Maintenance of Records: In additton to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

end other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contrad. and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices wfiich sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Indude. without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
ir>-klnd contr^utions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.
Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of appUcaUon and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitt^ to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.
Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

8.2.

B.3.

9. Audit: Contractor st>all submit an annual audit to the Department N^thin 60 days after ̂  close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Managen>ent and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" ar>d the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions. Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financia) compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, (fie

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
(he Contract for purposes of audit, examir^ation, excerpts and transalpts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way In lirnilation of obligations of the Contract, it Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held Uable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have beert disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidontlallty of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection wKh the performance of the serviMS and the Contract shad be confidenlial and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and ihe'regulations of
the Department regardirig the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection wllh their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: arxl provided further, that
(he use or disclosure by eny party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly conr>ected wtth the admlnlstratfon of (he Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

cvrm
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In'
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit tfte following reports at the following
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descripUon of

an costs and non-albwable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report; A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other informabon required by the Department.

12. Comptetlon of Services: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be petlormed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses daimed by the Contractor as
costs hereur\der the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. O^dits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of (his (repol. document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health end Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: Ail materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under (he contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shad not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply vrith all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shaD Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of (he facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said fadBty or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor wlll procure said license or permit, and will at aD times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection wHh the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the fadtities shall
comply vrittt all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local Are protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civtl Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, U will m^ntaln a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Cettiftcaiion Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient wilt provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical'and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement but are required to submit a cerlirtcabon form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certincation Forms are available at: http:/Avww.ojp.usdoj/about/Qcr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proftciency. and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP|. To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control er>d Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title Vi of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must talce reasons^le steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Hs programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to el! contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $160,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TC INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees woridng on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at .
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 628 of the Netional Defense Autfwrization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform Hs employees In writing, In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal AcquisHlon Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shafl Insert the substance of this clause. Including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater.expertlse to perform certain health care services or functions for effidency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the hinction($). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
functlon(8). This Is accomplished through a wriRen agreement that specifies activities and reportlr^g
respoTuibnities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same cortiractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegetir^

the function

19.2. Have a wrHten agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
respcnsibllHIes and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

C - Bpeoat Prm'atons Conliactot Inliala.
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcorrtradors, delegated hinctions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed.

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If (he Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFfNITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the foliowing meanings:

COSTS: Shai) mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allow^le and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting princfples established in accordance
with state and federal iBwsVregulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains (he regulations governIrrg the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: if appPcaUe, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and contain'tng a description of the Services to be provided to etiglbie
Individuals by the Contractor in accordartce with the temis and conditions of the Contract and setting forlh
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that (he Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
ContracL

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred loin tite Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract writ) not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Spcdil Provlxiorts Contrsctor (niUais M§-
PageSofS Data



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

1.

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVtSIONS

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contracl, Condiltonal Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of Ihis Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of tne Slate
■ hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreemenl ere contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds alfecled by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding tor this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provid^ in Exhibit A. Scope of Services. In whole or in part. In no eveni shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available furxls. in
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withheld payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
Stale shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under Ihis Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Accounl(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, ̂ count Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contracl. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language:

The Stale may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the Stale is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement. '

10.1

10.2 In tne event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the Slate a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreemenl. including but not limited to. identifying {he present and.future needs of clienis
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State arxl shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan-hcluding. but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the. Stale related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan 10 the Slate as
requested.

10.4

10.5

In the event thai services under the Agreement, including but nol iirriiied to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are Iransitioned lo having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
.uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

The Department reserves the right lo renew the Contract for up to two additional years, subject to
the continued avaiiabiiiiy of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Coundi.

Subparagraph 14,1. of the General Provisions of this contract Is amended by adding the following
subparagraph 14.1.3.

14.1.1 During the term Of this Agreement, the Contractor shall maintain professional liability
irtsurance in an amount rv)! less than SI.000.000 per occurrence and S3.000.000 in the
aggregate covering ail professional and/or licensed personnel engaged in the
performance of the service hereunder.

Eihibil C-t - Rsvisionk <o Gcierxl Provmotiv
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New Hampshtre Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compiy with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. TiUe V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified (n Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certifrcatlon;-

ALTERNATfVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Ad of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, TUie V. SubtiUe D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.}. The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part li of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21581-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sut>-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sut)-contractor$) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
cettific^on or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contradors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or wll continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manu^ure, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying (he actions that wBl be taken against employees for >^olation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug ebuse violations

occurring In the workpiace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terrris of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a crimiruil drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or othervrise receiving actual notice of such conviction.

. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, Including position tide, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federel agency

Exhkil 0-C*ttineationrcQSRlIng OrUQ Free Cantraetaf Iniliala
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of-such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification number(s) of each affMted grant;

. 1.6. Taking one of the following actions,' within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1,4.2, with lesptetto any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfaclorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriale agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2. 1.3,1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the $ite(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name;

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

5-2S-2016
Oale Name: Robon c. Boschon, Jr.

Title: Chief Executive officer

GiduM D - Cenircetion regvdng Oug Pre* CcnVKior IrMalo.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTiFICATiON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute (he following Certtfication;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
^Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medlcald Program under Title XIX
'Communrty Sen/Ices Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to Influerice an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub^rantee or subcontractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or empbyee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mentbn sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbyirtg, in accordance with Its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit £•!.)

3. The undersigned shall require (hat the language of (his certlflcatbn be Included in the award
document for sutsawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loaris, and cooperative agreements) and (hat all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification,Is a material rapresentatton of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certiftcation Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

Tfl-Coonty Commuruty Action Program, Inc.

S.2S-2016

Date Name: Robert G.Boschen. Jr.
Title: Chief Executive Otficer

Exhibit E - Certillcation Reaartflng Lobbyirtg Corttractor Initiab
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Det>arment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, end further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary perticlpdnt Is providing the
ceftificalion set out t)elow.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certirtcation required below will not necessarily result in denial
of partidpatibn in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in conr^ection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to-enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explariation shall disquafify such person from partlcip^ion in
thb transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certificabon, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant leams '
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed

.  circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,' 'suspended,' Tneiiglble,' 'lower tier covered
transaction,' 'participant' 'person,' 'prirnary covered transaction,' 'principal.' 'proposal,' and
"voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanlrigs set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Imptementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will fnctude the
dause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineitgibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS, without moditication. In all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. j

i

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may '
decide the method and frequency by vmich It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement Ust (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render In good faith tha certification required by this clause. The knowledge and |

Etfilbft F - Certificalion Rcaardng Dobannent, Suspansion Contractor Initials . j
And Oihar Responsibility Matters '
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In tlie ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, If a participant In a
covered trartsactlon knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, (nellgibte, or votuntartly excluded from perticipaMon in this transaction, in
addKion to otfier remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transacfion
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certrTies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that It and Its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public trartsactlon; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement theft forgery, bribery, falsHication or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal; State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appHcallon/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, Slate or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, su^ prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and Its principals;
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarmenL declared inellgibie, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transacliori by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant turner agrees by submitting this proposal (coritract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligit^lity, and
Vdunlary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Tfi-Coonty Cofnmunijy Action Program. Inc.
>

S-25-Z016

Date Name: Robart 6. Botchen. Jr.
Title: Chlaf Exaeutlve officer

Exhibit r - Certficatlon Regardir^ Debarment. Suapenstoh Contractor Initials —
And Other Reiponaibilily Maoers ntKgr
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAiNINQ TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMiNATIQN: EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHI8TLEBL0WER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondlsciiminafoh requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1960 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohlbHs
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employmenit practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan:

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5B72(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obPgatlons of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discnmlnatlng. either In employmenl practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basts of race, color, or rwlional origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;

- the Americans wHh Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. Slate and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments 6f 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1665-66), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections B106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. II does not include
employment discrimination:

• 26 C.F.R, pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondlscrimlnatlon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizatlofis); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based end neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 36 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Ad (NDAA) for Rscai Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enaded January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
EnharKomerti of Contrad Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blovring activlUes in connection with federal grants and contracts,

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grarti. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
su^nsion of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency-makes a finding of
discrirnination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipenl will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the appllcabte contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of tiie Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative asidentmed In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certittcatlon:

i

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) Ihe Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated 8t>cve.

5-2M016

Contractor Name:

Tri-County Community Action Proeram. tne.

Date Name: Rob«rt G. Boschen. J/.
Title; Chief ExocwUve Office'

ExhfcH G . er n
Contractor Initials f
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18..if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an adminislrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identitled in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiftcatlon:

1. By signing and submitting (his contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all appiicabie provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Tri-County Commumty Action Program, Inc.

Date Name;^obert G. Boston, jr.
Title: Chief Executive Offlcar

Exhlbil H - Certiricaiion Regarding Contracto.r Initials
Bnvitonmenlal Tobacco Smoke ^
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlcea

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABUTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreenr»ent agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identiflable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to txjsiness associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Tjlle 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160,103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in45CFRSection 164.501.

e. "Data Aaoreaation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "^ealth Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "tUP^" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiabie Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. "Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term "indivlduar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualines as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 EihUjitl ConMctor Wtleh _££_2_
HctlUi Insuranca Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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I. 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law' In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

rn. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Heallh and Human Services or
his/her desighee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by (he American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not othen/vise defined herein shall have (he meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
ill. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to. making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially arid
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance wHh the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disdosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business .
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additiortal restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immBdIately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health inforrriation involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
dlsdosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notincatlon Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating lo the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writirtg to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Ir^duding
the duty to retum or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended busir»ess associates, who will bo receiving PHI
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h.

k.

pursuant to this Agreement, v/ith rights of enforcement and indemnificaiion from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P'37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Assodate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

3/2014

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Sedion 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individua! contained In a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity b hjlfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Ks obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or'accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fonvard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in-connectlon with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If retum or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHi and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Qbllaatlona of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limltation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals In accordance with A5 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164,506 or 45 CFR SecUon 164.508.

c. Cowred entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any resthctions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use of disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as E)^iblt I. The Covert Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the

^  alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
, determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the

violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatofv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements ot HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf ot Covered Entity.

d. Interoreiation. The parties agree (hat any ambiguity in the Agreement shall t>e resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. .
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e. Seorcaafton. If any term or condition of this Exhibit t or the application thereof to any
person{s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall sunrtve the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Tfl-Coonty Communlly Adion Program, inc.

The State ''

Signature of Authohzed Representative

^
Name of Au^rfzed Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Name of the Contractor

j
Signature of Authonzed Representative

Robert G. Boachan. Jr.

Name of Authorized Representative

Chief Executive OfTicer

Title of Authorized Representative

S.^S-2016
Date
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CERTIRCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT iFFATAt COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than S25.000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first'tler sut^granls of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
DepartmerU of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA r^x>rQng requirements:
1.- Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
A. NAICS code for contracts f CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the (urtding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from Ihe Federal government, and Ihose
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment Is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the pfovisions of
The Federal Funding Accounlabllity and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law f 10-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and fui^er agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Gerwtal Provisions
execute the following Certirtcation:
The below named Contractor egrees to provide needed Infomiation as outlined above lo the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to compfy with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Fmandat Accountability and Transparency Act:

\

Contractor Name:

Tfl-County Community Action Progran, Inc.

.  5-2S-2016

Date Name: Rob
Title: Chief

. Boschen, Jr.

ecuttve Otflctr
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FORMA

As the Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the Generel Provisions, I certify that the resporves to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is:
073975708

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; end (2) $25,000,000 or more (n annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranls, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 02 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports Wed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of Ihe Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

if the answer to 03 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of Ihe five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:.

Name:.

Name:,

Name:.

Name:

Amount:

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;
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